Public Document Pack

Tendring

District Council

IAN DAVIDSON, CHIEF EXECUTIVE, TOWN HALL, STATION ROAD, CLACTON-ON-SEA, ESSEX, CO15 1SE. TELEPHONE (01255) 686868

RESOURCES AND SERVICES
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: Monday, 13 March 2023
TIME: 7.30 pm
VENUE: Committee Room - Town Hall,
Station Road, Clacton-on-Sea, CO15
1SE
MEMBERSHIP:
Councillor M Stephenson (Chairman) Councillor Codling
Councillor Scott (Vice-Chairman) Councillor Griffiths
Councillor Allen Councillor Morrison
Councillor Amos Councillor Skeels
Councillor Barry

Chief Executive www.tendringdc.gov.uk
lan Davidson Minicom: 01255 475566

VANIOV


http://www.tendringdc.gov.uk/

Most Council meetings are open to the public and press. The space for
the public and press will be made available on a first come first served
basis. Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the
meeting date and the Council aims to publish Minutes within five working
days of the meeting. Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large
print, in Braille, or on disc, tape, or in other languages.

This meeting will be filmed by the Council for live and/or subsequent
broadcast on the Council’s website. The whole of the meeting will be
filmed, except where there are confidential or exempt items, and the
footage will be on the website for up to 24 months (the Council retains
one full year of recordings and the relevant proportion of the current
Municipal Year). The Council will seek to avoid/minimise footage of
members of the public in attendance at, or participating in, the meeting.
In addition, the Council is obliged by law to allow members of the public
to take photographs, film, audio record and report on the proceedings at
public meetings. The Council will only seek to prevent this should it be
undertaken in a disruptive or otherwise inappropriate manner.

If you have any queries regarding webcasting or the recording of
meetings by the public, please contact Keith Durran Email:
democraticservices@tendringdc.gov.uk or Telephone on 01255 686585

DATE OF PUBLICATION: Friday, 3 March 2023




AGENDA

Apologies for Absence and Substitutions

The Committee is asked to note any apologies for absence and substitutions received
from Members.

Minutes of the Last Meeting (Pages 1 - 44)

To confirm and sign as a correct record, the minutes of the meetings of the
Committee, held on 15 November 2022, 11 January 2023 and 1 February 2023.

Declarations of Interest

Councillors are invited to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Personal
Interest, and the nature of it, in relation to any item on the agenda.

Questions on Notice pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 38

Subject to providing two working days' notice, a Member of the Committee may ask the
Chairman of the Committee a question on any matter in relation to which the Council has
powers or duties which affect the Tendring District and which falls within the terms of
reference of the Committee.

A.1 Review of the Work Programme (Pages 45 - 72)

The report provides the Committee with an update on its approved Work Programme for
2022/23 (including progress with enquiries set out in its Work Programme), feedback to
the Committee on the decisions in respect of previous recommendations from the
Committee in respect of enquiries undertaken and a list of forthcoming decisions for
which notice has been given since publication of the agenda for the Committee’s last
meeting.

A.2 Council Procurement and Contract Management (Pages 73 - 98)

To inform the Committee of the outcome of the informal review of procurement and
contract management at the Council ensuring it is functioning as it should and is fit for
purpose.

A.3 Task and Finish Group - Planning Enforcement (Pages 99 - 150)

To consider the outcome of the enquiry undertaken by the Members who formed the
Task and Finish Group into this matter.



Date of the Next Scheduled Meeting

The next scheduled meeting of the Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny
Committee is to be held in the at Time Not Specified on Date Not Specified.

Information for Visitors

FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE

There is no alarm test scheduled for this meeting. In the event of an alarm sounding, please

calmly make your way out of any of the fire exits in the hall and follow the exit signs out of the
building.

Please heed the instructions given by any member of staff and they will assist you in leaving the
building and direct you to the assembly point.

Please do not re-enter the building until you are advised it is safe to do so by the relevant member
of staff.

Your calmness and assistance is greatly appreciated.




Agenda Item 2

Resources and Services Overview and 15 November 2022
Scrutiny Committee

10.

11.

12.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE RESOURCES AND SERVICES OVERVIEW
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE,
HELD ON TUESDAY, 15TH NOVEMBER, 2022 AT 7.30 PM
IN THE COMMITTEE ROOM - TOWN HALL, STATION ROAD, CLACTON-ON-SEA,

CO15 1SE
Present: Councillors Scott (Vice-Chairman), Amos, Baker, Codling, Griffiths
and Skeels
Also Present: Councillor Clifton and Wiggins

In Attendance: Keith Simmons (Head of Democratic Services and Elections) and
Keith Durran (Committee Services Officer)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors Barry, Morrison (no
substitutions) and M Stephenson (with Councillor Baker substituting). Councillor Scott
(as the Committees Vice-Chairman) chaired the meeting.

MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING

It was RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on Minday 17
October 2022 be approved as a correct record.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were none on this occasion.

QUESTIONS ON NOTICE PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 38

There were none on this occasion.

REPORT OF HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES AND ELECTIONS - A.1 - WORK
PROGRAMMING INCLUDING MONITORING OF PREVIOUS RECOMMENDATIONS
AND SUMMARY OF THE FORTHCOMING DECISIONS.

The Committee had before it a report that provided them with an update on its approved
Work Programme for 2022/23 (it included progress with enquiries set out in that Work
Programme), feedback to the Committee on the decisions in respect of previous
recommendations from the Committee in respects of enquiries previously undertaken
and a list of forthcoming decisions for which notice had been given since publication of
the agenda for the Committee’s last meeting.

The Committee heard oral updates from the Chairmen of the following groups, set up by
it:

Councillor Scaott in relation to the Beach Hut Task and Finish Group.

Councillor Baker in relation to the Planning Enforcement Task and Finish Group.

Page 1




Resources and Services Overview and 15 November 2022
Scrutiny Committee

Councillor Clifton in relation to the Cyber Security Task and Finish Group.

A short statement was also read out by Councillor Scott in relation to the Customer
Service Task and Finish Group, chaired by Councillor M Stephenson, in the absence of
the Groups Chairman.

The Committee heard an update on the Procurement and Contract Management
enquiry. This enquiry was, as it stated in the report, being undertaken through informal
meetings involving the whole Committee’s membership. The first informal meeting for
this enquiry was held on 17 October and the next meeting was now scheduled for 7
December 2022. Members of the Committee had been asked for their views on the
issues covered at the meeting on 17 October. However no views were submitted from
them. There was a lot of written material for Councillors to read through and so it was
understood that some of that reading would take place after 17 October. As such, the
view was expressed that if Committee Members could be encouraged again to submit
comments etc in response to the email request from officers on this matter.

The issue of inflation in contract pricing for schemes approved for delivery by the
Council, was something the Committee had already identified would be a matter it would
specifically look at as part of its Committee’s budget scrutiny work that would take place
on 11 January at the full day process.

The Committee also heard that an update on progress with ambition towards
achievement of Carbon Neutral by 2030 — The Off Agenda Briefing Paper — based on
questions provided by the Committee’s designated Carbon Neutral Champion (Clir
Barry) had been requested and it was anticipated that this would be provided by the end
of this month. Once received it would be circulated to the whole Committee. The off
agenda briefing paper would look at how the Climate Action Plan implementation was
progressing.

How are we measuring carbon reduction?

What measures have

a) actually been implemented and what impact have they had

b) are planned in next 2-3 yrs and what are anticipated savings

¢) what is planned 2025 — 2030 to continue commitment to achieve neutrality
and what are obstacles and problems.?

It was reported to Members that the reply from the Portfolio Holder for Environment to
the recommendations from the Committee on 30 July 2022 on Waste, Recycling and
Littering was set out in recommendation 10 on Page 22 of the Agenda, Council
approved on 12 July 2022 that the development of proposals for the waste, recycling
and street cleaning contract specification from 2026 be included in the work programme
of enquiries for the Committee for 2022/23.

On respect of the forthcoming decision item, “Proposed new TDC Road Closure Policy”,
there had not been the required notice to consider it at this meeting.

After a short discussion in relation to the Waste Item in the Recommendations
Monitoring report it was moved by Councillor Skeels and seconded by Councillor Amos
and RESOLVED that the reply from the Portfolios Holder to the Committees
recommendations on the matter, can usefully be added to the Waste Enquiry which has
been timed to take place in the Spring 2023.

Page 2



Resources and Services Overview and 15 November 2022
Scrutiny Committee

The Head of Democratic Services and Elections confirmed that the sentiments of the
Committee arising from the discussion of the proposed Road Closure Policy notice in
the forthcoming decisions would be reported to officers and the relevant Portfolio
Holders as follows:

a) this policy should be aligned with the proposed Open Spaces that has previously
been referenced to this Committee and;

b) that it is vitally aware that consultation is undertaken prior to any adopted policy
in this regard.

The meeting was declared closed at 8.17 pm

Chairman

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Resources and Services Overview and 11 January 2023
Scrutiny Committee

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE RESOURCES AND SERVICES OVERVIEW

AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE,

HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 11TH JANUARY, 2023 AT 11.00 AM
IN THE COMMITTEE ROOM - TOWN HALL, STATION ROAD, CLACTON-ON-SEA,

CO15 1SE

Present:

Councillors M Stephenson (Chairman), Scott (Vice-Chairman), Allen,
Barry, Codling, Griffiths and Morrison

Also Present:

Councillor Neil Stock OBE (Leader of the Council; Leader of the
Conservatives Group), Councillor Carlo Guglielmi (Deputy Leader of
Council; Portfolio Holder for Corporate Finance & Governance;
Deputy Leader of Conservatives Group), Councillor Paul
Honeywood (Portfolio Holder for Housing), Councillor Alex Porter
(Portfolio Holder for Leisure & Tourism), Councillor Michael Talbot
(Portfolio Holder for Environment & Public Space) and Councillors
Andrew Baker and Jayne Nash

In Attendance:

lan Davidson (Chief Executive), Damian Williams (Corporate
Director (Operations and Delivery)), Lisa Hastings (Deputy Chief
Executive & Monitoring Officer), Lee Heley (Corporate Director
(Place & Economy)), Richard Barrett (Assistant Director (Finance
and IT) & Section 151 Officer), Keith Simmons (Head of Democratic
Services and Elections) and Keith Durran (Committee Services
Officer)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

Apologies were received by Councillors Amos and Skeels (with no substitutions).

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest by Councillors in relation to any item on the
agenda for this meeting.

QUESTIONS ON NOTICE PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 38

On this occasion no Councillor had submitted notice of a question.

BUDGET PROPOSALS FOR 2023/24

At the Committee’s formal meeting on 11 January, it heard how the General Fund and
the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget proposals for 2023/24 had been
considered by Cabinet on 16 December 2022.

The Committee had been provided, as part of the material for them to consider, the

following:

Page 5




Resources and Services Overview and 11 January 2023
Scrutiny Committee

1) Updated General Fund Financial Forecast Including Proposed Budget Changes in
2022/23 along with Budget Proposals for 2023/24 — the report considered by
Cabinet on 16 December 2022.

2)

Updated Housing Revenue Account Business Plan and Budget Proposals

2023/24- the report considered by Cabinet on 16 December 2022.

The format for the meeting provided for the following elements.

11.00am - 11.30am Private meeting of Members of the Committee to make

final arrangements for the rest of the meeting.

11.30am - 12.00noon | Public meeting opens and a presentation by the Section

151 Officer on an introduction to the 2022/23 current
budget position, the proposals for 2023/24 and the MTFS

12.00noon - 12.30pm | CliIr Alex Porter, Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Tourism

12.30pm - 1.00pm Clir Michael Talbot, Portfolio Holder for Environment and
Public Space

1.00pm - 2.00pm Adjourn for lunch

2.00pm - 2.30pm ClIr Paul Honeywood, Portfolio Holder for Housing

2.30pm - 3.00pm Clir Carlo Guglielmi, Portfolio Holder for Corporate

Finance & Governance (Deputy Leader of Council)

3.00pm - 3.30pm CliIr Neil Stock OBE, Leader of the Council

A series of questions were asked by the Committee and responses were provided in
writing to the Committee. The Minutes of the meeting record those questions and
responses in an Appendix. Further supplementary questions were asked of Cabinet
Members and responses provided.

During the dialogue with individual Cabinet Members, the following commitments to
written responses being provided were given to the Committee:

Clir Alex Porter, Portfolio Holder for Leisure, and Tourism - regarding the
implemented measures to reduce energy costs in leisure facilities and the
envisaged pay back position in cash terms for those measures and the CO,
savings generated, the Council’s position on sea defences at the Naze in
Walton-on-the-Naze and, separately, about past and future surveys of relevant
beaches in relation to the need for future recharges of sand on those beaches.

Clir Paul Honeywood, Portfolio Holder for Housing — in relation to empty Council
housing stock, its liable for the same Council Tax premiums as a private dwelling
and, how many empty Council homes were subject to the different premium
levels levied for Council Tax.

Clir Carlo Guglielmi, Deputy Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for
Finance and IT - question regarding the premium council tax rate on empty

Page 6



Resources and Services Overview and 11 January 2023
Scrutiny Committee

homes, how many empty homes were there at the start of the year versus how
many at the end of the year and if he considers the levying of the premium to be
a success.

The Committee expressed their gratitude to the Council’'s Section 151 Officer for his
support for the budget scrutiny process, and more generally in respect of the budgetary
position of the Council. In addition, the Committee thanked the Members of Cabinet
and the officers who assisted the process of the review over the days leading up to the
meeting, and on the day of its meeting in considering the questions posed by the
Committee and providing responses.

Having considered all of the information that had been provided, including the
responses to the questions posed to Cabinet Members and Officers referred to in the
Appendix, it was RESOLVED that the CABINET be RECOMMENDED that:

a)

Requests a comprehensive piece of work be undertaken to assess the true costs
of services subject to discretionary Fees and Charges (including full on-costs) to
ensure that cost recovery is being achieved and that inadvertent subsidy of
services from Council Tax income does not exist where those full costs should
be met through relevant Fees and Charges;

Requests that progress be made (at pace) in the coming months to ensure that
Zero Based Budgeting is applied consistently to all major net expenditure areas
for the Council and that this process should involve robust challenges to ensure
efficiency, effectiveness and economy of those service based budgets;

Makes any necessary arrangements so that, particularly while the current
economic conditions prevail, strict caution is observed around estimates of costs
of proposed projects/schemes (provided in support of decisions around those
projects/schemes) with a view to supporting realistic budgetary allocations being
made that more closely align with the costs identified for the projects/schemes
following procurement in respect of those projects;

Records that the failure of the External Auditors (to conclude in a timely fashion
the Audit of the Council’s accounts for 2020/21) is an impediment to good
governance, including through this Overview and Scrutiny process, and to
support the sterling efforts by the Council’s Audit Committee to address this
failure with the External Auditors;

Concurs that, for future years, the Community Leadership Overview and Scrutiny
Committee, shall be requested to examine and enquire into the spend in relation
to grants to statutory and voluntary sector partners and to submit its findings to
the Resources & Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee in time for its
budget scrutiny process;

Page 7



Resources and Services Overview and 11 January 2023
Scrutiny Committee

f)

i)

Takes measures (without delay) to ensure that the Housing Stock Survey of the
Council’'s homes is commenced at the earliest opportunity (with a view to it being
completed within 2023/24), that regular updates on the Survey be made to all
Councillors and that steps be taken to dispose of vacant Council homes that
have particular long term maintenance issues with a view to the disposal sum
being re-invested in properties that are easier to maintain and, potentially,
meeting housing need locally more closely;

Supports the statements to the Resources & Services Overview and Scrutiny
Committee, that the New Homes Bonus for 2023/24 be held without being
allocated until after the 4 May 2023 elections;

Proposes to Council that the shortfall between income and expenditure which
would otherwise occur in 2023/24 be met by utilising the Forecast Risk Fund and
that the use of the Corporate Investment Plan ‘Reserve’ and Building for the
Future Use be applied to balance the budget in 2024/25 if required; and

Arranges that an update on the approved and pipeline schemes within/through
the Corporate Investment Plan, since its creation, being submitted to the
Resources & Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s meeting on 21
February 2023 to enable that Committee to undertake an enquiry into the
process around that Plan.

The meeting was declared closed at 4.00 pm

Chairman

Page 8



Resources and Services Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

Resources and Services Overview and Services Committee — 11 January

2023

Questions to Portfolio Holders on the Budget

Question

Question

Question to be asked

Answer from Portfolio

to which

from

Portfolio

Member of

Holder

the

Committee

(followed by
supplementary
question(s) based on
response — initially from
questioner — and others
only | time permits)

Holder

(If time is tight the
question and the
response may be read
into the record rather
than spoken)

Clir Porter,
Portfolio
Holder for
Leisure
and
Tourism
(from 12
noon to
12.30pm)

Clir Barry

We have heard about
the severe financial
challenges  for  the
Council corporately over
the next three years.
From the Outturn Report
submitted to Cabinet on
15 July 2022, the actual
expenditure in  your
Portfolio area  was
£7.062m. This is the
second largest budgeted
net expenditure of any
Portfolio Holder. So how
do you plan to support
the Council meet the
budget challenges we
face next financial year
and the two years after
that?

| thank ClIr Barry for his
question. Due to the
significant financial
pressure faced by the
Council, | have asked
Officer’s to prepare a full
review of options to
reduce subsidies and
make savings. It is
prudent at this stage that
we consider every option
available to us, based on
their respective cost and
subsequent impact on
Council priorities. That
will allow a balanced
decision to be taken
about the future direction.
Significant procurement
processes have taken
place over recent months

You will be aware that
the Council has already
taken the difficult
decision to no longer
invest in joint use
facilities, owned by an
external organisation. A
decision on how to
allocate respective
budgets for these
facilities has yet to be
taken.

Clir Barry

If not answered in the

| thank ClIr Barry for his

Page 9




Resources and Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

response to the above:

What specifically has
been implemented/spent
this year to reduce
energy usage in leisure
and tourism facilities?
What plans are there to
help reduce energy use
in those facilities next
year?

question.

The following has been
implemented in our Sport
and Leisure Facilities to
reduce our energy
consumption and reduce
costs:

Sensor Lighting in

Sports Facilities
and Princes
Theatre

- LED Lighting in
Sports Facilities
and Princes
Theatre

- New Air Handling
Unit in the Clacton
Leisure Centre
Wellbeing Zone

- Timers have been
installed to the
Theatre heating
and air movement
systems to restrict
to essential use

- Variable Speed
Drive Pumps in
Swimming Pool
Circulation Systems

Subject to funding and
respective decisions, the
follow projects are being
considered for next year:

- Swimming Pool
Covers at the
Council’'s Sports
Facilities

- Quotations are
being sought for a
company to design
a heat pump
system for Clacton

Page 10




Resources and Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

Leisure Centre and
Building
Management
Systems for Walton
on the Naze
Lifestyles.

« Weare
looking at a
proposal to
remove the oil
fired boiler at
Clacton
Leisure
Centre

. A consultant
is developing
the business
case for solar
power on TDC
estate,
including our
leisure
facilities

Further to the above, the

service is resolved to
consider energy
efficiency in all its
technical procurement

processes and moving
forward, will not be
purchasing any lighting
fixtures that have an LED
alternative.

Clir Barry

Can you outline the
events the Council put
on/financially supported
in  2022/23, with the
expenditure on each and
whether you regard this

| thank ClIr Barry for his
question.

Clacton Airshow
Cost: £138,000

as providing a good An Economic
return on that Impact Evaluation
investment?  Will those Report  prepared
events be repeated in by an external
2023/247 organisation using
nationally

Page 11




Resources and Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

recognised
modelling data
estimated that the
2022 Airshow
contributed a net
value of
approximately
£12,155,000 net
income to the area
with 166  jobs
sustained. During
a recent Town
Centre survey,
40% of
businesses
suggested they
did more trade
during events like

the Airshow
lHluminate Festival
(Harwich)

Cost: £65,000

At this stage an
economic impact
assessment has
not been
commissioned for
llluminate, there is
no formal value for
money
assessment.
Feedback from
local businesses
suggests that the
several thousand
visitors bought
significant local
business to the

area. The
presence of
regional news

crews and wider
regional media,
will have raised

Page 12




Resources and Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

the  profile  of
Tendring.

Tour Series
Cost: £90,000

At this stage an
economic impact
assessment has not

been provided for the
Tour Series. In addition
to the regional media (as
per llluminate), this event
received national and
international television
coverage, via a highlights
programme on ITV4 and
Eurosport.

We were pleased with
the outcome of all
events, particularly after
an extremely challenging
two years, where mass
participation events were
not possible. That being
said, it is only right that
we now review
everything the Council
does, which will include
the events programme

A decision on which
events take place in 2023
will take place imminently
and following that, a
longer term review of the
Council’s events
programme will be
carried out, together with
wider scrutiny of the
Council’s budgets before
the end of 2023.

Clir What direction have you | | thank Clir Stephenson
Stephenson | given officers in | for his question. | have
reviewing fees and | directed Officers to

Page 13




Resources and Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

for
you

charges
services/functions
are responsible for?

undertake a root and
branch review of all fees
and charges under my
portfolio. An evaluation
of that work is currently
taking place, so balanced
decisions can be taken
prior to the decision
being published.

In some cases the
direction to Officers has
been to consider how the
service subsidy can be
reduced through prudent
setting of charges, e.g.
Sports Facilities, Clacton
Airshow. In others, |
have asked Officers to
make recommendations
as to how fees and
charges can contribute
towards essential
expenditure in that
particular service area,
e.g. Beach Huts.

We must be mindful of
the impact of an increase
in fees and charges on
our residents, which the
review currently taking
place will do. Of course,
we are charging not
trading: we are setting
fees to best cover our
costs, or manage the
level of service subsidy,
we are not seeking to
make a surplus.

Clir M
Stephenson

What is known of the
probability of cliff
slippages at the sea
front in Clacton-on-Sea
and/or Holland-on-Sea
over the next three years
and what funding is

Page 14




Resources and Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

provided for in the
Council's  budget to
address the costs of
remedial action at those
slippage sites in each of
those three years?

Clir M
Stephenson

What is known of the
levels of beach erosion
and the need for
recharge in Clacton-on-
Sea and/or Holland-on-
Sea over the next three
years and what funding
is provided for in the
Council’'s  budget to
address the costs of
remedial action at those
beach erosion sites in
each of those three
years?

Page 15




Resources and Services Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

Question to Question Question to be asked Answer from Portfolio
which from (followed by | Holder
Portfolio Member _of | supplementary (If time is tight the
Holder the question(s) based on | question and the
Committee | response — initially from | response may be read
questioner — and others | into the record rather
only | time permits) than spoken)
Clir  Michael | Clir Barry We have heard about the | The largest
Talbot, severe financial | expenditure area
Portfolio challenges for the | within the Portfolio is
Holder for Council corporately over | the collection of
Environment the next three vyears. | domestic refuse. As a
and  Public From the Outturn Report | statutory responsibility
Space submitted to Cabinet on | the Council cannot
(from 15 July 2022, the actual | escape the costs
12.30pm to expenditure in  your | involved or the
1.00pm) Portfolio area was | increasing costs
£9.701m.  This is the | brought about by
largest budgeted net | changing government
expenditure of any | requirements. The
Portfolio Holder. So how | officer team is already

do you plan to support
the Council meet the
budget challenges we
face next financial year
and the two years after
that?

the re-
of this
future

working on
procurement
service  for
years as the
Committee knows.
Part of that exercise
will include member
and market
engagement, aimed at
optimising the value
compromises  within
that. Additionally the
government has
indicated the provision
of additional burdens
funding in relation to
changes in waste and

recycling
requirements. We
remain  vigilant in

order to ensure that
appropriate provision
is made.
Outside

of the

Page 16




Resources and Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

statutory service there
are likely to be some
very tough choices
ahead.

The officer teams
have already been
active in:

Seeking, maximising
and using grant and
other funding such as
s106 monies,
Levelling up Parks,
tree planting and other
funding sources. The
volunteering
programme in open
spaces is gathering
strength  with  the
material benefit of
promoting wellbeing in
the communities.

The officer teams are
engaged in a range of
small initiatives,
subject to decisions
and approvals to
reduce costs such as:
Partial switching from
bedding to perennial
planting, rewilding of
some areas,
developing charging
and control policies for
events, offering direct
cremations,
introducing  charges
for recycling container
replacements and
developing options for
revised waste and
recycling collections.

There are also more
wide ranging options
for developing new
income streams to the
Council under

Page 17




Resources and Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

consideration that may

require closer
examination of risk,
but with greater

potential rewards. This

includes:

e The development
of a second chapel
along with wake
room facilities at
Weeley
Crematorium,

e partnership with EV
charge point
operators for the
use of Council land
for electric vehicle
charging points.

e Charging for use of
some public
conveniences,

e partnerships for
green waste
disposal /
composting.

e Beach hut
construction and
sale / lease.

e Potential provision
of services to
partner
organisations.

Care is needed in

these areas in order to

work within restrictions
and to manage risk.

Clir Scott

Om 11 October, | read a
press release from the
Council indicating that a
small fee was to be
introduced for
replacement recycling
boxes provided by the
Council and increased
charges for brown bins
and for the garden waste

The charges  for
containers will start in
April 2023. My
decision to implement
that was made earlier
and published in the
last few days.

The fee for the garden
waste service has not
been reviewed since it

Page 18




Resources and Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

service itself. Can you
help the Committee with
the approval process for
those fees and whether
they are to be introduced
from 1 April 20237

was introduced and
the proposed increase
reflects increased
costs of delivering the
service over time.

The  provision  of
containers for
recycling has been
ongoing since
introduction and a
large number of free
containers has been
issued. It is
appropriate  now to
introduce fair charging
for new containers
seeking to recognise
budgetary issues
while acknowledging
that a saturation of
containers necessary
for recycling purposes
may have been
reached and that
households can use
any container (in
which the contents
can be identified) to
present recycling.

Clir Scott

Other than the fees and
charges mentioned just
now, what direction have

you given officers in
reviewing fees and
charges for
services/functions you

are responsible for?

My request to the
officer teams was to
prepare proposals that
fairly compromise
between objectives to
reflect rising service
and overall costs,
avoid compromising
the affordability of
services to users while
having regard to the
overall financial
position of the
organisation.

Page 19




Resources and Services Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

Question to Question Question to be asked Answer from Portfolio
which from (followed by | Holder
Portfolio Member _ of | supplementary (If time is tight the
Holder the question(s) based on | question and the
Committee response — initially from | response may be
questioner — and others | read into the record
only | time permits) rather than spoken)
Clir Paul | CliIr Page 47 of the papers for | These charges relate
Honeywood, | Stephenson | today: in the main to
Portfolio Line 5 references Utility | communal power
Holder for costs. For 2023/24 this | supplies and heating
Housing is showing as costing | in our blocks of flats
(from 2.00pm ££505K. Can you set out | and sheltered
to 2.30pm) detail about the utilities | housing schemes.
and the facilities that they
(online to be relate to and the extent to | Service charges are
arranged) which these are offset in | levied to tenants and
service charges? leaseholders having
Housing regard to statutory
Revenue caps on the total
Account rents that can be
charged. We
anticipate that £164k
will be recovered in
2023/24.
Whilst the  costs
recovered are much
lower than the costs
incurred, we must be
mindful of the current
cost of living crisis
and have limited the
increase in service
charges to 7% in line
with the statutory cap
on social housing
rent. There is also a
large  degree of
volatility in the energy
markets and we hope
that the anticipated
expenditure is the
worst case scenario.
Clir Scott Pages 39 and 47 of the | The Council has
papers for today: responsibilities  both

Page 20




Resources and Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

Line 3 — Revenue
Contribution to the major
repairs allowance — This
includes the replacement

of kitchens in Council
Homes. Are  you
confident that this
expenditure is  being
spent efficiently? | have
reports of certain

properties with no new
kitchen and others where
there are multiple
replacements in the
same period.

to review kitchens at
least as frequently as
20 years in line with
the Decent Home
Standard. They also
have to be replaced
in shorter timescales

if they are in disrepair
for any reason. Of
course it is
regrettable if

components do not
reach their full
lifetimes for whatever
reason but the
Council cannot avoid
the need for
replacement if it
exists.

Clir Scott

Can you update the
Committee for 2022/23 to
date as to how many
Right to Buy properties
have come out of the
Council’s Housing Stock
and how many homes
have been acquired
through the different
routes of being gifted,
built or bought? What is
the net gain/loss so far
this year?

During the financial
year to date the
Council has sold eight
homes through the
Right to Buy scheme
and one  further
property was sold as
it was no longer
considered suitable to
retain in our housing
stock.

In total 16 homes
have been acquired

Clir
Stephenson

What direction have you
given officers in
reviewing fees and
charges for
services/functions you
are responsible for?

My request to the
officer teams was to
prepare proposals
that fairly compromise
between objectives to
reflect rising service

and overall costs,
avoid compromising
the affordability of

services to users
while having regard to
the overall financial
position of the
organisation.

Page 21




Resources and Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

Clir
Stephenson

This time last year you
advised this Committee
that “A budget has also
been included for a Stock
Condition Survey, with a
budget of £100k, the
results of which will
assist in setting

future budgets.” Can you
update the Committee
with the use of that
£100K and the stock
condition survey? | ask
this given the tragic
circumstances in
Rotherham where a 2
year old boy lost his life

with  the  contribution
mould in his Council
home. The importance

of knowing the full extent
of the condition of
Council Homes (as a
landlord) is vital.

Work is under way to
procure the condition
survey. The
organisation needs to
refresh information on
property condition,
integrate existing data

held in various
formats, capture
ongoing incoming
data as well as

combining all into a
functional database. It
is impossible  to
complete a physical
survey of all of the
stock can be
achieved within the
budget. A system of
surveying
archetypical or
beacon properties is
an industry standard
way to address this. It
is planned to combine
such information with
other data held and
information to be
gathered during the
course of the various
scheduled and
routine  visits and
inspections  carried
out by the team and
contractors.

Naturally the teams
are saddened to hear
of the tragic events in
Rotherham. The
Corporate Director is
leading a task group
with the objective of
reducing the risk of
damp and mould in
our stock not being
properly addressed.

Page 22




Resources and Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

Clir
Stephenson

Pages 37 and 47 of the
papers for today:

Where Council Homes
are vacant, the Council
picks up the cost of
Council Tax liability. It is
therefore in the interests
of the Housing Revenue
Account (and therefore
our tenants) that we
reduce the amount and
length of time Council

Houses are vacant. | see
that Council Tax on
empty properties has

been reassessed back to
£130K for this financial
year rather than the
anticipated £76K. What
assurances can be given
that the £78K figure for
next year wil be
achieved given  the
experience this year?

Indeed. There are
also utility costs, lost
rent and risk of
damage or intruders.
The Chief executive
has chaired an officer
group during the
course of the year
which has supported
other  officers to
substantially reduce
void times.

The officer teams
have also brought
forward work on a
small number of long
term void properties
which has brought
them back into use.

Void properties and
the costs of them are
a fact of life and |
can’t make promises
to eliminate them but
| am certain that the
team has taken
positive steps to
address an issue and
that further initiatives
and ongoing effort will
minimise the cost and
lost opportunities.

Page 23




Resources and Services Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

Question to | Question Question to be asked Answer from Portfolio
which from (followed by | Holder
Portfolio Member _ of | supplementary (If time is tight the
Holder the question(s) based on | question and the
Committee response — initially from | response may be read
questioner — and others | into the record rather
only | time permits) than spoken)
Clir Carlo | ClIr From page 27 of the|As | have mentioned
Guglielmi, Stephenson | papers for today: before, the long term
Portfolio As Portfolio Holder for | plan has given us a
Holder  for Corporate Finance, your | really strong platform
Corporate report to Cabinet on 16 | against which we can
Finance & December identified | consider our longer
Governance (before the use of | term financial position.
(Deputy balances, reserves etc.) | We have in effect
Leader of a deficit in the General | given the new
Council) Fund of £3.433m for | Administration  from
(from 2023/24, £3.722m for | May this year the time
2.30pm to 2024/25 and a need for | to carefully consider
3.00pm) savings of £4.150m in |what actions are
2025/26 to avoid a deficit | required to deliver the
in that year. | accept that | long-term financial

Government funding
through the Revenue
Support Grant of £1.2m
in 2023/24 was not
known  when  these
figures were prepared.
But should residents be
worried about the
services they rely upon
over the coming years?

stability of the Council.

Given the speed in
which the current
shortfall has
materialised, as

nobody could have
forecasted the toxic
combinations of
events which have led
to it, it is without doubt

that the New
Administration will
face some tough

decisions in terms of
the current forecast

and any financial
framework that s
established to manage
the associated
process. It will, of
course, need to
include the

consultation with our
residents as

Page 24




Resources and Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

necessary, to make
sure we can continue
to reflect their
expectations as far as
is reasonably
possible.
Clir | believe that the last | As set out in a report
Stephenson | point at which the | to Cabinet in July, it
Corporate Investment | was highlighted that
Plan list of approved and | further reporting of the
pipeline schemes was | Corporate Investment
last published for | Plan would be delayed
Cabinet's meeting in | until such time as the
March 2022. Are you in | Council had a clearer
apposition to provide us | position on its future
with an update on those | financial position,
schemes and any | given the scale of the
subsequently approved | challenges emerging
or pipeline schemes | during the year. This
added to the Plan since? | still remains the case.
However, a number of
urgent items have
been subject to
separate decisions
during the year along
with the unavoidable
items set out in the
budget report that was
considered by Cabinet
at its meeting on 16
December.
| am happy to provide
an update in due
course as part of
‘relaunching’ the
Corporate Investment
Plan process going
into 2023/24.
Clir From page 25 of the|In terms of the 4
Stephenson | papers today: remaining years of the
| see that in 2023/24 | current forecast
there is a proposal to | period, I have
apply £1.433m from the | affectively looked at
Corporate Investment | 2023/24 and 2024/25

Page 25




Resources and Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

Plan Reserve and
£2.339m from the
Building for the Future
Reserve to ‘balance’
what would otherwise be
the General Fund deficit
in that year. However,
the Forecast Risk Fund
exists to provide that
type of support for the
General Fund and that is
not proposed to be used
in 2023/24. | understand
that it is then proposed to
be used in 2024/25. But
my question is why the
Forecast Risk Fund was
not used first. Local
Government Finance
changes year to year —
just look at the change
from last year to this one
— so would it not have
been better to propose to
use the Forecast Risk
Fund first before
exhausting the Corporate
Investment Plan and
Building for the Future
Reserves?

together, with the
proposed use  of
funding simply

reflecting a practical
approach. However
given the funding that
has recently been
announced as part of
the Government’s
Local Government’s
Financial Settlement,
this will be reviewed in
terms of updating
financial position for
reporting to Cabinet
later in January.

Clir
Stephenson

From page 25 of the
papers today:

| note that the former
Council Offices in
Weeley are still costing
this Council £60K in this
financial year and a
projected £50K in next
financial year. Could you
remind the Committee of
the decision to dispose
of the Offices, when the
Council ceased to use
the offices for operational
purposes and when the
offices will be disposed
of? The question is then

While I fully
understand, and share
the same frustration,
as we too very much
hoped that the
disposal of the former
Council Offices site in
Weeley would have
taken place by now,
the decision was a
rather complex one
than simply an open
market transaction.
The Council has a
duty of care to
maximise the value of
the site via

Page 26




Resources and Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

whether these costs
were in any way
avoidable?

development to deliver
new homes, including
new and high quality
Council housing for
local people. Such
decisions include the
appropriation of land
for planning purposes,
planning permission,
procurement, the
requirements of the
Council’s Housing
Acquisitions and
Development  Policy
along with detailed
negotiations with
relevant parties.

The various activities
have remained on-
going throughout 2022
and will continue in
2023 with the aim of
concluding the
disposal this year.

In terms of
complexities, it is also
worth highlighting that
the  sequence  of
events have to be
carefully considered to
protect the Council as
far as possible such
as securing / receiving
consideration for the
land ahead of the land
transfer, which in this
case will be homes
rather than monetary.

Cllr Griffiths

From page 41 of the
papers today:

A budget of £0.6m was
included in the HRA
Capital programme for
the redevelopment of the
Spendells site.

As with any capital
investment  decision,
an estimate of the
likely project costs
would be determined
as part of the various
steps in the decision

Page 27




Resources and Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

However, the current
estimate is that it will
cost £1.4m. Is the
Council’s pricing strategy
fit for purpose?
Otherwise the Council
will be approving
schemes on one basis
that then turns out to be
a fraction of the actual
cost.

making process. The
actual cost of a project
can only really be
determined once the
associated
procurement process
has been undertaken.
It is also important to
highlight that if a
scheme is approved
based on an
estimated cost that is
subsequently higher,
then a further decision
would be required as
to whether to continue
or not with the project,
which would involve
the usual value for
money / business
case considerations.

Based on the above, it
is not necessarily a
question of a ‘pricing
strategy’ not being fit
for purpose, but rather
around the strength of
the wider governance
processes that protect
the Council’'s overall
position.

Notwithstanding  the
above, the accuracy of
initial estimates is an
important  point to
raise, which | will
highlight as part of
future investment
decisions going
forward; we  must
however all be very
mindful that the
current turbulent
situation from an
inflation point of view

Page 28




Resources and Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

has caused havoc in
many areas,
especially with the raw
cost of materials
spiralling almost out of
control.

Clir
Stephenson

The Council is nearly half
way through its 10 year
financial strategy. I
cannot see that the
report references that
strategy. Accepting that
any forecast can only
reflect what is known, but
will Cabinet receive an
updated or extended 10
year financial strategy
which includes a review
of what has occurred in
the earlier years of that
strategy?

The review of the
long-term strategy is
effectively undertaken
each year as part of
the wider budget
setting cycle. As set
out in earlier reports, it
is proposed to review
the long-term
approach during 2023,
which will be a key
considered for the
New  Administration
after May.

Clir
Stephenson

What direction have you
given officers in
reviewing fees and
charges for
services/functions  you
are responsible for?

This high level
direction was set out
in the report
considered by Cabinet
on 16 December 2022
— hopefully you are
therefore happy for
me to reference page
145 of that agenda
rather than reproduce
the detailed
information here.

In terms of the
services / functions |
am responsible for we
have applied a 12%
increase which  will
produce an extra £10k
of income, with the
exception of Solicitor’'s
hourly rate which has
been capped at 6% as
this is an area where
the Council cannot

Page 29




Resources and Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

make a profit but to
recover costs only,
therefore a lower
increase around the
rate of the pay award,

which Unison
averaged at 7% is
justifiable. The 12%

increase also applies
to any external hire of
the Connaught Room,
the Whitelaw Room,

Council Tax on empty
homes with a view to
encouraging occupation
of those homes. Can
you tell me how many
empty homes in the
District there were at the
start of the year (subject
to the premium) and how
many there are
currently? And do you
regard the introduction of
the premium to be
working?

and the Committee
Room.
Clir The Council has entered | As discussed
Stephenson | into the agreement with | previously, shared
Essex County Council to | services have been
provide procurement | recognised as a
services for it.  What | potential element of
other areas for shared | the Council's wider
services  with  other | response to the
Councils are being | financial challenges
considered? that it faces rather
than an issue that has
been explored in any
detail at the present
time.
Clir For 2022/23, the Council | The  most  recent
Stephenson | introduced a premium for | position was set out in

the reported to Full
Council in November
2022, so hopefully you
are happy for me to
reference page 142 of
that agenda rather
than reproduce that
information here.

In terms of second
homes, the Council
does not have the
power to levy such
premiums at the
present time. As set

Page 30




Resources and Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

As an addition to the

above, would it be
possible to introduce a
similar ~ premium  for
second homes in the

District where individuals
live elsewhere and only

out in the report Full

Council highlighted
above, the
Government are
however considering

this and so it will be
kept under review.

papers for today:

| note the proposal to
reduce the budget to
support the Tendring-
Colchester Borders
Garden Community from

£1.3m to £0.8m. Is
Cabinet confident that
this reduced level is

sufficient to meet the
need for support for the
project? | ask this given
the fact that the delivery
timetable for the Garden
Community will span,
maybe, several general
elections and
Government policy will
no doubt change. And
how does the Cabinet
consider that the costs of
public open space and
public buildings/facilities
in the Garden
Community will be met.

visit the District
occasionally?
Clir Griffiths | On page 25 of the | As partof reducing the

budget from £1.3m to
£0.800m, the issues
raised were discussed
with the relevant
Service. The Council’s
involvement in the
project largely reflects
its planning authority /

local plan
responsibilities with an
additional and on-
going local plan
budget available to
potentially support the
project moving
forwards.

It is also important to
highlight that as part
of the on-going
development of the
project, ‘Stewardship’
options to provide the
necessary funding to
support the on-going
costs of assets such
as open space and
public facilities will be
explored, with the aim
of ensuring that such
costs do not fall to the
Council.

The Members
Steering Group has
been very clear with

Page 31




Resources and Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

Officers to task them
to bring forward
Stewardship options in
the very near future so
that a strong and
sustainable model is
put in place at the
earliest opportunity.

Clir
Stephenson

On page 14 of the
papers for today:

| note the statement
about the New Homes
Bonus. As | understand
it, there is anticipated to
be £1.4m to be received
in 2022/23. What are
your intentions around
allocating the use of that

funding?

| have referred to the
New Administration
several times above
and | think it is
important that they
have financial
flexibility to respond to
the challenges that lie

ahead. | therefore
believe that it is
important that the

current Administration
provides a strong
financial foundation for
the New
Administration, and |
propose setting this
funding aside so that it
forms part of the
associated handover
process in May.

Page 32




Resources and Services Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2023

Question to | Question Question to be asked Answer from Portfolio
which from Member | (followed by | Holder
Portfolio of the | supplementary question(s) | (If time is tight the
Holder Committee based on response - |question and the
initially from questioner — | response may be
and others only | time |read into the record
permits) rather than spoken)
Clr Neil | ClIr We have heard about the
Stock OBE, | Stephenson | severe financial challenges
Leader of for the Council corporately
the Council over the next three years.
(from What is your assessment
3.00pm to of those challenges and
3.30pm) the plans to meet those
challenges?
Clir Do you still believe in the
Stephenson | value of Freeport East and

the financial gain this is
supposed to bring?

The Committee may have further questions of the Leader based
on the questioning/responses from individual Portfolio Holders

during the day.

In writing, with responses written into the record of the meeting, the question
below to be sent to:
Clir Jeff Bray, Portfolio Holder for Planning
Clir Lynda McWilliams, Portfolio Holder for Partnerships
Clir Mary Newton, Portfolio Holder for Business & Economic Growth
“What direction have you given officers in reviewing fees and charges for
services/functions you are responsible for?”

The response to this question are as follows:

Clir Lynda McWilliams, Portfolio Holder for Partnerships
“I reqularly meet with the Assistant Director, Partnerships and other senior
managers across the Department to review all high-level performance
priorities and targets, including budgets. Each of the managers provide
me with a regular update about progress across their service areas. We
discuss budgets, income, bids that are being considered for various
projects, that link to priorities. | encourage all of my Officers to seek
funding opportunities where possible to deliver priorities that support the
residents of Tendring. As part of my advice and direction, | also ensure
that the Council’s governance processes are followed.”

Clir Mary Newton, Portfolio Holder for Business & Economic Growth

Page 33




Resources and Services Overview and 11 January 2023
Scrutiny Committee

“There are no published fees and charges which fall under the jurisdiction
of Business and Economic Growth”

Clir Jeff Bray, Portfolio Holder for Planning
“‘Awaited”

Page 34



Resources and Services Overview and 1 February 2023
Scrutiny Committee

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE RESOURCES AND SERVICES OVERVIEW
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE,
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 1ST FEBRUARY, 2023 AT 7.30 PM
IN THE COMMITTEE ROOM - TOWN HALL, STATION ROAD, CLACTON-ON-SEA,
CO15 1SE

Present: Councillors M Stephenson (Chairman), Scott (Vice-Chairman), Allen,
Amos, Barry, Codling, Griffiths and Morrison

Also Present: Councillor Baker and Clifton

In Attendance: | Lisa Hastings (Deputy Chief Executive & Monitoring Officer),
Richard Barrett (Assistant Director (Finance and IT) & Section 151
Officer), Michael Carran (Assistant Director (Economic Growth &
Leisure)), Keith Simmons (Head of Democratic Services and
Elections), John Higgins (Head of IT and Corporate Resilience) and
Keith Durran (Committee Services Officer)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

An apology was received from Councillor Skeels (no substitution).

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillors Allen and Barry both declared a personal interest in the Beach Hut item as
both were Town Councillors for Town Councils that owned Beach Huts with in the
District of Tendring.

QUESTIONS ON NOTICE PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 38

There were none on this occasion.

TASK AND FINISH GROUP - SCRUTINY OF THE COUNCIL'S PROPOSALS TO
REVIEW THE BEACH HUT STRATEGY

The Committee heard that throughout the enquiry, the Task and Finish Group (T&FG)
looked into the issues which the emerging Beach Hut Strategy proposed to address. In
order to understand how the various issues would impact on the Council, residents,
Beach Hut Licence Holders and other stakeholders, the T&FG spent time listening and
asking questions of various stakeholders.

In preparation for Cabinet considering the emerging Beach Hut Strategy, the T&FG
understood that the Council had consulted on the key issues included in the draft
document. The T&FG Group reviewed each of those items to establish a view and
make recommendations where appropriate.

For clarity, the eight points which formed the consultation were listed, together with what

the Council was minded to implement once the strategy was adopted. The T&FG
findings and comments were listed below each item:

Page 35




Resources and Services Overview and 1 February 2023
Scrutiny Committee

1. RENTING OF BEACH HUTS
What was the Council considering?

“The Council is proposing to issue commercial agreements for those wishing to
rent out Beach Huts for more than 10 days per year, which will regulate the
market for rentals. It is proposed that commercial agreements are issued to
those requesting them, but based on a criteria. This will cover key points such
as accessibility and safety of huts, to ensure those with commercial agreements
are able to provide a high quality service and support the appropriate points set
out in the Council’s Tourism Strategy. New agreements would be through a
lease and not a licence and as such, the cost would be identified by establishing
a market value, which would increase the amount paid. A specific clause will be
included on all other agreements to prohibit renting for more than 10 days per
year. The annual charge for the lease will vary from location to location and will
be based on an independent valuation”.

Comments from the Task and Finish Group

- The T&FG expressed concern about the potential cost of the lease and the
proposed terms and conditions, which were unknown. The T&FG requested
that Cabinet ensure future charges were set at a fair and reasonable level.

- The T&FG were originally concerned with the requirement to tender (in the
original proposal which was consulted), but agreed with the new proposal for
an application process;

- The T&FG expressed concern about the significant administration processes
that may be involved in implementing the strategy and the subsequent cost
to the Council of processing leases.

2. OWNING BEACH HUTS
What was the Council’s considering?
“The Council is considering whether to limit new beach huts licences to one per
household. The Council is considering honouring multiple existing licences to
one household. However, if a household already has a beach hut, then they
would not be able to apply for a second licence. This would ensure that Beach
Hut are more accessible to local people”.

Comments from the Task and Finish Group

- The Task and Finish Working Group agreed to the principal of this point

3. THE CURRENT BEACH HUT SPECIFICATION
What was the Council’s considering?
“The Council is minded to work through a review of the current specification and
consider adding new products, such as modern cladding which do not currently
meet the specification. This can also consider how beach huts could support the
Council’s carbon neutral agenda”.

Comments from the Task and Finish Group

Page 36



Resources and Services Overview and 1 February 2023
Scrutiny Committee

- The T&FG were supportive of bright colours and vibrant designs for Beach
Huts. This followed their visit to Beach Hut locations during the enquiry.

- The T&FG requested that Cabinet acknowledge the differences in locations
along the Tendring seafronts and their respective unique features, such as
cliff slopes. Following the enquiry, the T&FG noted that appropriate
adaptations in parts of the District were essential for reasons of access and
should be included in the revised specification, e.g. appropriate access steps
on cliff slopes. This should be considered on a location-by-location basis.

- The T&FG requested that a map was attached to the emerging strategy to
clearly define which land was owned by Tendring District Council. During the
enquiry, they noted that some Beach Hut locations were located on private
land and were not under the jurisdiction of the Council

- The T&FG were minded to note and requested that no designs should be
permitted that were contrary to current or emerging legislation.

- The T&FG requested that high standards were maintained on Beach Huts
and dilapidated Beach Huts should be subject to appropriate enforcement
action. This should be proportionate to the agreement holders personal
circumstances, but ensured the design specification standards were
maintained.

4. BEACH HUT ADAPTATIONS
What was the Council considering?
“Following a review of the specification, the Council is minded to work with
licence holders to ensure a removal of those adaptations which fall outside of the
revised specification’.

Comments from the Task and Finish Group

- The T&FG requested that Cabinet were mindful of their previous comments
on the revision of the specification.

- The T&FG requested that Cabinet set a reasonable timescale for adaptations
to be removed, which fall outside of the revised specification. The
timescales recommended was a period of two years.

5. MONITORING OF BEACH HUT LICENCE CONDITIONS & COMPLAINT
MANAGEMENT
What was the Council considering?
“The Council is considering additional staffing resources to ensure licence
conditions are adhered to and taking appropriate enforcement action where
necessary. The Council will also need to consider how this would be funded to
ensure complaints are acted upon in a timely manner”.

Comments from the Task and Finish Group

- Where conditions were included in Beach Hut agreements, the T&FG asked
that there should be appropriate resources to take action when they were not
being adhered to. They were mindful that it was not good practice to allow
conditions to be ignored and they cannot be addressed without appropriate
resources.

6. AN IMPROVED DIGITAL SERVICE FOR LICENCE HOLDERS

Page 37



Resources and Services Overview and 1 February 2023
Scrutiny Committee

What was the Council’s considering?

“The Council is considering installing new software to improve services to licence
holders and allow them to complete processes online. This would also be used
to gather and record appropriate information about conditions, including which
huts are licenced to rent and to make complaints easier to report and manage”.

Comments from the Task and Finish Working Group

- The T&FG asked that those without access or ability to use digital platforms
are still able to deal with a member of staff. As such, sufficient resources
should be in place.

7. BUILDING NEW BEACH HUTS
What was the Council’s considering?
“The Council is considering whether to build new beach huts around the District,
which will be accessible through a lease. The amount of new huts will depend
on the space available in appropriate seafront locations and the demand for new
huts from local people”.

Comments from the Task and Finish Group

- The T&FG requested that any new Beach Huts were made available through
an affordable set of fees and charges

- The T&FG requested that any Council built Beach Huts built which were sold
in the future were done so directly and through an equitable process; and not
to use third parties.

8. A MOVE FROM LICENCES TO LEASES

What was the Council considering?

“It is suggested that licences are phased out over the next year and are replaced
by leases from 1 April 2024. Leases will also provide those with beach huts on
Council land with additional security of tenure, which they do not currently have
with a licence agreement. The cost of a lease will increase the annual amount
paid by those with beach huts, which will be identified by establishing the market
value once the strategy has been adopted. The annual charge for the lease will
vary from location to location and will be based on an independent valuation.

Further to this, consideration has been given as to how the revised specification
could be embedded into Beach Hut Agreements. As such, the conditions for
which beach hut users have to comply with for design, would form part of the
agreement”.

Comments from the Task and Finish Group
- Concern was expressed by the T&FG about the potential cost of lease
agreements and the proposed terms and conditions — which were at the time

of the meetings, unknown. T&FG requested that Cabinet ensure future
charges were set at a fair and reasonable level.

Page 38



Resources and Services Overview and 1 February 2023
Scrutiny Committee

- The T&FG requested that consideration be given to including a condition in
future agreements, that third party Estate Agents were no longer able to sell
Beach Huts on behalf of their respective owners. This would enable the
Council to maintain a control on this process and ensure future sales were
not priced excessively; and as such be unaffordable to many local people.

After a detailed discussion it was RECOEMMENDED to CABINET that:

a)

The Task and Finish Group recommends the following to the Resources and
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee, to subsequently request that
Cabinet take into account prior to consideration of the draft Beach Hut Strategy,
on 17 February 2023:

The Committee recommends that future charges for lease agreements are set at
a fair and reasonable level. This is relevant for both commercial and mainstream
leases. This should also be appropriate for any new Beach Huts made available
for purchase or lease in the future.

It is recommended that terms and conditions included in lease agreements are
fair and equitable and in consultation with Beach Hut owners.

The Committee recommends that appropriate resources are put in place for
administration involved in implementing the strategy. They asked for
consideration be given to the subsequent cost to the Council of processing
leases and that subsequent costs are reported back to this Committee.

The Committee recommends that bright colours and vibrant designs be included
in the revised design specification for Beach Huts, when this is produced
following adoption.

The Committee recommends that there is acknowledgement of the differences in
seafront locations along the Tendring District and their respective unique
features, such as cliff slopes and how they impact Beach Hut design for the
emerging specification review.

Noting the point above, it is recommended that certain limited Beach Hut
adaptations in parts of the District were included in the future specification for
reasons of access, e.g. appropriate access steps on cliff slopes. This should be
considered on a location-by-location basis.

It is recommended that a map was attached to the emerging strategy to clearly
define which land was owned by Tendring District Council.

Page 39



Resources and Services Overview and 1 February 2023
Scrutiny Committee

i) It is recommended that no Beach Hut designs should be permitted that are
contrary to current or legislation.

i) To ensure high standards were maintained on Beach Huts and their use, it is
recommended that adequate resources should be in place for appropriate
enforcement action.

k) The Committee recommends that a reasonable timescale for adaptations to be
removed which fall outside of the revised specification, is agreed. The timescale
recommended is a period up to two years.

) The Committee recommends that the Council continues to support those without
access or ability to use digital platforms are still able to deal with a member of
staff. As such, sufficient resources should remain in place.

m) That the New Bach Hut Strategy returns to the Resources and Services
Overview and Scrutiny Committee for review in 12 months’ time.

TASK AND FINISH GROUP - CYBER SECURITY

The Committee heard that the Cyber Security T&FG (Task and Finish Group) were
tasked to:

1) To challenge/ better understand the cybersecurity risks, defences, and mitigations
the Council has in place.

Following Full Council 22" November 2022, the T&FG mandate was extended too
additionally:

2) Review different proposals of Members’ access to emails and the current
practice of auto-forwarding to personal email accounts, in line with the
Council’s Risk Management Framework, and make recommendations to
Cabinet and Council along with relevant costings.

During its first meeting the Cyber Security T&FG agreed to use the Department of
Levelling Up Housing and Communities (DLUHC) Cyber Assessment Framework (CAF)
document template as a self-assessment, auditing, and reporting framework template to
review council cyber-security as referenced above.

It was reported to Members that the DLUHC CAF proved relevant to the review of
Members’ access to emails, auto-forwarding of council official business emails to
personal devices and council data stored on personal devices as it included a number of
National Cyber Security Centre (NCSC) compliance statements covering: data security
and understanding, data protection in transit across the UK network, data storage

Page 40



Resources and Services Overview and 1 February 2023
Scrutiny Committee

security, mobile device data security, media equipment sanitisation and disposal, secure
device configuration.

CAF Explanatory Notes
The DLUHC Cyber Assessment Framework (CAF) provided the pragmatic basis to ‘self-
assess’ the Council’'s own cyber security performance across the following activities:

1) Managing Cyber Security (organisational structures, policies, processes,
understanding).

2) Protecting Against Cyber Attack - security measures to protect networks and
systems.

3) Detecting Cyber Security Events ensuring effective security defences/ event
detection.

4) Minimising The Impact of cyber security Incidents and their adverse impact.

The Committee was informed that the self-assessment CAF was a National Cyber
Security Centre (NCSC) assessment document that was a mandatory cyber-security
‘readiness state audit’ document for critical UK national infrastructure providers since
2021. During 2022 the CAF had become mandatory for every central government
department and whilst CAF completion was currently voluntary for local government
DLUHC have repeatedly advised that it would become mandatory during 2023/24.

In this sense the CAF would replace the now defunct Public Services Network (PSN) IT
Health Check annual audit/ certification process reporting local government cyber-
security capabilities and fitness to remain securely connected and sharing data with
central government Department of Works & Pensions (DWP). The reader should note
that several council statutory service functions were completely reliant upon this
connectivity, for example: Council Tax, Housing Benefit administration. Loss/ exclusion
from central government connectivity would quickly stop those services from functioning.

With regards to the outcome, outlined recommendations were made by T&FG Members
with due regard and consideration to:

= The Full Council background information report.

= All Member’s subject-matter comments received considered 23 Jan’23.

= A newly published Information Commissioner’s Office Freedom of Information (FOI)
guidance note considered 23 Jan’23.

Page 41



Resources and Services Overview and 1 February 2023
Scrutiny Committee

» The four costed options provided and their respective financial, cyber-security and
Member-user working practicality satisfaction and non-satisfaction implications
considered 23rd Jan’23.

= A full copy of the council’s Cyber Assessment Framework (CAF). For simplicity,
CAF compliance was reviewed utilising ‘traffic light’ red, amber and green
representing non-compliance, improvements required and full compliance
respectively.

Members heard that following CAF cyber-security compliance self-assessment, the
T&FG identified that the council generally had robust cyber-security arrangements and
working practices in place to manage, protect and safeguard the data that it held to
deliver both statutory and non-statutory services. Its cyber-security event(s) detective
arrangements utilising business industry-standard multi-vendor best-of-breed products
were similarly robust and well managed.

However, the cyber-security self-analysis review also identified some areas of CAF
cyber-security non-compliance, some areas where improvements could be made to
further strengthen the Council’s cyber-security.

The T&FG recommendations reflect improvements necessary to resolve CAF self-
assessment key areas of non-compliance. Key areas considered by the T&FG were:

e Recruitment and resourcing key IT vacancies.
e Risks unresolved for prolonged periods.

e Information retention with data (including personal and sensitive data) stored for
long periods of time with no clear business need.

e Generic account used or shared or default name accounts.
e Training and understanding individuals’ contribution to essential cyber security.
e Formal Adoption of the new Cyber Incident Response Plan (CIRP).

e Members’ email auto-forwarding to personal/ mobile devices, including;
identification and data management, data security in ftransit, physical and/or
technical security protection against unauthorised access, lack of knowledge
around which mobile devices hold data, allowing data to be stored on devices not
managed by your organisation or to at least equivalent standard, lack of security on
mobile devices, device disposal without data sanitisation, security builds that
conform to your baseline or the latest known good configuration version.

After a short discussion the Committee RECOMMENDED to CABINET that:

Page 42



Resources and Services Overview and 1 February 2023
Scrutiny Committee

a) As soon as is possible the Human Resources and Council Tax Committee with
appropriate officers look at the salary(s) being offered for the advertised and unfilled
senior IT posts and including cyber security senior technical positions.

b) By 31/03/23 a Portfolio Holder Cyber Security Working Group be established to
periodically review the Council’s cyber security performance against the Cyber
Assessment Framework (CAF) and/or emerging mandatory security improvements
and requirements.

c) By 31/07/23 the Council’'s Information Retention Policy be reviewed/ revised with
due regard to UK Data Protection Act 2018 data ‘minimisation’ ‘accuracy’ and
‘storage limitation’ and applied throughout the organisation.

d) By 31/05/23 individual (non-generic) account access technologies be costed for
accessing TDC terminals in locations such as leisure centres where numerous
users sharing a terminal due to a retail environment operational need.

e) Commencing no later than May 2023 following the election of the New
Administration Cyber Security and Information Governance training for all members
after every election and for staff in their inductions with periodic refresher training
for both be made mandatory.

f)  As soon as possible in consultation with the Council’s Monitoring Officer, to review
existing Member guidance and explore Member training opportunities as to what
constitutes party political activities in the context of using a TDC email account.

g) As soon as possible the new Cyber Incident Response Plan (CIRP) included as
Appendix F to this report be adopted.

In reviewing the different options of Members’ access to emails, reflecting the Council’s
Risk Management Framework, the recommendations to Full Council that the T&FG are
submitting to the Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee and
onwards to Cabinet are;

h) That post-May 2023 local elections under the New Administration, that the
Member practice of auto-forwarding of emails be ceased; and

Page 43



Resources and Services Overview and 1 February 2023
Scrutiny Committee

)

that subject to the associated funding of £8,000 being identified that the
preferred Option 2 (Appendix D refers) - provision of a standard council-
managed mobile Smartphone in addition to a council-managed laptop - be
provided to those Members that want one to access emails and be contactable
when mobile; or

as an alternative to ‘i above’, that should it not prove possible to fund the
Smartphone costs centrally, then each Member requesting a standard council-
managed mobile Smartphone will be asked to fund the cost from allowances
(circa two hundred pounds per annum).

The meeting was declared closed at 10.35 pm

Chairman

Page 44



Agenda Iltem 5

RESOURCES AND SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
13 MARCH 2023
REPORT OF HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES AND ELECTIONS
A1  WORK PROGRAMMING — INCLUDING MONITORING OF PREVIOUS

RECOMMENDATIONS AND SUMMARY OF FORTHCOMING DECISIONS
(Report prepared by Keith Durran)

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The report provides the Committee with an update on its approved Work Programme for
2022/23 (including progress with enquiries set out in its Work Programme), feedback to
the Committee on the decisions in respect of previous recommendations from the
Committee in respects of enquiries undertaken and a list of forthcoming decisions for
which notice has been given since publication of the agenda for the Committee’s last
meeting.

INVITEES

None

BACKGROUND

The Council commissioned the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) to undertake
an ‘Overview & Scrutiny Development Review’ in 2021 as a way of further improving that
function at the Council. Two relevant recommendations arising from that review were:

“Further strengthening the annual process for developing work
programmes for each O&S committee - Engaging Members, Officers,
partners and the public to prioritise the topics for review. This could include a
selection criteria to identify appropriate topics for the work programme.
Currently the work programme is also the last item on the agenda at O&S
meetings, we would recommend bringing it to the beginning, so it can be given
greater priority and benefit from more considered discussion, rather than being
subject to the inevitable end of meeting fatigue.

Reviewing how the recommendations are made and how impact is
measured — This could include putting the ‘recommendations monitoring report’
at the beginning of agendas to orientate O&S towards outcomes-focused
meetings, alongside an emphasis on finding strong recommendations from
questioning to present to Cabinet (or partners) as improvement or challenge
proposals.”

The Committee has previously received three separate reports on the issues of (1) Work
Programme for 2022/23 (including progress with enquiries set out in its Work Programme),
(2) feedback to the Committee on the decisions in respect of previous recommendations
from the Committee in respects of enquiries undertaken and (3) a list of forthcoming

decisions for which notice has been givgn. sincg publication of the agenda for the
Fagc 4o



Committee’s last meeting.

While (since the CfGS recommendations were made) the three reports referred to have
been earlier in the Committee’s agendas for meetings, the combination of them into one
report seeks to further re-inforce the inter-relationship of the matters previously covered
separately. As such, it is designed to further support consideration of work programming
of the Committee and contribute to addressing progress with the Corporate Plan.

DETAILED INFORMATION

The detailed matters relating to the following matters are set out in the Appendix identified:
(1) Work Programme for 2022/23 — See Appendix A;

(2) feedback to the Committee on the decisions in respect of previous recommendations
from the Committee in respects of enquiries undertaken — see Appendix B; and

(3) a list of forthcoming decisions for which notice has been given since publication of the
agenda for the Committee’s last meeting — See Appendix C.

In considering work programming matters, the Committee is further reminded of the other
recommendations from the CfGS review undertaken in 2021:

“Considering greater use of task and finish groups — This more informal
type of O&S can allow improved cross-party working and detailed investigation
of a single issue focussed on producing substantive recommendations.

Improved agenda planning and management - Committees should focus on
one or two substantive items per agenda to allow for cross-cutting themes to be
properly identified and explored, and different insights brought to bear on critical
issues.

Considering how to engage the public in the work of O&S - This could
include O&S going on more site visits in the community, inviting the public to
offer ideas for work programmes, and greater use of social media channels for
resident input and communicating the progress and impact of scrutiny work.

A clearer focus on democratic accountability - Scrutiny of Cabinet Members
should form a key part of the work programme, providing an opportunity to hold
the Leader and portfolio holders to account for delivery of the corporate plan
and any other issues O&S feel is important.”

RECOMMENDATION

That the Committee:

(a) Considers and notes the progress with enquiries set out in its Work
Programme, feedback to the Committee on the decisions in respect of
previous recommendations and the list of forthcoming decisions; and

(b) Determines whether any addition to, amendment of or rescheduling of Work
Programme matters are required or other actions should be approved based
on the content of this report.

Page 46




A.1 APPENDIX A

RESOURCES AND SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
FOR ENQUIRIES TO BE UNDERTAKEN IN 2022/23

Work Programme

[Detailed Work Programme for 2022/23 outlining the progress made and otherwise planned for enquiries set out in the Work
Programme. The report also details an update of the Task and Finish groups appointed by the Resources and Services Overview

/v obed

and Scrutiny Committees.]

Item Date of Relevant Corporate Information to be Those to be Articulated value of
Enquiry Plan Theme/Annual provided in advance invited to attend undertaking the
Cabinet Priority review
Planning
Enforcement — At this Delivery of High Quality | Current Planning Portfolio Holder To ensure that the
Review of current Committee Services Enforcement for Planning, Planning
powers, policies, Policy. Casework Enforcement
procedures, data on examples (i.e. priority Chairman of the Service efficiently
the use of current and non-priority cases) | Planning prioritises
enforcement powers, Committee, enforcement cases
effectiveness of ensuring timely
approach and Director of closure of
assessment of how Planning, casework.
cases should be
prioritised. Assistant Director
of Planning

Council procurement
and Contract At this Delivery of High Quality | The Procurement Management To ensure that
Management — using | Committee Services Strategy Team procurement and
potential exemplars contract
from: Confirmation of management at the
-The housing procurement and Council is
maintenance contact Effective and positive contract management functioning as it
awarded to Rapid, its Governance requirements should and is fit for

purpose.




gy abed

A.1 APPENDIX A

delivery of work and
the management of it.
- The management of
the previous
cremator
maintenance
contract, the need to
stop the use of those
cremators and the
process for securing
replacement
cremators given the
sensitivity around
this service and the
budgetary
implications for the
Council while these
cremators are out of
action.

- The Leisure Centre
Investment —
specifications,
securing contractors
and delivery of those
works and
maintenance of the
equipment at the
Centres.

Details of the
procurements in the
exemplars

Details of the contract
management in the
exemplars

Details of measures to
improve procurement
and contract
management at the
Council

Procurement Project
Pipe Line for
programming future
projects

Customer Service

Particularly face to
face, telephone and
email contact across
a range of services

Still in
production

Delivery of High Quality
Services

Customer Service
Commitments

Visitor and Call
statistics

Relevant Portfolio
Holders

Relevant Directors

To provide an
opportunity to
assess the level of
customer service
provided against
policies and




61 obed

A.1 APPENDIX A

including Council
Tax, Waste-Recycling
and Leisure

Complaint handling

Ombudsman focus
report on equal access

provide
recommendations
around both of
these matters. In
addition to ensure
reasonable
adjustments are in
place to reflect the
needs of those with

disabilities.

Waste, recycling and | Spring 2023 | Delivery of High Quality | The Specification for Relevant Portfolio | To identify what a
litter beyond 2026. Services the current contacts to | Holders high quality waste,

2026. recycling and litter
To consider how best Relevant Directors | should look like for
to balance the The key milestones in Tendring District
expectations of the development of beyond 2026.
residents, cost and specification for the
service provision. service provision

beyond 2026.

The budget income,

recycling credits and

expenditure over the

most recent five years.

Relevant comparator

data for waste,

recycling and litter over

time and in other

comparator councils.
Carbon Neutral by Off-Agenda Delivering High Quality | To be scoped by the Not applicable To ascertain
2030. The Briefing Services/ Committee in August progress against
assessment of Paper in the | A7 - Carbon Neutral by | 2022 the Action Plan
measures to Autumn 2030 2020-2023 prior to




0G abed

A.1 APPENDIX A

progress towards the
policy unanimously
agreed by Full
Council and adopted
into the Council’s
Policy Framework.
How will these
carbon reduction
measures affect the
Council and its r
partners financially
(and is there a
consequence for job
numbers/skills of the
individual

the end of the
period of the Action
Plan and inform a
process of
informing the
development of the
Action Plan for the
next period towards
the 2030 net zero
policy objective.

measures)?
COMPLETED ITEMS

Cyber Security for Completed Strong Finance &
the Council. Looking Governance 1. Copy of All Member | Deputy Leader, To challenge/ better
at the threats, our Cybersecurity Portfolio Holder understand the
approach to those Briefing for Corporate cybersecurity risks,
threats and the future Presentation Finance and defences and
vulnerabilities. There 23/02/22. Governance, mitigations the
was agreement that 2. Cyber incident log council has in
this might be a good examples explained. | Head of IT & place.
subject for scrutiny. Resilience,

Cybersecurity &

Systems Manager
Scrutiny of the COMPLETED | Delivering High Quality | A copy of the 2013 Portfolio Holder To feed the

Council’s proposals
to review the Beach
Hut Strategy

Services (Public
Spaces to be Proud of)

Beach Hut Strategy and
the proposals for the
review, which will be

for Leisure and
Tourism

committees views
into the review of
the Beach Hut
Strategy, prior to




TG obed

A.1 APPENDIX A

subject to consultation
with stakeholders.

Interim Corporate
Director - Projects
Delivery

Assistant
Director,
Economic Growth
and Leisure

consideration by
Cabinet.

Post decision
scrutiny of the
decision of the
Portfolio Holder for
Environment &
Public Space (as
follows):

(a) To give
consent for the use
of the section of
Frinton Greensward
identified between 14
August 2022 and 5
September 2022 by
the Frinton Summer
Theatre subject to
any necessary
licences being
obtained and
conditions being
adhered to; and

(b) That the
details of any
consents given make
it clear that consent

17 October
2022

DONE

Not specified

A link to the decision
on the Council’s
website is here:

Decision - Frinton
Summer Theatre -
Application for Consent
to use Frinton
Greensward
(tendringdc.gov.uk)

In addition to the
decision itself, the
objections received to
the application are
available at the same
link; together with the
report of the Assistant
Director — Building and
Public Realm who
advised the Portfolio
Holder on the
application.

The report considered
by the Portfolio Holder

Portfolio Holder
for Environment
and Public Space

Assistant Director
— Building and
Public Realm

To review the
consultation with all
the parties that will
be affected by the
decision along with
the Councillors
whose wards will
be affected.

To determine the
residual cost falling
on the Council in
respect of
additional demand
for public
lavatories,
additional parking,
remedial work on
the Greensward
following the end of
the Summer
Theatre’s use of it.



https://tdcdemocracy.tendringdc.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=8799
https://tdcdemocracy.tendringdc.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=8799
https://tdcdemocracy.tendringdc.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=8799
https://tdcdemocracy.tendringdc.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=8799
https://tdcdemocracy.tendringdc.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=8799
https://tdcdemocracy.tendringdc.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=8799

2S abed

A.1 APPENDIX A

is given for this event
only and that future
events will be
evaluated on their
merits at the time.

The decision
followed an
application from
Frinton Summer
Theatre to provide a
tented theatre for the
production of plays
for four weeks on the
Greensward at
Frinton-on-Sea in the
summer of 2022.

The request from the
Leader of the
Tendring First Group
is that the decision
made by Portfolio
Holder be brought to
the Committee to be
scrutinised as he
believes it was made
without a full and
thorough
consultation with all
the parties that will
be affected by the
decision along with
the Councillors

prior to the decision to
authorise the use of the
Greensward references
issues raised in the
consultation
undertaken in respect
of concerns about
residual costs falling
on the Council in
respect of additional
demand for public
lavatories, additional
parking, remedial work
on the Greensward
following the end of the
Summer Theatre’s use
of it.




€g abed

A.1 APPENDIX A

whose wards will be
affected.

In addition, there will be scrutiny for the 2022/23 Budget proposals and this work is scheduled for 4 and 11 January 20




This page is intentionally left blank



GG abed

A.1 APPENDIX B

Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee

13 March 2023

RECOMMENDATIONS MONITORING REPORT

(Prepared by Keith Durran)

Recommendation(s)
Including Date of Meeting and Minute
Number

Actions Taken and Outcome

Completed, follow-up work required
or added to Work Programme

This Committees meeting on 1 February
2023 (Minute 9 refers)

CYBER SECURITY

ENQUIRY RECOMMENDED

That Cabinet —

a) As soon as is possible the Human
Resources and Council Tax Committee with
appropriate officers look at the salary(s)
being offered for the advertised and unfilled
senior IT posts and including cyber security
senior technical positions.

b) By 31/03/23 a Portfolio Holder Cyber
Security Working Group be established to
periodically review the Council’s cyber
security performance against the Cyber
Assessment Framework (CAF) and/or
emerging mandatory security improvements
and requirements.

c) By 31/07/23 the Council’s Information
Retention Policy be reviewed/ revised with
due regard to UK Data Protection Act 2018

The Recommendation was submitted to
the Cabinet Meeting on 17 February 2023
(Minutes 122 refers) and the Portfolio
Holder’'s Comments were as follows:

“I would like to thank the Committee for the
work it has undertaken in setting up the task
and finish group chaired by Councillor Clifton,
who looked at the various aspects and
complexities of cyber security in a relatively
short period of time. In respect of the
recommendations a) to g), they reflect a
pragmatic and reasonable approach to
supporting the Council’s cyber security
arrangements, so | am therefore supportive of
taking the various activities forward in
2023/24. Recommendations h) to j) of the
Resources and Services Overview and
Scrutiny Committee will be presented for
consideration at Full Council on 2 March 2023.
In respect of recommendation h), this reflects
the position | have mentioned on a number of
occasions over recent months. | appreciate
the frustration that many Members have
previously expressed, but | believe that the
risk of continuing with the forwarding of emails




9G abed

A.1 APPENDIX B

d)

9)

data ‘minimisation’ ‘accuracy’ and ‘storage
limitation’ and applied throughout the
organisation.

By 31/05/23 individual (non-generic) account
access technologies be costed for accessing
TDC terminals in locations such as leisure
centres where numerous users sharing a
terminal due to a retail environment
operational need.

Commencing no later than May 2023
following the election of the New
Administration Cyber  Security  and
Information Governance training for all
members after every election and for staff in
their inductions with periodic refresher
training for both be made mandatory.

As soon as possible in consultation with the
Council’s Monitoring Officer, to review
existing Member guidance and explore
Member training opportunities as to what
constitutes party political activities in the
context of using a TDC email account.

As soon as possible the new Cyber Incident
Response Plan (CIRP) included as Appendix
F to this report be adopted.

(AMMENDED)

That Council having considered the outcome of
the enquiry into cyber security undertaken
through the Resources and Services Overview
and Scrutiny Committee determines to adopt the

to personal emails account is too great for
various reasons, not least because of UK Data
Protection legislation compliance, but also
recognising freedom of information issues that
have been highlighted by the ICO. Not only
that, but the world of cyber security will keep
evolving and there will be adverse
consequences if we continued with current
practices. We therefore need to remain alert to
both current and future risks. Furthermore, if a
breach was to take place the Council would be
potentially liable to hefty fines by the ICO. |
note that the following 4 options relating to
how Members can access their Tendring
District Council emails that were considered
by the task and finish group: 1. Use of council
managed laptops only 2. All members be
provided with a Council managed smart phone
3. Introduce a ‘Bring Your Own Device’
Service Framework 4. A Member web ‘portal’
app Whilst acknowledging the Committee’s
practical recommendation of the provision of
Council managed smartphones, in striking a
pragmatic balance along with recognising how
Members are increasingly reliant upon flexible
access to their emails to effectively undertake
their role as a Councillor, | would be supportive
of exploring Option 4 above in more detail as
a possible alternative. Although the provision
of a mobile phone would provide a practical
solution, | understand the frustration of some
members where they are juggling more than
one email account to reflect their ‘political’
roles with that of a being a ward Councillor
along with trying to undertaking that role




)G abed

A.1 APPENDIX B

b)

following as recommended by the Resources
and Overview and Scrutiny Committee —

a) itis recognised that the provision of

mobile phones would provide a
practical solution to enable Members
to access their TDC email accounts
and that under the newly elected
Council from May 2023, the practice
of auto-forwarding of TDC Member
Emails to non TDC accounts be
ceased and that:

subject to the associated funding of
£8,000 being identified, a standard
council-managed Smartphone in
addition to a council-managed
laptop be provided to those
Members that want one to access
emails and to be contactable when
mobile;

should it not prove possible to fund
the Smartphone costs centrally,
then each Member requesting a
standard council-managed mobile
Smartphone be asked to fund the
costs from their allowances (circa
two hundred pounds per annum);

subject to a), Full Council continues to
acknowledge the ongoing risk to the
Council that, in acting as Data Controller,
it could potentially be in breach of the
Data Protection Act 2018 and that risk

efficiently. The responsibilities of Portfolio
Holders giving direction and making decisions
within their individual areas has also been
taken into account. In recognition of the above,
| am therefore proposing that Officers also
explore in more detail the option of a
Members’ ‘portal’ as a flexible way for
Members’ to continue to use their own devices
fo access their Tendring District email
account. Following the Council’s consideration
of the associated report at their meeting on 22
November 2022, the following resolution was
agreed: ‘the implementation of any and all
changes required be planned for no later than
1st  April 2023 in readiness for the
commencement of the new Council, following
the elections in 2023 and that the new
Councillors be given the training’. My
proposed approach will have an impact on the
above, which is addressed in my
recommendations.”

Having duly considered the recommendations
submitted to Cabinet by the Resources &
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee,
together with the response of the Portfolio
Holder thereto:- It was moved by Councillor G
V Guglielmi, seconded by Councillor Stock
OBE and:- RESOLVED that —

a) the Resources and Services Overview and
Scrutiny Committee be thanked for the work
they have undertaken and specifically the
Members who participated in the associated




8G abed

A.1 APPENDIX B

will remain whilst the auto-forwarding of
Councillors’ emails practice continues.”

task and finish group, chaired by Councillor
Clifton;

b) the Committee’s recommendations a) to g)
are agreed and Officers be requested to
undertake the associated activities as soon as
practicable in 2023/24 in consultation with the
Portfolio Holder for Corporate Finance and
Governance;

c) in respect of the Committee’s
recommendations h) to i), it is recommended
to Full Council that:

i) although it is recognised that the provision of
mobile phones would provide a practical
solution to enable Members to access their
Tendring email accounts, Officers be
requested to also explore the alternative
option of a Members ‘portal’ before a final
decision can be considered;

ii) subject to ci) above, a further report be
presented to Cabinet as early as practicable in
2023/24 that sets out the outcome from the
proposed review of the Members’ portal’
option and recommendations are presented
back to a future meeting of Full Council;

iii) subject to ci) and cii) above, Full Council
continues to acknowledge that the ongoing
risk to the Council, in acting as Data
Controller, could potentially be in breach of the
Data Protection Act 2018 remains, whilst the
auto-forwarding of Councillor emails practice
continues; and

iv) whilst the work in ci) and cii) is ongoing, all
Members elected in May 2023 are advised of
this and the Council’s Information Governance




6G abed

A.1 APPENDIX B

requirements induction

programme.

through  their

The Recommendation was submitted to
the Full Council Meeting on 2 March 2023:

The recommend amendment was passed.

This Committees meeting on 1 February
2023 (Minute 8 refers)

BEACH HUT STRATEGY

ENQUIRY RECOMMENDED

“That Cabinet takes into account, prior to
its consideration of the draft Beach Hut
Strategy, that -

a) the Committee recommends that
future charges for lease agreements
are set at a fair and reasonable level.
This is relevant for both commercial
and mainstream leases. This should
also be appropriate for any new

Beach Huts made available for

purchase or lease in the future;

b) it is recommended that terms and
conditions  included in  lease
agreements are fair and equitable
and in consultation with Beach Hut
owners;

The Recommendation was submitted to
the Cabinet Meeting on 17 February 2023
(Minutes 118 & 119 refers) and the Portfolio
Holder’'s Comments were as follows:

a) An independent valuation of prospective
lease charges was commissioned, to
ensure Cabinet could fully consider the
recommendation for the change in Beach
Hut agreements. Although this is only an
indicative cost at this stage (the valuation
will be considered closer to
implementation), it is hoped this provides
reassurance that future charges would be
set at a fair and reasonable level.
Furthermore, the Committee should be
reassured that agreement of a future non-
commercial lease and related charges
would be agreed by the Portfolio Holder
through an Executive Decision. This will
be subject to the Council’s Call in
Procedure rules. The setting of charges
and respective heads of terms for a
Commercial Lease are being agreed
through this report. Research from other
Local Authorities demonstrates that the




09 abed

A.1 APPENDIX B

c)

d)

the Committee recommends that
appropriate resources are put in
place for administration involved in
implementing the strategy.  That
consideration be given to the
subsequent cost to the Council of
processing  leases and  that
subsequent costs are reported back
to the Committee;

the Committee recommends that
bright colours and vibrant designs be
included in the revised design
specification for Beach Huts, when
this is produced following adoption;

the Committee recommends that
there is acknowledgement of the
differences in seafront locations
along the Tendring District and their
respective unique features, such as
cliff slopes and how they impact
Beach Hut design for the emerging
specification review;

noting the point above, it is
recommended that certain limited
Beach Hut adaptations in parts of the
District be included in the future
specification for reasons of access,
e.g. appropriate access steps on cliff
slopes. This should be considered on
a location-by-location basis;

b)

d)

doubling of appropriate charges for
commercial agreements is fair and
appropriate.

The Committee are directed to the response
provided for the recommendation above.

The Committee should note that there are no
financial commitments to the Council, as a
result of this report. Any future additional
resources will be subject to a separate report
and decision. As such, they will be subject
to due process, which can be reported back
fo the Resources and Services Overview
and Scrutiny Committee.

The Committee should note that one of the
key strands of the strategy, is to revise the
current specification. It should also be noted
that bright colours are referred to in the draft
strategy, as below. The proposed revised
and improved specification will provide the
framework for improved aesthetics of Beach
Huts. This will also ensure huts are more
vibrant and visually impactful, through a
move towards brighter and starker colours.
As such, the Portfolio Holder is in agreement
with this positive move to improve seafront
aesthetics.

The points raised by the Committee are
noted and will be considered in producing
the revised design specification.




T9 abed

A.1 APPENDIX B

)

9)

h)

)

k)

it is recommended that a map be
attached to the emerging strategy to
clearly define which land is owned by
Tendring District Council;

it is recommended that no Beach Hut
designs should be permitted that are
contrary to current or future
legislation;

to ensure high standards are
maintained on Beach Huts and their
use, itis recommended that adequate
resources should be in place for
appropriate enforcement action;

the Committee recommends that a
reasonable timescale for adaptations
to be removed which fall outside of
the revised specification, is agreed.
The timescale recommended is a
period up to two years;

the Committee recommends that the
Council continues to support those
without access or ability to use digital
platforms so that they are still able to
deal with a member of staff. As such,
sufficient resources should remain in
place; and

the new Beach Hut Strategy returns to
the Resources and Services Overview
and Scrutiny Committee for review in 12
months’ time.”

f)

g)

h)

J)

The points raised by the Committee are
noted and will be considered in producing
the revised design specification.

The points raised by the Committee are
noted and if approved by Cabinet, a map
defining the land owned by the Council will
be produced for publishing on the website.

The points raised by the Committee are
noted and any statutory requirements will be
addressed in production of the Beach Hut
agreements.

As referred to in a previous response, there
are no additional financial commitments to
this strategy and as such, no additional
resources are funded through this report.
The Committee’s point is noted and as
referred to in this report, any future proposed
resources would be funded through a
standalone business case under a separate
decision.

Once the revised design specification is
complete, the Council will work with Beach
Hut owners to ensure timely removal of any
unauthorised adaptations. The timescales
involved will be proportionate to the type of
adaptation involved, the degree of
complexity and any appropriate additional
circumstances. The period of ‘up to two
years’ recommended by the Committee is
noted, but each situation will be based on a
case by case basis.




29 abed

A.1 APPENDIX B

k)

The points raised by the Committee are
noted and appropriate resources will remain
in place to support those customers without
access to digital platforms. Finally, the
Committee’s comment that the ‘New Beach
Hut Strategy returns to the Resources and
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee
for review in 12 months’ time’ are noted.

This Committees meeting on 11 January
2023 (Minute 4 refers)

BUDGET SCRUTINY

ENQUIRY RECOMMENDED

It was RESOLVED that the CABINET be
RECOMMENDED that:

a) Requests a comprehensive piece of work
be undertaken to assess the true costs of
services subject to discretionary Fees and
Charges (including full on-costs) to ensure
that cost recovery is being achieved and that
inadvertent subsidy of services from Council
Tax income does not exist where those full
costs should be met through relevant Fees
and Charges;

b) Requests that progress be made (at pace)
in the coming months to ensure that Zero
Based Budgeting is applied consistently to all
major net expenditure areas for the Council
and that this process should involve robust

AWAITING THE DETAILED REPSPONSE




g abed

A.1 APPENDIX B

challenges to ensure efficiency,
effectiveness and economy of those service
based budgets;

¢) Makes any necessary arrangements So
that, particularly while the current economic
conditions prevail, strict caution is observed
around estimates of costs of proposed
projects/schemes (provided in support of
decisions around those projects/schemes)
with a view to supporting realistic budgetary
allocations being made that more closely
align with the costs identified for the
projects/schemes following procurement in
respect of those projects;

d) Records that the failure of the External
Auditors (to conclude in a timely fashion the
Audit of the Council’s accounts for 2020/21)
is an impediment to good governance,
including through this Overview and Scrutiny
process, and to support the sterling efforts by
the Council’s Audit Committee to address
this failure with the External Auditors;

e) Concurs that, for future years, the
Community Leadership  Overview and
Scrutiny Committee, shall be requested to
examine and enquire into the spend in
relation to grants to statutory and voluntary
sector partners and to submit its findings to
the Resources & Services Overview and
Scrutiny Committee in time for its budget
scrutiny process; Resources and Services




79 abed

A.1 APPENDIX B

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 11
January 2023

f) Takes measures (without delay) to ensure
that the Housing Stock Survey of the
Council’s homes is commenced at the
earliest opportunity (with a view to it being
completed within 2023/24), that regular
updates on the Survey be made to all
Councillors and that steps be taken to
dispose of vacant Council homes that have
particular long term maintenance issues with
a view to the disposal sum being re-invested
in properties that are easier to maintain and,
potentially, meeting housing need locally
more closely;

g) Supports the statements to the Resources
& Services Overview and  Scrutiny
Committee, that the New Homes Bonus for
2023/24 be held without being allocated until
after the 4 May 2023 elections;

h) Proposes to Council that the shortfall
between income and expenditure which
would otherwise occur in 2023/24 be met by
utilising the Forecast Risk Fund and that the
use of the Corporate Investment Plan
‘Reserve’ and Building for the Future Use be
applied to balance the budget in 2024/25 if
required; and

i) Arranges that an update on the approved
and pipeline schemes within/through the
Corporate Investment Plan, since its




G9 abed

A.1 APPENDIX B

creation, being submitted to the Resources &
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s
meeting on 21 February 2023 to enable that
Committee to undertake an enquiry into the
process around that Plan.

This Committee’s meeting on 17 October

The Recommendation was submitted to

2022 (Minute 6 refers)

FRINTON SUMMER THEATRE

ENQUIRY RECOMMENDED:

That Cabinet

(a) Notes that the Committee supports
the intended development of the
proposal for a policy in respect of
authorising use of Council owned
Open Spaces (including criteria and
charging), and

(b) gives serious consideration to any
future requests of proposed events,
which are to be held on the Frinton
Greensward, as this event has had as
serious and detrimental effect to
Frinton’s residents, its infrastructure,
and its businesses.

the Cabinet Meeting on 4 November 2022

(Minute 68 refers) and the Portfolio

Holder’s Comments were as follows:

In response thereto, the Environment and Public
Space Portfolio Holder had submitted the
following:-

“l ask that the enquiry by the Resources and
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee into
my decision be welcomed. Having considered
the outcome of that enquiry by the Committee, |
ask Cabinet to:

(@) note that the Committee supports the
intended development of the proposal for a
policy in respect of authorising use of Council
owned Open Spaces (including criteria and
charging), and

(b) record that consideration to any future
requests for proposed events which are to be
held on the Frinton Greensward will be given.”

Having duly considered the recommendations
submitted by the Resources and Services
Overview & Scrutiny Committee together with
the Environment & Public Space Portfolio
Holder’s response thereto.-




99 abed

A.1 APPENDIX B

It was moved by Councillor Talbot, seconded by
Councillor Bray and:-

RESOLVED that the recommendations made by
the Resources and Services Overview &
Scrutiny Committee be noted and that the
response of the Environment and Public Space
Portfolio Holder thereto be endorsed.

This Committee’s meeting on 30 June
2022 (Minute 14 refers)

WASTE RECYCLING AND LITTERING:

ENQUIRY RECOMMENDED:

“In respect of the recycling elements of the
enquiry:

That the capacity of the Street Scene Team
to undertake a range of engagement and
recycling promotion work with school age
children, members of  community
organisations and the public through
roadshows, Council Tax Bills etc. be
assessed and plans brought forward to
support this capacity. = The Committee
believes that this work is vital to ensure we
have a well-informed local population about
recycling and the benefits of it and that the
capacity of the team should provide for this
work to be undertaken systematically and
consistently;

The Recommendation was submitted to

the Cabinet Meeting on 15 July 2022

(Minute 37 refers) and the Portfolio

Holder’s Comments were as follows:

“Colleagues, this report from the Resources
and Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee
is far too good to just note as it is bursting with
intelligent ideas. | want the chance for each to
be examined in detail and properly costed,
with a view to trying to encompass the report’s
ideas. Damian Williams organised a meeting
for me yesterday with Andy White and
Jonathan Hamlet present. | said that only
having received the report a week ago, this
was not enough time to present a considered
answer at this Cabinet meeting, but that |
wanted a detailed answer to be prepared with
costs included for the next Cabinet meeting.”

Having considered the recommendations of
the Resources and Services Overview &
Scrutiny Committee, together with the initial
response of the Environment & Public Space
Portfolio Holder thereto:-




]9 abed

A.1 APPENDIX B

That, in addition to the steps in (1) above,
available data, or proxies for it, about
recycling rates within the District be
examined to identify those areas where
recycling rates are lowest and that the
available resources for promotional activity
be targeted to those areas to increase
recycling rates there. The Committee is
conscious of the need to use data to guide
action and that this is an area where finite
resources can be directed where the need
for action is most required.

That proposals for new style three chamber
litter bins to separate out general waste from
plastic/can recyclables and card recyclables
be examined with a view to these being
installed in the centres of towns in the
District. =~ The Committee considers that
these new style bins would help reinforce
the message around recycling and further
the Council’s commitment to it (and
positively reinforce the Council’s
Community Leadership role);

That the expected standards for
cleanliness/removal of broken glass at the
recycling bring sites in the District be
developed and publicised and, alongside
these, deployment response times for the
cleaning/clearing of those sites be
established for reports of issues at those
sites when the standards are not being met.
This recording will include each incident of
fly tipping’ at the sites. The Committee

It was moved by Councillor Talbot, seconded
by Councillor Bray and:-

RESOLVED that Cabinet notes —
(a) the contents of the report; and

(b) that a full response from the
Environment & Public Space Portfolio Holder
will be submitted to the next meeting of the
Cabinet.

The Recommendation was submitted to
the Cabinet Meeting on November 2022
(Minute 70 refers) and the Portfolio
Holder’s Comments were as follows:

Further to Minute 37 (15.7.22) Cabinet
considered the Environment & Public Space
Portfolio Holder’s detailed reply to the Resources
and  Services Overview and  Scrutiny
Committee’s recommendations to Cabinet
following its inquiry into elements of the waste,
recycling and litter collection service. That
detailed reply was set out in the Appendix to item
A.3 of the Report of the Environment & Public
Space Portfolio Holder. (See A.1 APPENDIX
B1)

Having duly considered the
recommendations submitted by the Resources
and Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee
together with the Environment & Public Space
Portfolio Holder’s detailed response thereto:-




g9 abed

A.1 APPENDIX B

believes the recycling bring sites provide a
valuable addition to the kerbside recycling
collection service and believes that working
with the public we can look to keep the sites
in the best possible condition by sharing with
them the standards they should expect, the
means of reporting when those standards
are not met and a response regime to those
reports that can manage expectations while
returning the site to the expected standards
as soon as possible; and

(5) That the introduction of an online
(MyTendring) form to report a missed bin
collection for garden waste collections
(Brown bin) be pursued. The Committee
regards the availability of a missed bin
collection online form for the general waste
(Black bin) and recycling boxes (red and
green boxes) as positive and that the same
24/7 reporting route should be provided for
garden waste where there is a missed
collection.

In respect of the public space litter elements
of the enquiry:

That the proposals for uniquely coloured
(purple) bags for those undertaking
Community Litter picks (to distinguish these
bags from other forms of waste/recycling) be
warmly supported;

That the large blue litterbins used as part of
the Summer Plan along the seafront should

It was moved by Councillor Talbot, seconded by
Councillor Bray and.:-

RESOLVED that the detailed response of the
Environment and Public Space Portfolio Holder
to the recommendations made by the Resources
and Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee be
noted (both being set out in the Appendix to the
Portfolio Holder’s report) and that they thereto be
approved.




69 abed

A.1 APPENDIX B

be retained throughout the low season to
create a year round approach to litter
collection in those spaces. The removal of
the litterbins means that out of season there
is a reduced litterbin service along the
seafront. For residents in those areas and
local individuals who use the seafront this
reduced service is perceived as a lower
standard for them than is provided for
tourists. Retaining the bins, even with a
reduced emptying regime would
demonstrate the obvious commitment of the
Council to its residents;

That consideration be given to a pilot
scheme along the stretch of the A120 from
Ardleigh Crown to Horsley Cross to install
high visibility litter bins in the laybys and
evaluate the extent of their use (and any
potential consequential fly tipping from their
introduction) for a 12 months period (and
that the experience be used to inform the
approach along this road and the A133
going forward). The Committee believes
that the pilot approach will provide the
Council with valuable information as to
whether litter bins in the laybys of major
roads in the District would be advantageous;

(9) That the verge litter-picking schedule
for the A120 from the new roundabout to the
Auction roundabout be increased fto six
times a year. The current frequency is, in
the view of the Committee, demonstrably
insufficient to keep the verges concerned




0/ abed

A.1 APPENDIX B

clear of litter and this then could encourage
further littering to take place by those who
see the extent of litter that is not cleared
sufficiently frequently to deter it taking place;

In respect of future service provision:

(10) The Committee  welcomed the
opportunity to input into the specification for
the waste, recycling and street cleaning
contract that will be the basis of service
provision in those areas from 2026.

[Note: Further to item (10) in the above
recommendations, the Resources and
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee
had proposed to Council on 12 July 2022
that the development of proposals for the
waste, recycling and street cleaning contract
specification from 2026 be included in the
work programme of enquiries for the
Committee for 2022/23.”

Recommendations monitoring for those recommendations from earlier meetings of the Committee have been previously reported to the
Committee and, as such, are not repeated here as there is no further update to be provided on them.



A.1 APPENDIX C

Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee

13 March 2023

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULE 13 — SCRUTINY OF

PROPOSED DECISIONS
(Prepared by Keith Durran)

The below forthcoming decisions are those published since 7 November 2022 — the
publication date for the Committee’s last ordinary meeting.

In presenting the following, the Committee’s attention is drawn to the agenda item
notes in respect of Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 13.

Essex Procurement and introduction of

Social Value Principles

DESCRIPTION OF DECISION KEY DECISION | Decision
DECISION | MAKER Due
— YES/NO Date
Levelling Up Fund (LUF) - Clacton-on-Sea: YES Cabinet 23/06/23
Key decisions on Next Steps
Electric Vehicle Charge Point Policy and YES Cabinet 23/06/23
Implementation Plan
Events on Council Land Policy YES Cabinet 23/06/23
Update on Joint Working Arrangements with | YES Cabinet 17/03/23

Page 71




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

RESOURCES AND SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
13 MARCH 2023
REPORT OF DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE

A.2 COUNCIL PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT MANAGEMENT
(Report prepared by Lisa Hastings)

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To inform the Committee of the outcome of the informal review of procurement and
contract management at the Council ensuring it is functioning as it should and is fit for
purpose.

INVITEES

Lisa Hastings, Deputy Chief Executive — Assistant Director for Governance and lead officer
for topic presenting the report.

Informal meetings of the Committee were held on 17 October and 7 December 2022,
where the Members received a range of information around the subject of Council
Procurement and Contract Management, most of which is contained within this report.
Senior Officers across the Council, involved in the subject area and the specific contracts
referred to within the Scope (see below) supported this first meeting in October.

SCOPE - THE AIMS AND OBJECTIVES OF THE REPORT

Full Council at its meeting on 12t July 2022 agreed (Minute 29) the Committee’s Work
Programme for the 2022-23 Municipal Year, as set out in Appendices Ai and Aii to item
A.2, for the Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee this included:

Council procurement and Contract Management — using potential exemplars from:

e The housing maintenance contract awarded to Rapid, its delivery of work and
the management of it.

e The management of the previous cremator maintenance contract, the need to
stop the use of those cremators and the process for securing replacement
cremators given the sensitivity around this service and the budgetary
implications for the Council while these cremators are out of action.

e The Leisure Centre Investment — specifications, securing contractors and
delivery of those works and maintenance of the equipment at the Centres.

(Note: Details of why these contracts were chosen by the Committee were not provided at
the outset however, the requested information on each contract was provided to the
Members of the Committee at its informal meeting in October. In December 2022,
Members decided no further information was required on the contracts and due to the
exempt nature of the information, would not be presented within this Report.

Page 73



BACKGROUND

RESOURCES

The Procurement Team consisted of 2 FTE posts, both vacant (this has been increased
through the restructure in 2022 by 3 additional posts, all remaining vacant — see below).
The budget for the service consists of salaries and £22,670 for computer software.

At its meeting on 17t September 2021, Cabinet considered in Section 2 of its Financial
Performance Update 2021/22 a small number of in-year budget adjustments set out in
Appendix B to the Portfolio Holder’s report, one of which reflected a proposed service level
agreement being entered into with Essex County Council (ECC) to enable the Council to
‘buy in’ procurement services from them.

Following the last vacancy, discussions commenced with ECC in terms of a shared service
/ collaborative approach as a way of providing a more comprehensive procurement service
to our internal departments. This approach would involve the Council purchasing a range
of procurement services from ECC on a proposed ‘hourly rate’ basis via a service level
agreement. Appendix B to the Cabinet Report set out a proposed adjustment, which
would see budgets transferred from direct employee costs to ‘contract’ payments to ECC.
This approach would also support the accelerated delivery programme where the Council
would have access to specialist / expert advice along with additional procurement capacity
e.g. supporting the procurement of replacement cremators. This arrangement will be kept
under wider review as it may form part of a longer-term solution, where the Council could
continue to have access to such advice as part of the future delivery of projects and
activities along with ‘usual’ operational requirements expected of a procurement function /
service.

Paragraph 2.3 of the Council’s Procurement Procedure Rules set out in Part 5 of the
Council’s Constitution requires alternative delivery options for whole or part of services to
be achieved in accordance with the Council’s Procurement Strategy. The Strategy
expressly refers to ‘Our Partners in Procurement’ and that the Council will seek to work
with a number of partners to maximise any procurement opportunities and provide best
practice. This includes other public bodies and shared services. Because the in-house
procurement service has 100% vacancies, there were no employment issues to address
and the Public Contract Regulations 2015 permit public sector shared service and
collaboration arrangements within certain criteria, which are observed in any Service Level
Agreement arrangement. The Council’s Procurement Procedure Rules are observed in
any bids or tender exercises managed by ECC on behalf of TDC.

Subsequently, Cabinet agreed in September 2021 that:
(2) That, in respect of the Council’s Financial Performance for 2021/22, Cabinet:

(c) agrees an exemption to the Council’s procurement rules in order to enable a
Service Level Agreement to be entered into with Essex County Council to enable
the Council to ‘buy in’ various procurement services from them to support its day-to-
day operational activities and the delivery of one-off projects, as necessary; and

(d) authorises the Assistant Director (Finance and IT) and the Deputy Chief
Executive to agree the terms of the Service Level Agreement, in consultation with
the Portfolio Holder for Corporate Finance and Governance.

Page 74




Following consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Corporate Finance and Governance, a
Partnership Agreement was completed in August 2022; the services however commenced
in October 2021 and will continue until October 2023 for an annual payment of £60,000.
The agreement can be renewed annually for up to 5 years. The Partnership Agreement
is attached to the Report as Appendix A.

Both Councils have obligations and responsibilities. Schedule 1 to the Agreement sets out
the Key Procurement Activities, split into three areas:

e Category Planning
e Market Management
e Sourcing

Procurement 2022 Deliverables have been identified within the Partnership Agreement.

In December 2021 and May 2022, an Introduction to Procurement and the collaboration
arrangements were presented to Council Officers as part of its Senior Managers Forum.
The reasons why the Councils were working in partnership were covered:

Increase resilience

Increase expertise

Enable collaborative savings
Market influence

Reduction of duplication
Staff retention

Potential Category Areas have already been identified:

e Vehicles
e Facilities Management (inc. cleaning and security)
e Corporate spend for e.g. stationary

The Presentation Slides included a summary of the Procurement Process covering:

e Basics
- The Regulations
- Value for Money
- Processes for different values of TOTAL spend

e Low Value Procurement - £10K to £50K
¢ Request for Quote Process - £10K to £50K
e Tender process - £50K +

It is important to highlight that there are various elements to the overall procurement
process, with responsibilities being spilt across the Council, some functions are devolved
into services, with others being undertaken centrally by the procurement team:

- Project approval and budget allocation - services
- Specification — services
- Market analysis - central
- Identify suitable contract/framework — centrally with consideration by services
- Prepare procurement documentation — central in consultation with services
- Publication — central
Page 75




- Collate tenders for evaluation — central

- Evaluation — services with central support if required

- Due diligence - centrally together with services

- Contract awards to suppliers — centrally together with services

PART 5 CONSTITUTION - PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE RULES

The Council’s Procurement Procedure Rules state the following:

Before undertaking any procurement, Departments should satisfy themselves that:
e The works, goods or services are required and a need can be demonstrated
e There are no reasonable alternatives e.g. sharing or utilising spare
capacity/inventories elsewhere within the Council
e Where relevant, they have considered the requirements of the Public Services
(Social Value) Act 2012 and have recorded/evidenced the outcomes against the
associated requirements:-
- how what is proposed to be procured might improve the economic, social and
environmental well-being of the relevant area
- how, in conducting the process of procurement, it might act with a view to
securing that improvement

Use of Local Suppliers: All Procurement should be in line with the Council’s Procurement
Strategy, which includes the recognition of the use of local suppliers and providing a fair
basis for them to compete for the provision of goods, works or services required by the
Council.

CONTRACT MANAGEMENT:

Contracts management is undertaken by the services and Key Personal and Contract
Administrators are named within the contract documentation and are added onto their
individual and existing roles. In some projects, contract management is commissioned as
part of the project.

The Council has produced a standard TDC Contract for Services, which covers the terms
and conditions for suppliers to adhere to when entering into a contract with the Council for
values above £25,000. This must be used unless an exemption is sought. JCT and NEC
suite of contracts are also used for construction works and engineering projects with
widely recognised and accepted clauses within the industry, with differing options to be
selected. Understanding the structure of these documents and arrangements is essential
for contract management.

Contract management requires a commercial understanding, appropriate skills and
capacity to be undertaken with maximum potential. Presently services are conducting
contract management alongside their usual service delivery requirements, which can be
extremely time consuming.

Within the agreed Scope, the Committee had requested certain information and are
detailed below:

1. Confirmation of procurement and contract management requirements:

These are contained within the following documents: Council’s Procurement Strategy
and under Part 5 of the Constitution Procurement Rules of Procedure, which set out
the policy and rules, the Council has_adopte be followed.

PoleY PRYETE




2. The procurement project pipeline:

Is an evolving piece of work and relies on the input of services to ensure that it is a
useful exercise, in terms of allocating procurement resource and identifying budgets.
The exercise will also benefit service areas in managing the process and subsequent
contract management.

RELEVANT CORPORATE PLAN THEME/ANNUAL CABINET PRIORITY

Procurement and contract management comes within the Strong Finances and
Governance Corporate Plan theme and effective and positive governance priority. It is
important to ensure the Council’s resources are being spent observing the Value for
Money principle and managed prudently in accordance with its Budget and Policy
framework whilst delivering against the wider priorities.

DESIRED OUTCOME OF THE CONSIDERATION OF THIS ITEM

A number of actions have been identified which are necessary to ensure the
authority is working to up to date best practice, within its budget and policy
framework, constitutional requirements, following internal audit reviews and
generally lessons learnt through its duty to ensure continuous improvement
through delivery of its services and functions.

The Committee was requested to give consideration to these actions and endorse
the improvements and deliverables identified for future monitoring

STRATEGY & PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE RULES REVIEW

e The Council’s current Procurement Strategy was last reviewed in 2012, although
changes have been made to the Council’s Procurement Procedure Rules, taking
into account legislation changes; the overarching strategy needs a review and
refresh following the National Procurement Policy Statement being issued in 2021.
This sets out the strategic priorities for public procurement and how contracting
authorities considers the following national priority outcomes alongside any
additional local priorities in their procurement activities:

o creating new businesses, new jobs and new skills;
o tackling climate change and reducing waste, and
o improving supplier diversity, innovation and resilience.

e Consideration should be given to the Local Government Association’s toolkit
developed to support councils to set objectives in relation to their maturity levels in
each of the key areas of the National Procurement Strategy for Local Government
in England 2022, and to assess their progress against those objectives.

e New legislation - On 11 May 2022, the Procurement Bill 2022 was introduced in the
House of Lords. The Bill is the next step in the Government's plan to reform
procurement policy in the UK following Brexit, as set out in its December 2020
green paper "Transforming public procurement" and follows the Government's
response to the accompanying consultation. It is designed to introduce a simpler,

more flexible and more commercial sysien), Gyrrently, the Bill is at report stage in
1 MH\.; i




the House of Commons.

e Produce a Social Value Policy for Procurement Purposes or set of Principles for the
Council building upon the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012, which places a
statutory duty (when proposing to procure the provision of services, whether alone
or together with the purchase or hire of goods or the carrying out of works, with by
contract or through a framework agreement) to consider:

(a) how what is proposed to be procured might improve the economic, social and
environmental well-being of the relevant area, and

(b) how, in conducting the process of procurement, it might act with a view to
securing that improvement.

e |t's important for the Council to maximise opportunities for social value but
recognising these additional requirements to contractors, can increase the price of
the contract, therefore they need to be of real added value for the area and the
delivering of the Council’s Corporate Plan, such as:

- Use of apprenticeships

- Increase use of local suppliers

- Support SMEs

- Community engagement and initiatives

- Climate change requirements

- Access for the voluntary sector

- Sign up to the Military Covenant and other such initiatives

As part of improving the Council’s social value requirement, a targeted approach was
deployed as part of the Tendring for Growth business event, asking key questions as to
the barriers faced by small to medium sized enterprises (SME) may face when
approaching tender opportunities. From the feedback provided, a guide will be produced
explaining the process and this will be publicly available, along with a proposed training
video covering frequently asked questions.

SPEND AND CATEGORY ANALYSIS

e Tackle any disaggregation within services and across the Council as a route to
circumnavigate the procurement routes for higher value contracts

e Lack of utilising opportunities for Value for Money and efficiencies
e Conduct spend analysis to form part of the Category Plan

e Develop Market Strategy for categories

ONGOING AWARENESS OF PROCUREMENT RULES TO ENHANCE COMPLIANCE

e Preventing practices of approaching certain contractors direct without tendering
processes at the right levels

Page 78




e When relying on frameworks, value for money still needs to be demonstrated

SPECIFICATION REQUIREMENTS

e Consideration needs to be given to the right skills and capacity to prepare a
specification, which can be very technical and built into project timelines.

e Balancing technical detailed v. flexible outcome based specifications and being
realistic on price and contract management abilities for quality assurances.

e Focus should be on affordability and within the allocated budget, compromises and
managing expectations may be necessary.

e Social value requirements need to be considered as part of the statutory duty to do
SO.

EVALUATION CRITERIA

e Ensuring competency questions and verification requirements are undertaken as
part of due diligence prior to award of contracts

e Consideration and review of approaches to Price v. Quality weighting

e Social Value considerations

CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

e Choosing the right type of contract and preparing the contract data prior to tender
(JCT, NEC or Standard TDC Contracts for Services)

¢ |dentifying resources and skills for contract management

e Regular monitoring and compliance with the terms and conditions of the contract

CONTRACT REGISTER

e The current register is incomplete and requires further input to ensure it is correct
and up to date

PROCUREMENT PROJECT PIPELINE

¢ New initiative evolving to dedicate resources and to programme delivery

DETAILED INFORMATION

Public sector procurement is subject to a legal framework which encourages free and open
competition and value for money, in line with internationally and nationally agreed
obligations and regulations. As part of its strategy, the government aligns procurement
policies with this legal framework, as well as with its wider policy objectives.

Page 79




The over-riding procurement policy requirement is that all public procurement must be
based on value for money, defined as “the best mix of quality and effectiveness for the
least outlay over the period of use of the goods or services bought”. This should be
achieved through competition, unless there are compelling reasons to the contrary.

The Public Procurement Process is a described as a circle and its various stages are
shown in the diagram below (contract management would be in the contract performance
step). Attention must be given to all stages and at the core would be the Council’s
Strategy, Policies, Rules and Procedures.

Confract st ed

Award Perforrmarnce

Ternders ' ] -

[ Evaluatiorn ] u b / /C [ Need ]
Procurermerrt
Ternder Procuremernt
[ Preparatiorn ] C_j/C-‘ / e [ Plaririing ]
Tender Requiremenrts
So/licitaltiorn Specrificalior

SOCIAL VALUE CONSIDERATIONS:

Although the Council is required to give consideration to Social Value in its procurement
cycle, more could be achieved with earlier scoping through specification and evaluation
criteria. As with other Essex Councils, it is now best practice to adopt a dedicated Social
Value Policy, to set out how the Council wishes to achieve the social, economic and
environmental strands through its commissioning.

It is considered that any Social Value Approach being drafted for adoption, should be
scoped and shaped in consultation with Members, services across the Council, other local
authorities, either as part of joined up working across Essex or through the Anchors
organisations together with our stakeholders. A Draft Social Value Approach for
Procurement Purposes is being considered with partners and will contain very high level
principles on which further engagement can take place. In the interim, TDC will rely on its
existing Procurement Procedure Rules and link to the Council’s Corporate Plan, Priorities
and Projects.

FINANCIAL.:

The Procurement Procedure Rules, set out the Constitutional requirements to ensure the
correct budget is in place and value for money is demonstrated though any

Page 80




procurement/contract award process.
LEGAL:

Procurement for wider public sector bodies, such as local government, health and
education, is also subject to the Public Contracts Regulations 2015. Procurement within
the meaning of the Regulations is defined as “the acquisition by means of a public contract
of works, supplies or services by one or more contracting authorities from economic
operators chosen by those contracting authorities, whether or not the works, supplies or
services are intended for a public purpose”. These regulations apply to above threshold
contracts with local authorities following the principles of non-discrimination, equal
treatment, transparency, mutual recognition and proportionality where possible for lower
value contracts.

The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 is referred to within the body of the report.

In accordance with the Equality Act 2010, the Council is required to comply with the
Public Sector Equality Duty when conducting public procurement.

The Local Government (Transparency Requirements) (England) Regulations 2015
requires information about public contracts to be published in accordance with the Local
Government Transparency Code 2015.

Part 5 of the Constitution contains the Council’s Procurement Procedure Rules, which
must be adhered to.

DELIVERY:

A procurement process and contract management are resource intensive and should be
factored into delivery timescales and milestones.

IMPACT ON THE PUBLIC:

There are no additional implications to identify other than to ensure the Council acts
openly and transparently in the manner in which it spends the Council’s budget and
manages its resources. Equality and Diversity policies and statements are sought through
the procurement processes and contract requirements.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee:

(a) is requested to give consideration and endorse those actions already
identified as improvements and deliverables for the procurement and contract
management framework, monitoring progress through a future work
programme for the Committee;

(b) recommend to Cabinet and the Portfolio Holder for Corporate Finance and
Governance that:

(i) the Council’s Contract Register is brought up to date as soon as
possible, with services across the Council providing the necessary
data on contracts held within their respective areas; and

(i) a Social Value Policy for Procurement Purposes be produced for

consultation with the Resowsces and Services Overview and Scrutiny
I_QUC O4




Committee at a future meeting.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT DECISIONS

Full Council 12t July 2022, minute no. 29

BACKGROUND PAPERS AND PUBLISHED REFERENCE MATERIAL

Policies and Procedures

Article 14 Finance Contracts and Legal Matters
Draft TDC services contract

Procurement Service

Projects Register to demonstrate work undertaken with ECC since Oct 21
Contract Management training slides

APPENDICES

Appendix A — Partnership Agreement for the provision of procurement services for Tendring
District Council 2021/23

REPORT CONTACT OFFICER(S)

Name Lisa Hastings

Job Title Deputy Chief Executive

Email/Telephone lhastings@tendringdc.gov.uk
01255 686561

Page 82



mailto:lhastings@tendringdc.gov.uk

Tendring

District Council

Partnership Agreement
for the provision of procurement
services
for Tendring District Council
2021/23

Page 83




24 Jg
THIS AGREEMENT is made on DATE 8 [ 2022

BETWEEN:

(1) ESSEX COUNTY COUNCIL. of County Hall, Chelmsford, Essex CM1 1QH
(“ECC")

(2) TENDRING DISTRICT COUNCIL of Town Hall, Station Rd, Clacton-on-Sea
CO151SE ("TDC")

(“The Parties”)

1. Introduction

1.1 The Parties have agreed to enter into this Partnership Agreement (“this
Agreement”) working collaboratively to pool resources to deliver the day-to-
day Key Procurement Activities and wider specialist procurement advice and
support relating to policy development, category management, market
management and sourcing. Policy development may include advice and
guidance on contract management to be carried out by TDC where TDC
deems it relevant

1.2 Detail of the work being undertaken through this agreement is set out in
Schedule 1.

1.3 This Agreement governs the Parties collaboration and sets out the terms on
which the key procurement activities are to be provided to TDC by ECC.

2. Commencement and Duration

2.1 This Agreement commences on 15t October 2021 and shall continue for a
period of 2 years unless terminated earlier in accordance with clause 10.

2.2 This Agreement will be renewed annually for period of 5 years. If a Party does
not wish to renew for the next financial year then they must serve at least
three (3) months written notice to the other Party prior to expiry of the current
years agreement

3. Key Procurement Activities

3.1 The Services to be provided are set down in Schedule 1 {Specification) of this
Agreement.

4. Charges

4.1 It has been agreed that TDC wili pay a basic fee of £60,000 per annum to
ECC for the Services.

Page 84



4.2 This fee will fund resource employed by ECC to deliver the Key Procurement
Activities as set out in Schedule 1 and enable TDC access to increased
knowledge through the wider ECC in-house team.

4.3 During the term of this Agreement ECC may request additional contributions
from TDC for access to further resources required for specific procurement
functions and projects to be discussed and agreed in advance.

4.4 ECC will provide a quote to TDC for any additional project-based support on
their estimate of the resources required to provide the additional services
pursuant with Schedule 2 [Additional Project Costs]

4.5 Any review of the arrangements for the remainder term of the Agreement will
normally be undertaken and the outcome agreed by 4th January, prior to the
commencement of the next financial year.

4.6 In the event any variations are agreed which result in an increase to Charges,
ECC will invoice TDC after the variation has been made and Charge agreed.

4.7 Charges for the provision of the services are based on current estimated
sourcing volumes. Minor variations in demand for routine work will be
accommodated within the charges agreed, but where ECC can no longer
provide the base service as set out in Schedule 1 within the currently agreed
annual charge, then they should inform TDC as soon as possible which will
result in a review of the charge, with the possibility that a revised charge may
need to be discussed and agreed or alternative service provision in line with
clause 7. Requests for additional services will be separately negotiated and
an additional charge may be made.

4.8 In the event of any further charges in relation to projects being progressed on
behalf of TDC which include, but not limited to Legal support on projects,
these costs are to be paid for by TDC to ECC and will be agreed in advance
through other shared service arrangements.

5. Obligations and responsibilities

5.1 ECC are committed to providing a quality service which represents good
value for money.

(a) adhere to best professional standards in accordance with TDC's
Procurement Procedure Rules

(b) ensure that work is carried out by appropriately trained staff;

(¢} be prompt, courteous and helpful in our dealings;

(d) produce timely, relevant and clear information and advice;

{e) show consideration for difficulties you may experience;

(f) seek to deliver any changes required to the services provided under
this agreement;

Page 85



(9

(h)

5.2 TDC wilk:

(a)

(f)

(@)

treat the information that TDC provides in confidence and provide
TDC with its own data on request during the course of this
Agreement; and

comply with the reguirements of the UK General Data Protection
Regulations, Data Protection Act 2018 and the Computer Misuse Act
1990 and successive legislation and all other relevant laws in
relation to the management and use of data.

treat any information provided by ECC in accordance with this
Agreement will be pursuant to the provisions of the UK General
Data Protection Regulations, the Data Protection Act 2018 and the
Computer Misuse Act 1880 and all other relevant laws.

ensure they have acquired the necessary internal governance
approvals for the necessary sourcing and required budgets.
provide relevant and complete information to ECC's Procurement
Team to ensure timely issue of response to the market.

provide all documentation for computer input is completed
accurately and in accordance with advice provided

ensure a steady flow of information is maintained including
providing a monthly project pipeline avoiding unnecessary peaks
and troughs where it is intended that TDC will require ongoing
support from ECC

ensure all information is submitted in line with Corporate
Procedures, Policies, Strategies and Financial Regulations unless
otherwise agreed

pay the charges as they fall due under this Agreement

5.2 Failure to comply with the above will affect ECC’s ability to deliver an effective
service and may result in termination of this Agreement.

6. Review arrangements

6.1 This Agreement will be reviewed 6 monthly by both parties, with review in
advance of the commencement of each financial year

6.2 Any amendment to the arrangements as an outcome of such reviews or
variation of this agreement generally will be made pursuant to clause 7.1

6.3 Where the expectation is that ECC will provide services for more than one
financial year, subject to paragraph 1 above, a minimum of three months’
notice must be given in writing if either party wishes to vary the scope of this
Agreement to allow ECC sufficient time to allocate resources.

7. Variations to the agreement

7.1 This Agreement will be reviewed 6 monthly, with review in advance of the
commencement of each financial year

Page 86



7.2 This Agreement will only be varied if in writing and agreed between the
Parties.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.4

9.1

Project Pipeline Management and Monitoring

To enable resource requirements to be determined and planned for in advance,
at the start of each financial year, TDC shouid provide to ECC's Procurement
Team an up to date and fully detailed project pipeline showing the envisaged
projects to be supported that financial year.

After TDC has provided the project pipeline to ECC as set out in clause

8.1, TDC will advise ECC'’s Procurement Team each quarter, as to whether
there are any amendments that have been identified which change the pipeline
for schemes that need to be taken into consideration for resourcing purposes.

The Parties will throughout this Agreement work collaboratively together to
ensure delivery of the public procurement function across Essex and keep each
other informed through regular communication, with the method and frequency
to be agreed on each project, adopting a ‘one team’ approach

Overall monitoring of this Agreement will be discussed at 3 monthly meetings.
Where improvements can be made on ways of working these will be discussed
in a constructive manner for the benefit of each Party, achieving value for
money and effectiveness of service for both Parties.

The authorised representatives for each Party are as follows:

Karen Townshend and the Corporate Procurement and Contracts Manager
(once appointed )} Tendring District Council

James Sinclair - Essex County Council

Resolution procedure and complaints

if either Party feels that the other Party has not met any of their responsibilities
set out in this Agreement, or a dispute or indifference arises between them,
then either Party shall first refer the matter to

Lisa Hastings — Deputy Chief Executive and Manitoring Officer — Tendring
District Council

l.aura Lee — Head of Procurement — Essex County Council

Page 87



9.2

9.3

10.

10.1

Both Parties shall meet and discuss the issues raised and both Parties agree to
share evidence, documentation or examples of the issues to assist their
respective Heads of Procurement in reaching a resolution.

In the event that following the meeting in clause 9.2, matters still remain
unresolved then the same process as set out in this clause 9 should also be
followed in alerting either Party to major changes in volumes of work and/or
projects impacting the work that ECC carries out on TDC'’s behalf. Further
escalation will be via the relevant Director of Procurement.

Termination of the Agreement

This Agreement will be reviewed annually, however, either Party can terminate
this Agreement or any individual service within this Agreement, by giving the
other party a notice period of six (6) months. This may be subject to
negotiation if there are no live projects underway or planned.

10.2 The notice should be in writing and can include notice by email, addressed to:

(i) Laura Lee or Melanie Evans on behalf of ECC;Laura lee{@essex.gov.uk or
melanie evans2@essex.qov.uk
(i) Lisa Hastings or Richard Barrett on behali of TDC

10.3 Upon notice of termination by either Party, ECC will produce a plan for

11.

11.1

withdrawal of service which will include the transfer of data. Any work that may
be required on the handover of services to new suppliers will be chargeable. A
full estimate of charges will be made for TDC approval before work
commences.

Either Party may terminate this partnership agreement with less than six
months notice if;

(i) One Party is in continuing or material breach of any terms of the agreement
and the breach is incapable of remedy;

(ii) One Party is in continuing or material breach of any terms of the agreement
and, the breach is capable of remedy, but the Party fails to remedy such breach
within fourteen {14) days service of a written notice from the other Party,
specifying the breach and requiring it to be remedied;

(iii) the breach is not, in the opinion of a Council, capable of remedy

Freedom of Information

The Parties acknowledge that both are subject to the requirements of the
Freedom of Information Act 2000 and the Environmental Information Regulations
2004 and shall assist and co-operate with each other (at their own expense) to
enable the other party to comply with these information disclosure requirements.

Page 88



12. Data Protection and Confidentiality

12.1 ECC shall not without the written consent of TDC during this Agreement or at any
time thereafter use for its own purposes, or disclose to any person (except as
may be required by law) the any information identified by TDC to be confidential.

12.2 ECC shall not and shalf ensure that its employees do not divulge to any third
party any information which comes into its or their possession in the course of
providing the services.

. 12.3 The terms of clauses 12.1 and 12.2 shall prevail notwithstanding termination of

the contract.
" 13. Professional Indemnity Insurance

13.1 Any work undertaken by ECC shali be covered by its Professional Indemnity
Insurance policy up to the sum of £10 million.

14. Entire Agreement Protection and Confidentiality

14.1 The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement sets forth the entire agreement
between them with respect to the provision of the Services and supersedes and
replaces all prior communications, drafts, representations, warranties,
stipulations, undertakings and agreements of whatsoever nature, whether oral
or written, between the Parties.

15. Law and Jurisdiction

15.1 The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement sets forth the entire agreement
between them with respect to the provision of the Services and supersedes and
replaces

The signatories {o this agreement are signing to accept that the services above will

be provided in accordance with the terms and charges detailed for the financial years

2021/23.

Agreement Signatures

! > 7 v’?’qqﬂj

Melanie Evans

Director of Procurement

On behaif of Essex County Council
Date: 09 /[ 08 /2022

Page 89



The COMMON SEAL of

TENDRING DISTRICT COUNCIL

was hereunto affixed in the

presence of:

the Council

Schedule 1
Key Procurement Activities

1. Core Service

1.1 ECC is able to offer a comprehensive procurement service with capability across
Category Management, Market Shaping, Sourcing and Contract Management. The
initial focus will be to deliver sourcing for TDC. Sourcing is defined as the process of
vetting and selecting suppliers who best meet the organisations needs

1.2 Working with TDC and within the charges agreed above, ECC will:

« Deliver the projects detailed in the project pipeline as set out in clause 8 of
this Agreement

+ Engage with Assistant Directors, Heads of Service and colleagues across
TDC, developing the contracts register and procurement forward plan for
the TDC.

« Undertake analysis of spend against the contracts register and other
financial data to identify where procurement is necessary to manage
uncontracted spend and protect the authority from unauthorised/non-
compliant expenditure and risk. Spend will be benchmarked against
contracts held by ECC and other District Councils supported by ECC.

« ldentify and promote the strategic procurement requirements of TDC and
ensure that these meet the corporate aims and objectives laid down in the
various policy statements and strategies.

« Ensure compliance with all relevant statutory and legislative requirements

1.3 ECC will also undertake the following activities within the agreed charge:

Page 90



1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Actively promote and implement the Council's Procurement Strategy in accordance
with TDC'’s Procurement Procedure Rules

Support the creation and Implementation of the Procurement Strategy as developed
with Tendring District Council

Development, production and review of procurement processes and procedures and
other key procurement activities.

Provide a central resource for the Council on procurement issues.

To manage the liaison with external stakeholders such as suppliers, procurement
framework organisations including Central Government.

Provision of ad-hoc procurement modelling and appraisals as required.

Maintain an up-to-date knowledge base for procurement issues relating particularly to
services and works and to disseminate this information to the appropriate people where
appropriate.

To undertake interpretation and implementation of technical procurement guidance,
advice and legislation.

Coordinate the use of Procurement Portals such as Construction line and ‘Market
Place’

Maintain the Councils registration to national e-procurement registers

Liaise with Council Services to promote and guide sound procurement practice.
Assist in the preparation and submission of quotations for services, materials and
works.

Meeting and negotiating with suppliers’ representatives.

Attend Essex Local Authority Consortium and other meetings as required.

Support the provision of a central resource for the Council on procurement issues.
Meeting and negotiating with supplier's representatives,

To provide a front line service on the telephone and face to face to customers within
the authority and external suppliers.

To provide timely and accurate management information on procurement trends,
usage and suppliers and the updating of relevant intranet/internet information.

ECC Specialist Procurement Advice and Support, as set out below will,
where possible, be incorporated into delivery of the day-to-day Key
Procurement Activities as provided in the project timeline on behalf of
TDC and within the annual charge:

Category Management - Category Management is the strategic ‘end to end’
process whereby supply / market capability is fully aligned to business goals
and customer requirements.

The Procurement Team will engage all stakeholders, to form a team (one
team approach) who will analyse, understand and plan the future output and
direction of this category.

The output of this work is intended to identify short / medium / long term
procurement business plans to deliver best quantitative and qualitative
outcomes for TDC.

The stages undertaken will be:
Form team and kick off

Page 91



1.9

1.11

1.12

Conduct spend analysis
Determine business requirements
Conduct market analysis

Develop market strategy
Implement and deliver strategy

Market Management - Where required, the Procurement Team will support
with market management and shaping activity including:

Market engagement

Market events

Sourcing Procurement will deliver the following services in accordance
Tendring District Council's Procurement Procedure Rules.

Provide sourcing documents and guidance for Request for Quotation and
Request for Proposal activities
Provide access to sourcing system to run electronic tenders over £50k
Project preparation including any pre-market engagement and testing
Prepare tender documents — specifications and all other applicable
drawings/documents are to be provided by TDC
TDC will provide their chosen Contract terms and conditions to be used prior
to the Tendering stage
Tendering stage of Supplier Selection Questionnaire (if being used)
Tendering stage of Invitation to Tender

o Ensuring compliant
Contract Award
Mobilisation support
ECC Procurement will make it clear to all bidders that the Contracting
Authority and end contract will be between TDC and the winning bidder.

Additional Services - In addition to the core service as provided above ECC
may offer additional procurement services which can be discussed with TDC.

Service responsibility matrix
The table below sets out the actions, timescales and responsibilities for each

party.

Page 92



- gjuswiainbal sEsUISNg 84)

‘aseyd yo oy pue

SHBLHSTI] al}

sawaINbo N

-BY} UM aul Ly peasbe BLILLLIDIEP. 0} dOUSHIOM BLf) WED) WO 8L} LUPM su; BUILLLISIOP PUB SSNOSIP Ssauisng
s gpeosslll o | uim abebue pue woddng ui peaibe se soEosowl] . o1 dOySHIOM PICH DNLLIBIBL]
" paknbsas
asaym ueld Awbaen
alj} 4o} sopys sleudoudde ‘ued AioBayen
au) jo Wawdopasp BY} U0 UOISNBU
ayy yim poddng Jo8 sepis syendoidde
"sisAleue B RIEINULIO Y
puads au} siBULD) "SOWIODING puE
o) pay sdoysyiom sBuipuy sisAjeue pusds
Uy sjedioied pue poddng 20ubE pue PSIRULIOY
_ ‘§500040 SIL) o1 sdoysHIoM PIoH
Jo ued se EQE.NE%E ‘ug|d Asolimen
pue AlEssaey aiaym ejep 81§} 10 SUODSS
‘aseyd yo 10 sisAjBUE By} U] 18IS8Y JUEABIDI BY) WO O}
OB PUB WES) LD ‘sisAjguUe puads au} ‘aseyd Yo yon| pue ejep puads syeudosdde sisAleuy
ayl yum ault u peaibe woddns 0} aiqe aq 0} BjEp WIEBY WI0 4 B4l Ypm auj| BU1 JO sisAjeue puedg
e SHEOSBULL e @cmam.mumtaoﬁam.wn&o& u poalbe se soeosallll o ¢ paanbal sy INo Allen 1InNpUoD

“Bunenu

Apanoe Jo yuow

- b UM gg8001d
uejd AloBaje0 ajoym
Byl J8A0D OF paslbe
.80 0} $9{E0sal |

‘558004 Ay} JO SIUBLSIe
JuBsRYIR 8L YBNoKY Yiom
0} 8omosad speudodde
| jo uoleDuSp B

BB ||9M 5B SO{RDSBL Bl
J0 uswaalbe pug wea)
jaeford ay) jo uswdopaep
) "oy w uoddng

‘Bugegiu

ABAROE JO YJUOLW | Ligiim

sgaoosd usid Alobalen

BlOUM BL] JBA0D O}
peslbe ag O] SOjE0EOWI] e

"AYAGOR BY) 40)
saEaseul) seudoldde
S SUILIBIED

pue wes) jnalod

dn jas pue dojaneg

HO IR

Buuued

pUB Wea] Wio.

AloBaien

plEosawi]

uondussag

sjeossl|

uonduoasa(

Anqisuodssy jiounog jougsig Bulpus]

Agqisuodsay jlouncs Aunocn xossy

- fioBajen

Page 93



‘uoissnosip Joj Abyens
Eyrew epusiod sy)

Jo Wed Se palapIsuoD ag
pINo3J jeY; seale Auapy

‘yoeoldde ABejelis
1oya2w paasbe oy
asardal 0] sapis ueld
AioBejeD ayj alenwucy
‘safiejs

snoaaid ayy Bulnp
padojaaap sisAjeuE

aseud yo -AioBajes ay} Buisn Azofa1e0
%3P pUE Wea) Wio4 ay} Joy ABsress 19viell 8y} "aseyd 10 Yo pue ayy Joj ABajess Jaxiew Abejens
ay} yim suy u pasiBe ajejniuio} o] doysyiom ay) LWEs) L0 B4Y] LM SUl ai} e2J0E pue arRLID) 1oXEN
SE S8|EISOtl | ypm abiefus pue uoddng Ui paaube se sejeasaul] . 0} doysxiom plop dojanaq

‘ajeudoldde ‘ued

AIBUYM SHSE) JUBISHIP B AloBaies sy} ut uoisnuUl

pue sapls sIsAjeue e J0} SBPIS ay} S1BINWIc)

ayy Jo sabeys jueaajal pue sIsAjeuE JayJew

ay) o} Indul apiacid paasbe sy 1no Auen

uaNe} ‘pasnbal sjuswss ay)

‘aseyd yo aq 0) spaau 1ey) sishjeus pue sisfjeue JHew no
HOI) pUE LBs) W04 19yJeL 0) yoeosdde ay) ‘aseyd 4o ¥on| pue Buikaleo 0y yoeosdde sisAjeuy
ay) yum auyj uj paaibe auiwialap 0 doysyiom au) Wes) Wio4 ay) ypm aulf saiBe pue ssnosip JeMIBN
Se saEdsaw) | yum sbebus pue poddng u poslbe se sojensallyy e 0} doysyiom pioH onpuod

‘N0 paLLEs

yoieasal pue yoeqpaay

"‘palinbai uodn paseqg ueld

sg sapys eleudosdde Aiofeies ay) ul uoisnou

ai} Jo JuswdoBasap 10} sapis gjeudoidde

ay} ul Indut apincid B} a1BINWLI0S

‘oseyd o ‘Aiobales ‘piemiog Buiob Alobajen

Mo pue wWes) wWio4 aljy Joj plemto) Buiob au} Joj s)uswalnbal

S{edsatlil] Co_wnmnumwm 2{edsotlll | :Omuamhommﬁ_
Apjiqisuodsay j1ouno?) jou3s1q Bupua} Ajigisuodsay ouno) AJuno) xass3 jysej

AiobBoyen

Page 94



"$is8G 85203 Ag

B5ED € Uo paasbe ag
0} sauanb Buajosal
|10} SOBOS |

0} anss! o} sisyddns

Aug jo soioads pug
uonsuLoiu punesoeg
puUE udiesnsds splanid

5188 B5ED Ag BseD B
uo paslbe ag o) sauenb
Bulajosas Jo] sa|E0SBL |

SISE( BSED AQ 9%E0 B
uo pasibe aq ym joafoud
UOBS 40} oLl

TR

5] uoido amAleS

395 B 8IBUM SBINANDE
jesodoiyg oy 3sanbayy
PUE LDRSIONTY J0§
jsanbay oy aauepmnb
PUE SJUSLWNDOP
BUDINGS SpIACld

SDJY B Sdldd

Bummog

“SHIBAD
1ew ayy Dupueial
suoissinasip Suuued
aly jo ued se paaibe

- 9q 0} sajEDseLU |

‘SILDAD
iuswabebus 1@l

18 juasasd pug pusyy
siReyEu 1o uolsledaad
BL) oM SB Sjuane. @Bl
ay} o sjunuaiiuedle sy
ur eedionted pue yoddng

SIUSAD 19IEW BL)
Suipsebal suossnosp
Guueid sy jo wed se

paaifie sq o) saEIsaLE ]

siusas wiswabehus
1B auy Woddneg
uoiELLGI peanbal
Jojuswido@aap syl pug
SuOISSas asey! sbueiue
puB piou 'paylusp; ale
SIUBAD BB RIBUM

SILUBAD 19BN

‘Bunemur:

Aaoe Jo yuow
L uijim paadlbe
804 D] SVIROSBLL ]

‘paEuBpl

asaum sjuguRINbY
wewsabiebue 19w
N0 Aued pue Joddng

“Buneniu
AARDE JO GUOW | UM

‘paiuam
alalm siusitannbal
wawebebus yew

jusuwisbebus
RN

wswebeuew

pawibe 2 o) sojEosaWI]

o Aued pue poddng

‘sossannd
JUSLUAINDI)

o ABejeag

1anie ey ur paaibe
$2.59B0S8W] |

‘painbas alaum
suonor ADSIRAS J9y e
10 uoissesbod a1y poddng

‘Abajens

1ie)y padoeasp el W
pRElepD SE $S8[Bssaul ]
PRMoio) 8g

0} sanialoe Buninos oy
DE|IE)8p SB S8|E05atll)
Hewse wewainoosd g
SEPNOUl AHAIDE SIBUAM

‘(paunuap! sBRINIOE
auy uo Bupuadep

YIS 94} 1o uonDes
Buininog aL on

yulp Aeww siuy) ABsieag
Idey |y Ul paliiiusp
88 sU0ioe ssalbold

Abwiensg
1B

ajeosauy

uondusssq

aensowWL

uondiuosa(

Ayngisuodsey pounog Jo1nsiq Buipus]

Atpgisuodsey [1Iounos AUNoD Xassy

sLus|du

Page 95



e 10} Yoeoldde ay)

"SJUSAD

Buidojeaap upm Loddng juswabeliue jeysew
0] sanlAoR/SIIaWe "S]UBAR ‘Bunasw Aue jo Juswdojeasp
[ENPIAIPUI awabebua jayiew Ho-yoy o yed se peaifie ayj ypm doddng
10} sajensalul] Aug jo awdojpaap 80 0} SBIANOR/SIUSWSD ‘p@LepISU0D Bunse; pue
‘Bueniul atj} Uim poddng [ENPIAIPUI JO) SB|E0SatWl | e ag pinoo jey} sease juswesbebus
Ajanoe 30 yjuow “auuew A e u ‘Bunenpul 2y uo esuepmnb spiaoid 1oEW
L uiyym paaibe ag o) 81 188] 1@ewpuaiuaiebua ABAROE 1O Yluow ‘seuayos/sioaiold fue Bul
Bugsayuswsbebua J9MIELW SO} L wiyhim pastfie aq oyioads Joj paljiiuap u Ipnjou
1B wawalnbal sy} Suipsebal 01 Gunsejuswabebus si Bunss)usiwabebus uoljesedald
IO $5]eDSWI ] LofBaou ainsug 19MIBW [0] SO|EDSAWY . 19YIBLY BIBYAA 108loid
wasAs Buiomnos
Yl AG pajeoIunLILIoD
ag 0} seniea)|oo
awainsoid ayi ubnoa
PaINoJ aIe 3s8Y) pauiuap "SJORIUCD
aJe sauanb araUp) pesn o Jaua 0} 4
Buiag wajsAs Buoinos sy} ay] S8|geuS YANYM N(OST
apIsino ssalddns yim ino VIS B4 IO B JBAO SIAPUSE L0408
PSLIJED §1 UOHEOIUNWILIOD ay} 1noyBno.y} papiroid unJ o} weysAs Buoinos waysAg
VIN Ol JBL) aunsug aq 01 wa)sAs Bupinog e 0} $5O00E BPINCIY Buioinog
‘sass0004d asay)
woJ; Buisue salanb Aue
LI JUBISISSE DpInGId
‘pamoy| 0} st ssaooid
gjpudosdde alnsua o)
sjuawannbal siqeoldde
l|e uo papinoad
SIUBLINOOD D4y
pue d-y 8yl esiin
ajelsau | Comua_homwﬁ Qjedsaul | mo_«amuuwwﬁ
Agisuodsay ouno) yoisiq Bunipual Aqisuodsay 1ouno) AJuno) Xassy jyse} AzobBajen

Page 96



ajep paalbie ay) Ag
USLINDOP BU) 8PIACH
- taw sq o)

ajep uoneaiqnd aiy
.-Blgeus o3 Ag painhal
B |iM SRIBWINDOP
UBYM 10} BLypRap

B} 2PN{OUL I Si |
sseooid juawainoosd
© au Joj ajqelawy

ay; Buse.be jo ued
se-padojpaap 8q M
ssea04d a4 jo abeis
SI] JO) SB{RosaLl |

JUSLSIN00] O] papicid
pug-gjep awjpeap
pevibe sy} Ag pamojioy
Buisg sseao:d auyy Joj
siuaWnaop usweansosd
-ajgeojdde jje dojpasg

C O UsjuslInaop

geey) Jo Juswdopasp

8yl 404 ajqisucdsal sIaumo
sasfe pue awsussiosioud
yoes Jo) paanbal aie ey
SIBWNDOR JuBtLa Mmoo
a1} salbe pue Ajusp! o)
sandes||os JusWaInoeld
UL YPMOSHOAA

U} pBau [ ajqelsu ey
1ot Jou si Ag peeidilioD
aq o} slusnoop 8y}

10} suHpRap Syl SIBUAA
18l ag

0} @jep uoljealgnd ay)
aieus 0) Ag padnba
B {[iM SILSWUNJOPR UDLM
Jog BuiipEDap 8yl apn|ow
i sy 1 ssaooud
ustlainaoid ay) 10}
siqelewy au) Busasbe
J0 Jed se padopasp a9
|liwn ss0004d 84 jo ebels
81y} 40} SBEEISAWI |

“AQ patedwos

8q o} paanba;

218 SLBWNIOD UIYM IOy
auypeap sy esube pue
seale Asy ayj jo yDES
10} E8[E0SHL} SBUIUSD
M SiqepLl
uswainood B dowas(
‘uaxe; Bueg

ainos pesinaosd

ayj uodn peseq
padojassp 8q o) pasu
[ 124 SRIBWINDOD

Aoy By Auapy

SJUBWIN200
iopua] jo
wewidojenag

sl g e

ui panss) ade siaded
aoueueant Bupiehs:
uoliEULIoMI 10}

“onbes]jon JUSWBIND0
Bupoddns sy yim
asiel pue Juausinood
0} uoye|el Ul Wes)
jeasiel ey Buipiebel
Jeded sy ut uoisaRUl

- 40} padnbai si ey
uolieuLol 8y} Agiuap)

fypqisuodsay p1vunog Jouysiq Bupipua )

Aujiqisuodsay jiounon AJunon xassy

{4apusy
- sisanbai ey} aansug BUIBUIS [ENRINDLE YoeD jIBUnes
‘SISeC BseD fie7) maam.ﬂ sjeudosdds JoMistcy Buldpus g Hmo@ 93
Aq @sed e uo poslbe auj jo uoissasboud 10 Aupeisuodsss sy [eacaddy
- B( 0} SBIBOSIW | pueuswdopasg gju SUE LIS SIUBLIBADD) SOUBLLIDADLY
. ‘[uise) 1yieW 10y
‘paiuept pasn 8Q 0} SIUSLWUNDOD
Buisas Jo->oi siuswnoop ajeldoidde 10 Juswdojarsp
Joued se paalfe ag Aue pue unsse) sl uym uoddng
ajeasau g uonduosag BlEoSBaUI uopduassQq

AioBsjes |

Page 97




‘SIUSWILLIND/STI00S
0] juaweaibe aulwsiap o)
sBuiasul sNsUasuUoD auy
DUBHE O] SIOBNBAS IV
"§8400S

jo uoneoynsnl {inj ypm
mmtzmmrc SNSUQSLIOD 9y}
0] Joud Xpjeus LoneneAa
pa1o|dLLIOD BPIADIY
'suonsanb paiuap

ay} Jo) paalaoas sasuodsal
{2 91008 pue 9)enjens

LDIJELLLION JUBAB|BE BL)
apiaoud pasn Bujaq si
UIJUONOTHISUOD) 2UBLYAA
‘PaMIDBI

sasuodsal jjg peojuMmog
‘SIOJBNEAD

e 1o0j pasjdwiod
$5200.1d js819)Ul

JO UDHBIBDID BINsSUY
‘sasuodsal

10} spelap puas pue
sjganbal UONESHLED

{abueys ‘uoiien|eAa o} Jold swioy (18 piodal pue aiieuepy (uonenjeas
o} joelgns) 10aload }saJalu| Jo uofjrigRap ‘(abueyo ‘SLaApE pue
au Joj ayqe)aWy sjeudoldde syaidwon o} joalgns) 10sio.d auy} Jo} aleudoldde ay) pue suonesyuep
Jawainsoid ‘ayeudosdde ajgejawl Juatamoao.d LWaIsAs swalnoolde m.c_ J,o¢_v
8y Jo juswdajansp aeym 1senbal jo sinoy ay) jo yewdopaap 3y} uo Ayunuoddo IpnioUl
a1 j0 1ed se psaibe g UILIM suoledIeD ay) jo ed se Jusamnosd abeig
SE Sajeosol | 0} S95U0dS3l POPIACIY poslle se sapossll | ayi ysignd uollo8|eg
e
10U S} SJUDLLNOOP ‘padojanap
juawainooud SILUSLUNOOD U0 joBROpS)
ajgeddde apIncId pue MBIAaY

ife Jo uoisinoad

ay] alaym pomaiaol
aq | Juswainooid
aly) jo uonedyqnd
B} Jo) sojeosawl]
“SjUaLundop oLy}

10 uoIsiAcId 8y Joy

-atuayasoalosd
s Bundoddns senbea)jod

‘pazube
sulpesp palepdn
UE puUE pamainal aq

"a|geddde

aleym sajeg|dwa) jo
uolsiactd syl Buipnou
spawnoop ejeudoldde
ay} 10 Juswidoaaap

B LD LU0 sl
Buppus | au} Yim YO

ajeosawl}

uopdliasaqg

ajeosaw]

uonduosaqg

Ajpqisuodsay j1ouno joisiq Bunpua)

Ajiqisuodsay {Iounon Ajuno) xassy

Alobajen

Page 98



Agenda Item 7

FINAL REPORT
OF THE
PLANNING

ENFORCEMENT

TASK & FINISH

WORKING GROUP

FOLLOWING ITS INQUIRY INTO
PLANNING ENFORCEMENT
FUNCTION

DATE: 13 MARCH 2023

Paglje 99



TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE TASK & FINISH WORKING GROUP

1.1 To carry out a review of the Council’s Planning Enforcement function in relation to
current powers, policies, procedures, data on the use of current enforcement powers,
effectiveness of approach and assessment of how cases should be prioritised.

THE AIMS AND OBJECTIVES OF THE INQUIRY

2.1 Effective regulation and enforcement is one of the key priorities in the Council’s
Corporate Plan 2020-2024, under the heading of ‘Delivering High Quality Services’. The
need for a review of the Planning Enforcement function came about following concerns
being raised by a number of Councillors in different parts of the District about its
effectiveness in responding to a range of different planning enforcement related matters.
Drawing on the key headings within the terms of reference for the Task & Finish Working
Group, the aims and objectives of the inquiry were developed through discussion at the
group’s inaugural meeting on Monday 3 October 2022 and evolved as the inquiry
proceeded.

2.2 The aims and objectives are summarised as follows:

Current Powers

e To review the full set of powers available to the Council for the carrying out of
planning enforcement, having regard to the fact that any action is discretionary on
the Council and is always expected to be proportionate and appropriate.

e To gain a better understanding of the range of tools available to the Council’s
enforcement team to resolve complaints — ranging from no action, negotiation or
minor interventions, through to formal enforcement action and legal prosecution.

e To explore how the powers and tool available to the Council can be better
communicated to those with an interest, including District Councillors, Town and
Parish Councils and members of the public.

Policies

e To review the Council’s Planning Enforcement Policy which sets out the available
powers and the approach that the Council will take when receiving, investigating
and, where appropriate, taking action against alleged breaches of planning control.

e To review the associated ‘harm risk assessment’ which is used by Officers to
prioritise the investigation of cases and to inform decisions about appropriate levels
of action going forward.

e To recommend improvements to the Planning Enforcement Policy and harm risk
assessment as deemed necessary to improve the effectiveness of approach.

Page 100




Procedures

Data

To review the full process of dealing with enforcement complaints including the
initial receipt of a complaint, responding to the complainant, visiting the premises,
identifying and establishing any breaches, carrying out harm risk assessment,
choosing a course of action and formal processes thereafter.

To review the approach to communication with complainants, those the subject of
action and other interested parties; and how this might vary depending on the
nature of the issue.

To explore how third parties, such as Town and Parish Councils, might be able to
assist the District Council by exchanging information at a local level.

To recommend improvements to procedures with the aim of improving the
effectiveness of approach.

To gain an understanding, through the interrogation of data, of the scale and nature
of enforcement issues in Tendring, including number of complaints/cases received,
resolved or outstanding and how they are recorded and monitored — both for
internal purposes and for public reporting.

To develop and recommend a framework for reporting enforcement data and
performance to the Planning Committee.

Effectiveness of Approach

To invite honest feedback from Councillors and other interested parties on the
effectiveness of the planning enforcement function based on experiences and
issues in their areas.

To review the resources available to the planning enforcement team when set
against the scale and nature of the task — particularly in relation to management
structure, number of Officers and skills, knowledge and experience.

To explore and identify areas where improvements can be made to the
effectiveness of the approach and to consider alternative ways in which the
enforcement function could be undertaken.

Prioritisation of Cases

To review the approach to prioritising the inspection of alleged breaches of planning
control and determining the level of action required thereafter — having regard to the
harm risk assessment.

To recommend improvements to the harm risk assessment and the approach the
Council takes in determining priorities for action.

Reviewing the decision-making process and the level within the Council that key
decisions are taken.

Page 101




MEMBERSHIP OF THE TASK & FINISH WORKING GROUP

Clir. Andy Baker (Chairman)
Clir. James Codling

ClIr. Gina Placey

Clir. Chris Amos

Clir. Alan Coley

OFFICER SUPPORT FOR THE TASK & FINISH WORKING GROUP

Gary Guiver (Lead Officer) — Director of Planning
Keith Durran — Committee Services Officer
Hattie Dawson-Dragisic — Performance and Business Support Officer

INVITEES AND PARTICIPANTS

CliIr. Jeff Bray — Planning Portfolio Holder

Lisa Hastings — Deputy Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer

Joanne Fisher — Planning Solicitor

John Pateman-Gee — Planning Manager

Matt Deal — Planning Enforcement Team Leader

Matthew Ramsden — Development Technician — Planning Enforcement
Sharon Harwood-Bee — Planning Business and Support Manager

EXPECTED OUTCOME(S) OF THE INQUIRY

3.1 A series of recommendations aimed at improving the effectiveness of the Council’s
planning enforcement function in light of concerns raised by Councillors and better mutual
understanding between Councillors and Officers of their respective positions. These
outcomes to be reported to the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee and
considered, for action, by the Planning Portfolio Holder and Director of Planning.

ACTUAL OUTCOME(S) OF THE INQUIRY

4.1 That senior Officers shared many of the concerns expressed by Councillors about the
planning enforcement function and were already putting steps in place to improve the
situation — reflecting a number of Councillors’ suggestions. The 19 recommendations set
out in this report therefore include some measures that have either already been put in
place or are being put in place which respond positively to issues identified.

Page 102




RECOMMENDATION(S)

The recommendations that the Task & Finish Working Group wish to put forward for
consideration by the Resource & Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee are as
follows:

1) To note that in recent months, following the establishment of the Working
Group and the introduction of a new Planning Manager and a new Planning
Enforcement Team Leader, and with the full cooperation of the Planning
Portfolio Holder and key Officers, notable improvements in Council’s
planning enforcement function have already been made in response to issues
raised and suggestions put forward. These include:

e the update and subsequent adoption of a new Planning Enforcement
Policy and associated harm risk assessment to replace the previous
version that had not been reviewed or updated since 2010;

¢ an initial review, update and tidying of the Council’s database of live
enforcement cases to remove cases that have been closed, incorrectly
recorded or otherwise superseded by events in order to establish a
more accurate baseline of information;

e more positive engagement of Planning and Planning Enforcement
Officers in the Council’'s Corporate Enforcement and Operation
Enforcement Groups to improve working across services on a wide
range of enforcement matters;

¢ a notable improvement in the willingness of Officers to engage and
communicate with Councillors, members of the public and other
interested parties in recognition of the concerns raised previously;

¢ a notable reduction in the Planning Enforcement Team’s reliance on the
Council’s legal Officers for advice and assistance in carrying out
planning enforcement duties; and

e a concerted effort to recruit new Officers to the Planning Enforcement
Team on a permanent basis and by utilising channels to attract ex
Police and armed services personnel with relevant transferable skills.

2) For the Council to retain the planning enforcement function in-house and to
support continued efforts to reduce the Council’s reliance on temporary staff
employed through agencies and to recruit permanent staff to the Planning
Enforcement Team - utilising channels aimed at targeting ex Police and
armed forces personnel with transferable skills and with the offer of on-the-
job training and development;

Page 103




3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

To require Officers to undertake a specific and immediate update to the
Planning Enforcement Policy and associated harm risk assessment to
incorporate changes, as detailed in Appendix 1 to this report, that are aimed
at improving clarity, relevance and effectiveness and for the updated version
to be reported to the Planning Committee for its consideration and approval
at the earliest meeting practicable;

To thereafter require Officers to undertake an automatic review of the
Planning Enforcement Policy and associated risk harm assessment every
four years for the Planning Committee’s consideration and approval to ensure
it is kept up to date and responds accordingly to changes in law, policy,
circumstances and trends in enforcement-related activity — allowing for
earlier reviews where necessary;

To empower the Director of Planning, in consultation with the Chairman of the
Planning Committee and the Monitoring Officer, to escalate and expedite (as
appropriate) enforcement action where there are considered to be exceptional
matters of public interest with implications for the reputation of the Council
that are not necessarily identified through the standard scoring approach in
the harm risk assessment;

For Officers to prepare quarterly reports on enforcement caseload and
performance to go to the Planning Committee, for information, which will
contain data on:

e number of complaints received/registered in the quarter;

e number of cases closed in the quarter;

e number of live cases presented by category, electoral ward and time

period since receipt; and
¢ enforcement-related appeal decisions;

To support the continued work of the Council’s internal Corporate
Enforcement Group and Operational Enforcement Group in considering
cross-service and cross-body enforcement matters;

For Officers to continue the process of reviewing cases recorded on the
database system to remove closed/irrelevant cases and re-categorising them
to provide an accurate baseline for case management and reporting of data
going forward,;

That Officers provide an annual training session, held in person, for all
District Councillors covering the powers, policy and processes around
planning enforcement together with case-study examples and exercises —
with the first training session to be held within the two months following the
May 2023 local elections (and following subsequent local elections);

Page 104




10) That any Councillor who is a member of the Planning Committee (either as a
permanent or designated substitute Member) to attend the planning
enforcement training as a mandatory requirement;

11)That the Director of Planning be asked to offer or facilitate similar training
sessions for Town & Parish Councils;

12)For Officers to incorporate within internal systems, reminders to
automatically update complainants, interested Ward Councillors and other
relevant parties (where appropriate) every 21 days with information on the
progress of cases — even if it is to advise of no or limited progress — unless
earlier or more frequent updates can be given or are required (these 21-day
reminders will follow the initial 21-day notification currently in place following
the receipt of a complaint);

13)For Officers to respond within 48 working hours, to emails from Councillors
relating to planning enforcement matters so they can be suitably informed
when advising members of the public;

14)To note that a significant proportion of live enforcement cases in the District
relate to breaches of occupancy conditions at caravan and holiday parks,
many of which are complex, sensitive and long-standing with a variety of
issues to be taken into account. To resolve these breaches in full and deal
with the implications thereafter would require significant additional and
dedicated resources. It is therefore recommended that the Planning Policy
and Local Plan Committee is asked to consider developing a strategy or
policy to guide a coordinated and long-term approach to the application and
enforcement of occupancy conditions across the District having regard to
matters such as impact on the tourism industry, flood risk, health and safety,
quality of life, ecology, disability and homelessness;

15)That for site inspections, Officers must always use Council equipment for
capturing photographs and other data and are supplied with hi-visibility
clothing (preferably labelled ‘Tendring District Council Enforcement’);

16)For Officers to pro-actively monitor compliance with planning conditions and
obligations wherever practical and where resources allow — and work
constructively with owners, developers and applicants to identify and resolve
potential future compliance issues before they give rise to a breach of
planning control and possible enforcement action;

17)For the Planning Service to consider incorporating standard advice into pre-
application responses and validation requirements for applications setting
out, and seeking agreement to, the Council’s expectations for development to
be carried out with the necessary consents and compliance thereafter with
any planning conditions or obligations imposed;

Page 105




18)For Officers to review and update the form on the Council’s website for
reporting enforcement complaints to make it more user-friendly and to allow
complainants to provide as much information as they can to describe the
issue they wish to report; and

19)For the Director of Planning to consider, on a case-by-case scenario and in
liaison with the Council’s Communications Manager, publicising successful
enforcement outcomes to demonstrate the Council’s commitment to planning
enforcement.

CHRONOLOGY

Meeting 1: Monday 3" October 2022

5.1 The inaugural meeting of the Working Group was held in person on Monday 3™
October 2022 and the main topic of discussion was the scope of the inquiry and matters
for discussion. The matters covered, which would provide the basis for subsequent work
included the following:

e Decision-making route for adoption of the Planning Enforcement Policy (why
approval is by the Planning Committee and not the Planning Policy and Local Plan
Committee or other body).

e The need to review and update the Planning Enforcement Policy and associated
Harm assessment criteria on an ongoing basis (particularly given that the last policy
had not been updated for many years).

e The staffing structure and staffing levels in the Planning Enforcement Team,
whether they were sufficient, included the right knowledge, skills and experience
and the reliance on agency staff.

e Concern about weaknesses in communication between the Council, Councillors,
complainants and the community (given local examples where there has been a
perception of no action, or a lack of willingness to take action).

e Communicating successes of enforcement action to the community, to ensure the
Council is never seen as a ‘soft touch’ when it comes to taking affirmative action
(mindful that some cases will require a degree of sensitivity and confidentiality in the
way they are handled publicly).

e How Town and Parish Councils could assist the District Council by being eyes and
ears on the ground when it comes to planning enforcement matters, but ensuring
they have a sufficient level of understanding about what the District Council is and
is not able to do and the need to take proportionate and appropriate action in the
public interest.

Page 106




e Concern about the scale of enforcement cases and the ability of the current
enforcement team and resources within it to address that caseload — with a
requirement for regular feedback on number of cases opened, closed and any
backlogs.

e The need for proactive monitoring and enforcement — particularly on larger
development sites where there are concerns about developers flouting planning
conditions and not treating neighbours and the wider community with the respect
they require.

e Whether enforcement officers should have a more visible presence, through their
attire, so that residents, developers and others can see that the Council does carry
out active enforcement and that planning enforcement matters are taken seriously
(albeit understanding that some cases may best be dealt with discretely).

e Whether developers/builders or others with a track record of planning offences
should be treated more rigorously or their issues be dealt with greater priority as a
warning that the Council is not a soft touch and repetitious offences will not be
tolerated (albeit understanding that it is the nature of the breach that justifies the
course of action, as opposed to who caused it).

e To discuss whether there would be any benefit in considering outsourcing the
Council’'s enforcement function to a private company or other contractor.

e Need for discussion on how enforcement cases are handled, recorded and how
decisions are taken with regard to the appropriate course of action.

e That the Working Group would want to speak to the Council’s Planning Manager,
the new and previous Enforcement Team Leaders, the Council’s Deputy Chief
Executive (and Monitoring Officer) and the Council’s Planning Solicitor, amongst
others as part of future meetings.

Email to all Members requesting input: 6t" October 2022

5.2 Following the inaugural meeting, the Chairman of the Working Group, through the
Council’'s Committee Services Officer, reached out to all Members of the Council via email
to ask for opinions on planning enforcement matters and for input into future matters for
discussion. The email of 61" October 2022 was as follows:

“Dear Members

As you are aware there have been a range of Task and Finish groups set up to scrutinise
certain areas of Tendring District Councils operations.

One group is looking at Planning Enforcement.

Page 107




The Chairman of this Task and Finish group has asked for your input. He would like to
hear your thoughts and experiences of dealing with Planning at Tendring District Council,
whether they are first hand or what you may have heard from residents in your respective
Wards.

What aspirations do you think TDC should thrive to achieve?

Your input is vital.

Please email democraticservices@tendringdc.qgov.uk with your comments.”

5.3 Responses to the email were received from three Councillors.

5.4 One Councillor described his experience of planning enforcement as ‘abysmal’ and
referred to several issues where a successful resolution had not been found. They also
cited an occasion where the service failed to attend a liaison meeting with residents and a
developer to discuss blatant and constant planning breaches — leaving him to resolve the
issues himself. That Councillor encouraged the Working group to look into the option of
outsourcing planning enforcement and using in-house resources to focus on the
determining of planning applications [see recommendation 2].

5.5 Another Councillor was of the view, and it was the view of residents, that enforcement
officers do not get out quickly enough to look at properties where work that could be a
breach of planning was ongoing to issue stop notices if necessary. They also suggested
that Officers needed to be more proactive in their dealings with builders who disregard
their planning conditions, citing a large housing development [see recommendation 16].
This Councillor felt that more staff were needed in planning enforcement to look around
the district more regularly and to send out the message ‘not to mess with Tendring’.

5.6 The third Councillor raised the issue of a boundary fence in their Ward that had been
erected without planning permission that was accepted by Officers as being in breach of
planning but where Officers had determined, in line with the harm risk assessment, that it
would not be expedient or in the public interest to pursue enforcement action. That
decision was placing the Councillor in a difficult position in dealing with the complainant
and giving rise to the impression that the Council does not take breaches of planning
control seriously.

Meeting 2: Wednesday 26" October 2022

5.7 In the Working Group’s second meeting on Wednesday 26" October 2022, which was
held online, there was a run through the process for receiving and inspecting enforcement
complaints, with input from the Council’'s Development Technician — Enforcement; an
update on enforcement caseloads; and a discussion on the merits or otherwise of
potentially outsourcing the planning enforcement function to an external body.

Page 108



mailto:democraticservices@tendringdc.gov.uk

Process for receiving and inspecting enforcement complaints

5.8 The Council's Development Technician — Enforcement gave a PowerPoint
presentation (see Appendix 2 to this report) setting out the approach to receiving and
processing a planning enforcement complaint up to the point of deciding what enforcement
action, if any, might be required.

5.9 The Council’'s enforcement team can receive enquiries via several channels including:
e The TDC website;
e Direct phone call;
e Planning support/reception enquiries;
e Via Councillors and Town and Parish Councils;
¢ Via email; and
e From employees.

5.10 Officers then consider whether or not the enquiry relates to planning matters over
which the Council would have powers to enforce. If there is not considered to be a
planning breach, or the issues raised fall under other powers or departments, the
complainant will be notified of that within 15 days. Where a planning-related matter has
been identified, it is logged as a case on the Uniform system, given a unique reference
number and allocated to an Officer for further consideration. Complainants’ details are
recorded on the system but are kept confidential. An acknowledgement letter is sent via
email or post to the complainant explaining the next stages of the process. Internally, there
is a 21 day reminder on the system so that the complainant will be contacted, even if it is
to let them know if the Officer is still investigating the case but yet to reach a conclusion.
Relevant documents relating to the case are stored on the Council’'s IDOX document
management system.

5.11 On day 1, having sent out an acknowledgment letter, the Officer will conduct a
desktop study using available records and information to help determine the location,
planning history, land charges register, use and relevant planning policies pertaining to the
property.

5.12 On establishing whether or not there has been a planning breach, the Officer will
carry out an initial triage using the harm risk assessment (appended to the Council's
Enforcement Policy). Assessment against the criteria in the harm risk assessment will give
the case a score which, in turn, will help to establish (using a traffic light system — red
(priority 1), amber (priority 2) and green (priority 3)) the level of priority to be given to
carrying out further investigation including a physical site visit. l.e. breaches causing a
great deal of harm will be prioritised over cases where the harm is judged to be lower and
action is less urgent.

5.13 Where a site visit is determined as being required, Priority 3 green cases will
generally receive an Officer visit within 10 working days, Priority 2 amber cases will
receive a visit within 5 working days and Priority 1 red cases will receive a visit within 2

Page 109




days — or as soon as practicable (within 24hrs) depending on the nature of the complaint
(e.g. works to Listed Buildings or Protected Trees might necessitate an urgent inspection).
However, Officers will exercise judgement where certain factors suggest a higher priority
should apply than indicated by a low score in the harm risk assessment.

5.14 When the inspection is carried out, photographs and other evidence are placed on
the Uniform and IDOX system and the Officer will update the harm risk assessment
accordingly if they see something on site that might indicate a higher or lower priority for
further action should be given.

5.15 Having carried out the inspection and reassessed the severity of the case, Officers
will then consider the most appropriate course of action going forward.

5.16 Members questioned at what level of seniority within the Officer hierarchy the
decisions on prioritising cases are taken. Officers explained that the judgement can be
taken by any enforcement officer dealing with the case — with the nature of many breaches
being quite clear, similar and requiring a fairly standard and established course of action;
however where cases exhibit factors that might indicate a greater level of complexity, a
more junior officer will liaise with more senior staff including the Enforcement Team
Leader, Planning Officers, Planning Manager or Director of Planning, as appropriate, in
agreeing the best course of action [see recommendation 5].

5.17 Members enquired as to how evidence is recorded and documented, if needed for the
purposes of future action or prosecution. Officers explained that all information is uploaded
onto the Council’s IDOX document record management system but are kept secure and
are only accessible to relevant Officers. All information uploaded onto the system are
dated and uploaded on the day of receipt. The Chairman of the Working Group indicated
some concern about how evidence is recorded and suggested that further discussion on
this matter might be required.

5.18 There was a short discussion about whether Officers have the technology to take
photographs on site and for them to be immediately and automatically uploaded to the
system, or whether the Officer has to return to the office or to their computer to do the
uploading. It was confirmed that Officers have to upload the photos after their visit. It was
revealed that Officers were possibly using their own cameras and phones to take
photographs — which represented a risk to the security and confidentiality of information
being collected. The Director of Planning and Members agreed that this practice needed to
end immediately and that TDC equipment must be used for data collection [see
recommendation 15].

Update on cases

5.19 The Director of Planning provided a short recap on a presentation given by the
Planning Manager at an earlier all-Member briefing session which had provided an up-to-
date account of the planning enforcement caseload and progress on other enforcement-
related matters.

Page 110




5.20 It was reported that the new Planning Enforcement Policy and associated harm risk
assessment had been considered by the Planning Committee on 1st September 2022 and
that an updated version, reflecting comments received, had been circulated to Members of
that Committee for final comments before the policy was to be adopted and published.

5.21 It was also reported that a new Planning Enforcement Team Leader had joined the
Council and had started work on 25" October 2022. The Director of Planning explained
that even in his first couple of days, the new Team Leader was already making a positive
impression on staff and had experience of undertaking a similar review of the planning
enforcement function at his previous authority which would likely be of benefit to the
current review. Advertisements for new Enforcement Officers, targeting ex-Police and
Military Personnel were going through internal Human Resource processes but were
expected to go public within a week.

5.22 It was explained that following the Planning Manager’s review of the enforcement
cases recorded on the Council’'s Uniform system, it had been possible to reduce the
overall number from 459 on 5" October 2022 down to 269 on 22" October. It had been
discovered that a considerable number of cases should have been removed from the
system having either already been resolved, having become irrelevant or having been
recorded incorrectly. The 269 cases on the updated file still required further cleansing and
the categories of breach to which they related would still require a review to ensure their
categorisation was useful and accurate [see recommendation 8].

5.23 It was reported that since April 2022 (over seven months), enquiries to the Council
had averaged around 24 a month with closures at around 23 a month. The distribution of
cases by Parish or non-Parished area broadly reflected the geographical character of the
District with larger numbers of cases in the main urban areas (most notably Clacton,
Harwich, Frinton/Walton) — as would be expected; albeit with the notable exception of St.
Osyth being the location of the largest proportion of cases due to the number of caravan
and holiday parks which are the subject of numerous cases covering a high number of
individual plots, related to breach of winter occupancy conditions. Of the 269 cases, 83
related to caravan/holiday park occupancy with the other 186 cases relating more
generally to a wider range of planning enforcement matters. It was confirmed that Bel-Air
in St. Osyth was going to be the subject of particular investigation in the coming winter
season [see recommendation 14].

5.24 |1t was asked if the enforcement case data could be broken down by Ward rather than
Parish to paint a more accurate picture of the geographic distribution of enforcement cases
— particularly where larger urban areas are made up of a number of Wards — such as the
unparished area of Clacton [see recommendation 6].

Discussion on outsourcing Planning Enforcement

5.25 In response to the suggestion from some Councillors (outside of the Working Group)
that the Council should consider outsourcing the planning enforcement function to an

Page 111




external body, the Director of Planning gave an explanation as to why he would have
concerns about that approach. There was no knowledge of any other local authorities that
completely outsource their planning enforcement function, but like other authorities this
Council does buy-in support from the private sector in the form of agency staff, where
required to cover vacancies during periods where it is difficult to recruit or to deal with high
levels of demand.

5.26 Whilst it was accepted that agency staff do provide valuable assistance to the Council
in helping to manage workloads, they can sometimes (but not always) lack the local
knowledge, political/community awareness and ability to get to the area quickly in
response to urgent complaints offered by permanent or more locally-based Officers.

5.27 The Director of Planning expressed his reservations about putting the whole function
out to an external body because the relationship between enforcement officers, elected
Members, Planning Officers and other Officers within the Council is critically important to
the sharing of useful information and intelligence, and achieving effective enforcement
outcomes. These relationships would, in the Director of Planning’s opinion, be lost if the
function was dealt with externally as there would be a division between the local authority
and the contractor. The close relationship between Enforcement Officers and Planning
Officers and the ongoing work they do together to investigate planning history and the
legal and policy aspects of cases was cited as a particular matter of concern if the
authority were to consider outsourcing to an external body.

5.28 Another concern would be the resource available to the Council if an external
contractor was failing to perform to the level expected by the Council’'s Members and
Officers and the potential implications, complications, risks and costs associated with
resolving any dispute over performance or having to suspend or cancel a contract.
Whereas retaining the function in-house enabled Members and Officers to have frank and
honest discussions about performance (as being carried out through the discussions of the
Working Group) and to develop practical solutions together.

5.29 The Director of Planning concluded that getting the right team of Officers in place with
the right set of skills and experience and with strong leadership would be a more
appropriate approach to resolving Members’ concerns about planning enforcement than
outsourcing. There was general agreement from the Members of the Working Group with
the Director of Planning’s observations on the topic of outsourcing and not to pursue that
option any further at this stage [see recommendation 2].

Case studies

5.30 The Chairman of the Working Group invited Members to put forward any ‘case study’
examples of enforcement matters or complaints that they had been involved in to share
their experiences.

5.31 One Member gave an example of an overgrown site where he had reported the issue
to the Planning Enforcement Team but had not received any feedback for a number of

Page 112




months and then, on having to chase Officers for some feedback, was informed that the
case had been dropped. The case was then re-opened and it took a further two months to
establish ownership of the land who was then instructed to tidy it, which resulted in a
further two-month delay before a half-hearted attempt by the owner at tidying — leaving
rubbish in the middle of the site during the dry months of summer. Eventually the site was
tidied, but the whole process of reporting the complaint and resolution took over a year.
The Councillor raised concern that the site might be allowed to get untidy again and asked
whether Officers actively monitored sites following the resolution of an enforcement
complaint to ensure they remain resolved.

5.32 Members of the Working Group went on discuss the issue with communication and
the failure of Officers to respond quickly to Councillor requests and to provide updates
without having to be chased for them by the Councillors. It was suggested that officers
build in to their processes, the need to automatically provide regular updates to Councillors
and members of the public on progress on enforcement cases — even where there has
been little or no progress. The Director of Planning agreed with the suggestion and, having
learned that the Uniform system contains a 21 day reminder to update complainants
following the registration of a complainant, would explore the potential to incorporate
additional rolling reminders to provide ongoing updates. Improvements communication
would be the topic of further discussion [see recommendation 12].

5.33 Members were asked to forward any other case study examples to the Chairman of
the Working Group and the Director of Planning for discussion at future meetings.

Discussion on working with Town and Parish Councils

5.34 The Working Group went on to discuss how the District Council could work more
closely with Town and Parish Councils as the potential ‘eyes and ears on the ground’ to
assist in reporting and monitoring planning breaches. However, to fulfil such a role would
require more information and training for Town and Parish Councils on the planning rules,
the enforcement powers available to the District Council and the way it approaches
enforcement complaints — to give them a level of confidence in determining what may or
may not constitute a planning breach and what action might be appropriate and available
[see recommendation 11].

5.35 The Director of Planning accepted that in the past there had been regular training on
planning enforcement and other elements of planning for both District Councillors and
Town and Parish Councils but that it had been a number of years since the last session.
With a new Planning Enforcement Policy in place, it might be the right time to re-instate
such training. The Working Group agreed with the principle of more training but there
would be both timing and resourcing issues to consider through the recommendations of
this report. Also, most Town and Parish Councils have their own Planning Committee and
it might be up to those Committees whether or not they wanted to take part in such training
[see recommendations 10 and 11].

Page 113




Discussion on the comments received from Councillors

5.36 The email comments received from three Councillors were considered. The Director
of Planning advised that, in his view, getting permanent staff in place with the right skills
and strong leadership as well as reviewing processes and administrative processes were
key to resolving all the issues raised. The introduction of the new Planning Enforcement
Team Leader and the work already underway to improve the service were therefore steps
in the right direction.

5.37 With that in mind, the Director of Planning was asked to confirm the number of
positions in the structure for planning enforcement, the number of staff in post and how
this compares with what might be needed. He confirmed that the structure included six
positions — the Team Leader and five Enforcement Technicians — but that three of the four
Technician posts were being covered by consultants employed through recruitment
agencies. With the right management and processes in place and permanent staff who
can be more responsive on the ground, it was felt that the number of posts ought to be
adequate to deal with the scale of the workload — however, the new Enforcement Team
Leader would need to be given time to assess whether that was correct, particularly given
the scale of historic/backlog cases that would need to be addressed or otherwise closed.

Meeting 3: Thursday 17th November 2022

5.38 In the Working Group’s third meeting on Thursday 17t November 2022, which was
held online, there was an update from the Council’s Planning Manager on caseloads, a
discussion on the Planning Enforcement policy and criteria within the harm risk
assessment, a discussion with the Council’'s new Planning Enforcement Team Leader
about his experiences of reviewing the enforcement function at his previous authority and
initial thoughts on the situation at Tendring.

Update on caseloads

5.39 The Planning Manager gave a short PowerPoint presentation providing an update on
caseloads and progress on other improvements. This identified that, on 17t November
2022, there were 269 current enforcement cases under consideration of which:

e 100 breaches of planning condition (mainly related to holiday park occupation);

e 35 related to changes of the use of land;

e 55 related to building operations; and

e 18 were in relation to untidy sites.

5.40 A breakdown of cases per Officer was also given — showing that an enforcement
Officer could at any time be dealing with between 50 and 70 cases but that some Officers
had wider responsibilities including overall management and leadership of the team and
monitoring development sites which would justify a lower number of general enforcement
cases within their workload.

Page 114




5.41 It was confirmed that one of the Council’s Enforcement Officers employed through an
agency was leaving the authority but that permanent Enforcement Officer positions had
gone out to advert and that channels to target ex-Police and military personnel were being
used [see recommendation 2].

5.42 The Planning Manager noted that a lot of information was still being stored at the
Town Hall in paper form and time and resource needed to be invested in digitising as
much information as possible — relevant to enforcement and other sections of the planning
service [see recommendation 8].

Discussion on Risk Harm Assessment

5.43 Councillors Baker and Coley led the discussion on the harm risk assessment,
highlighting criteria within it for questions and clarifications. A summary of the discussion is
set out as follows and the specific proposals for changes to the harm risk assessment are
set out in Appendix 1 to this report [see recommendation 3].

e Criteria 1: Urgency

5.43.1 Questions over the respective meanings of ‘stable’ (0 points), ‘ongoing’ (1
point) and ‘getting worse’ (2 points) — particularly the difference between stable and
ongoing — which could be construed to mean the same thing. Officers explained
that there could be a differentiation between development that has already taken
place and could therefore be classed as stable; and development that is in the
process of construction and which could, if necessary, be stopped and where a
higher priority to investigation and action might be justified.

e Criteria 5: Complainant

5.43.2 Questions over the need for a distinction between ‘named’ complainants (2
points) and ‘anonymous/malicious’ complainants (0 points) and a concern that
anonymous complaints from people worried about revealing their identity will not be
investigated.

5.43.3 Officers gave assurances that complainant details are kept confidential but
also clarified that anonymous complaints wont be ignored, but in the context of the
harm risk assessment, they receive a lower overall score which would affect the
priority with which an investigation is carried out. Officers also explained that where
an anonymous complaint highlights the possibility of a criminal offence being
carried out (such as unlawful works to listed buildings or protected trees), that
complaint will still be given a high level of priority. Members suggested that there
will be many cases where anonymous complaints can be made to a Ward
Councillor who can take the complaint up on their behalf.

Page 115




Criteria 6: Timescale

5.43.4 Questions over the meaning and justification for the different timescales
before lawful rights exist and enforcement action can, by default, no longer be taken
i.e. ‘not applicable’ (0 points), ‘less than 3 months old’ (0 points), ‘more than 1 year
(1 point) and ‘less than 6 months’ (2 points). Officers agreed that these timescales
are confusing and are less about the assessment of harm, and more about the risk
of the Council losing the ability to carry out enforcement action by default by virtue
of time elapsed and, potentially, the reputational damage that might come about.
Members and Officers both agreed that the criteria relating to timescale was
unhelpful and would best be deleted from the risk harm assessment when it is next
reviewed.

Criteria 7: Contrary to Local Plan policy?

5.43.5 Question as to whether a conflict with Neighbourhood Plans should also be
included as a consideration — attracting 2 points in the harm risk assessment. It was
explained that Neighbourhood Plans must, themselves, conform to the District Local
Plan and together they form the wider ‘Development Plan’ for consideration by the
Council in any planning matters. Suggestion that the wording could be amended
either to say ‘contrary to Development Plan policy’ or ‘contrary to ‘Local
Plan/Neighbourhood Plan policy’.

Criteria 9: Is harm irreversible?

5.43.6 Questions over the rationale behind giving 2 points for irreversible harm and
0 points for where the harm is reversible, when it might appear more sensible to
prioritise cases where the harm can be reversed. Officers explained that the
intention was to give higher priority to those cases where, if development were
allowed to proceed, the harm would be irreversible — for example damage to listed
buildings which would, in any event, be given high priority; however the wording
could potentially be improved. It was agreed that the wording could be improved to
make the intention of the criteria clearer.

Criteria 10: Intensity of activity

5.43.7 Questions asked as to what ‘intensity of activity’ actually means. Officers
explained that intensity could mean different things depending on the nature of the
development and could relate to the scale of the development, the intensity or
length of time. Each case would require a level of judgement.

Criteria 13: Previous enforcement action/planning history

5.43.8 Questions as to whether the previous enforcement action/planning history
(attracting 1 point in the risk harm assessment) would relate to the site/premises in

Page 116




question, or to the developer/owner. Officers confirmed that it would be relevant to
the site/premises only and that the Council could not take action on the basis of the
historic behaviour of a particular developer/owner/applicant which could be seen as
persecution of an individual or company. Members asked that the wording be made
clearer to clarify that point.

5.43.9 It was also explained that the planning history would be particularly relevant
in cases where planning permission had been refused for a development, but the
developer/owner went ahead and started building anyway. The case for action in
such instances would be generally therefore be strong.

e Criteria 15: Undesirable precent?

5.43.10 Officers explained that for this criteria, Officers would be considering
whether taking no enforcement action would set a precedent for other people to
carry out similar work. There was a short discussion of an example case where
Councillors were concerned that no action could send the wrong impression to
others who may wish to try something similar. It was later agreed that Criteria 15
was best removed from the assessment on the basis that all breaches of planning
control are undesirable and have the potential to be copied by others where
enforcement is not carried out.

5.44 As well as the suggestions in relation to existing criteria within the harm risk
assessment, the Planning Manager suggested that an additional criteria specifically in
relation to whether an alleged breach affected a listed building or protected tree might be
beneficial in giving such cases additional prominence.

Reflections from the new Planning Enforcement Team Leader

5.45 The Council’'s new Planning Enforcement Team Leader was invited to talk about his
experience of undertaking a similar review of planning enforcement function at his
previous authority and for his initial reflections on Tendring’s Planning Enforcement Policy
and practices. He started by setting out his background and experience and talked about
the 2020 review of enforcement practices at his previous authority.

5.46 At the previous authority there was no harm risk assessment, but there was a triage
process involving senior Officers looking at cases when they came in and then deciding if
any action was required before allocating to Officers with relevant experience. The
previous authority also made more use of the Uniform system and had more formal
processes in place that might benefit Tendring going forward.

5.47 An initial review of Tendring’s Enforcement Policy had been undertaken along with a
review of the formal notices used when undertaking enforcement action — which has
revealed some elements of wording that are out of date and need to be improved to avoid
legal problems or complications further up the line if action needed to be escalated. It was
recognised that there had been problems with planning enforcement at Tendring in the
past and it was hoped that the experience and knowledge gained from the previous

Page 117




authority would assist in improving the situation going forward.

5.48 Members asked if there were elements of the Enforcement Policy that needed to be
looked at and reviewed sooner rather than later or whether an ongoing process of review
was required. The Planning Enforcement Team Leader felt that the basis of what was
required in the policy was already in place; that there were no immediate areas of concern;
but that the policy could be improved and evolved as necessary through regular ongoing
review.

5.49 The Team Leader was asked for his initial thoughts on the size of the establishment
(e.g. staff resources) at Tendring and whether it was sufficient to deal with the scale of the
workload, particularly drawing on any comparisons with his previous authority. Whilst he
did not believe the team was over-staffed, his very initial view was that the size of the team
was potentially sufficient — pointing out however that his previous authority covered two
districts and needed more staff as a consequence. He considered that caseloads per
Officer were fairly similar to the previous authority but that problems around recruitment
when people left the authority were just as relevant there, as they have been in Tendring.
It was suggested that a more informative view on resources in the enforcement team might
be given in six months, once the new Team Leader has had time to fully understand the
issues and pressures and establish new processes and practices.

5.50 The Planning Manager added that time was still needed to ascertain whether the
available resources were sufficient to deal with the backlog of cases and ensuring records
were updated, corrected and digitised as appropriate — and that this was as relevant to
other sections of the planning service as well as enforcement.

5.51 The Enforcement Team Leader did note that the main difference in the nature of
cases in Tendring compared to other areas is the number of caravan and holiday parks
and the issues around breach of occupancy conditions that relate to them [see
recommendation 14].

Approach towards ‘repeat offenders’

5.52 Mainly covered under the discussion on Criteria 13 of the harm risk assessment, the
Enforcement Team Leader confirmed that the Council can only consider enforcement
action in relation to the breach of planning control on a particular site — not on the historic
behaviours of the owner, developer or applicant. Whilst it was acknowledged that some
individuals or companies may have built up a reputation for disregarding the rules,
planning enforcement is not a punitive process.

5.53 However, where there are concerns about the behaviour of individuals or companies,
it can be that such matters are escalated to Councillors or senior Officers such as the
Director of Planning to have frank discussions with those concerned to apply appropriate
pressure — pointing out the impact their behaviours may be having on their reputation and
perception at the authority which could, in turn, have a bearing on maintaining positive
relationships, trust and cooperation in achieving smooth progress and positive outcomes

Page 118




on any current or future planning applications.

5.54 In the context of applying the risk harm assessment, it is the history of previous
offences at the site that is relevant. The Planning Manager gave an example of where
planning history on a site can be particularly relevant in considering enforcement action i.e.
where planning permission had been previously sought for a development but refused, but
where the owner, developer or applicant had ignored the refusal of permission and carried
on building regardless — resulting in an inexcusable and blatant breach of planning control
that would, in most cases, lead to enforcement action.

Discussion on how decisions are taken in determining the course of action

5.55 The Enforcement Team Leader was invited to talk through the process of
investigating a case and determining what course of action to take — building on the advice
given at a previous meeting by the Development Technician - Enforcement.

5.56 He emphasised the importance of trying to obtain as much information as possible on
receipt of a complaint — with photographic evidence from the complainant being
particularly useful [see recommendation 18]. He advised that he was reviewing closely
the way that complaints, investigations, evidence and discussions are documented —
wanting to introduce a better level of formality than currently exists. This is particularly
important if evidence is to be relied on at a later stage for formal enforcement action or
prosecution.

5.57 In establishing a breach of planning of planning control, Officers then consider the
best options available for seeking to resolve that breach. In the Team Leader’s previous
experience, the majority of breaches can be resolved without the need to carry out formal
action which will inevitably require a high level time and resource. Resolving breaches
informally, through negotiation and discussion, is therefore always the preferred course of
action.

5.58 In many cases, an owner will be asked to submit a planning application to regularise
the development and resolve the breach, having considered the likelihood that planning
permission would be granted through consultation with Planning, Heritage, Highways or
other professional Officers as appropriate. It is generally not considered reasonable to
resort to formal enforcement action or stopping a development in cases where it is likely
that planning permission would be granted if an application were submitted.

5.59 If informal negotiations aimed at resolving a breach fail to resolve the matter, then
consideration is given to formal action which could include a breach of condition notice or
an enforcement notice. Where formal action is required, there could then be liaison with
the Council’s legal team. However, the Enforcement Team Leader mentioned that in his
first few weeks at Tendring he had observed that there had possibly been too high a
reliance on support from the legal team to provide planning judgement and opinion, when
its advice is best sought on the word of law and the legal aspects of taking action. For
planning judgement and opinion, drawing on the advice and experience of Planning

Page 119




Officers is a better approach than placing unnecessary pressures on the legal team.

5.60 It was explained that the full enforcement process on some cases could take years,
as there is a right of appeal against enforcement notices and even when appeals are
dismissed, whilst the prosecution can result in a fine, the breach could remain unresolved
and legal action to resolve the breach by forcing an owner to remove a structure or take
other action can take a long period of time.

5.61 Based on his initial observations, the Enforcement Team Leader was quite surprised
as to how quickly Tendring has been resorting to formal enforcement notices, resulting in
the time and resources involved in dealing with any appeal, without having exhausted the
informal avenues for resolving breaches. He also explained the need for the Council to be
confident that, when issuing a formal notice, it has the evidence to fight an appeal and
ensure there are no deficiencies in a notice that might result in a successful legal
challenge and associated costs.

5.62 At his last authority, it was notable that of 657 cases he dealt with, only 17 required a
formal enforcement action. The others were resolved through informal interventions.

5.63 When asked why Tendring might have historically been too keen to issue formal
enforcement notices, the Enforcement Team Leader speculated around the reliance on
agency staff with a limited presence in, and knowledge of, the area and there being less of
a closer relationship with the Council’s Planning Officers to determine the best course of
action than was the case at his previous authority. He acknowledged that there could be a
generally negative public perception about the use of retrospective planning applications to
resolve breaches; however that approach is often the best way to achieve a resolution.
Inviting retrospective planning applications also gives the Council the ability to impose
conditions to mitigate or guard against any potential harmful impacts going forward.

5.64 The Council cannot force an owner to make a retrospective planning application, but
in cases where the Council invites an application, but the owner ignores that advice and
fails to make an application, Officers will need to consider the extent of the breach and
how likely it would be that permission would be granted in deciding whether or not to
escalate the matter to formal enforcement action. In some cases it might not be expedient
to take further action and the breach is tolerated (which could impact on an owner’s ability
to sell the property at a later stage). However, where there are questions over whether a
development would get permission, it may be expedient to take further action.

5.65 The Enforcement Team Leader was asked to give his view on when legal advice is
sought with regard to the evidence required for enforcement action. He explained that, for
the purposes of defending an appeal against an enforcement notice, the Enforcement
Officers in liaison with Planning Officers would be able to determine what evidence is
necessary. However, if clarification on any legal points were required or the case required
an injunction or a prosecution, then legal support would be sought on compiling the
necessary evidence which could include witness statements and video evidence.

Page 120




5.66 The Director of Planning advised that, in exceptional cases where an appeal against
an enforcement notice involves a Public Inquiry (as opposed to a hearing or written
representations), then the Council might seek Counsel’s advice and hire a Barrister to lead
the evidence and carry out cross-examination.

Meeting 4: Tuesday 10" January 2023

5.67 In the Working Group’s fourth meeting on Tuesday 10" January 2023, which was
held online, there was a discussion with the Council’'s Deputy Chief Executive (and
Monitoring Officer) and the Council’s Planning Solicitor on the role of the legal team in
planning enforcement matters and the governance of decision making; followed by some
discussion with the Director of Planning on communication and Member expectations.

Discussion about legal input in enforcement matters

5.68 The Council’s Deputy Chief Executive (and Monitoring Officer) and the Council’s
Planning Solicitor were invited to explain the role of the legal team in planning enforcement
matters.

5.69 The Planning Solicitor confirmed that she would only tend to get involved in planning
enforcement matters where legal advice has been sought, but would also provide
assistance as necessary in advising on gathering evidence or carrying out interviews for
the purposes of a potential prosecution. The decision as to whether or not to carry out a
prosecution will lie with the relevant service Director in consultation with the Council’s
Head of Legal Services. For complex cases, where a more detailed report is required to
document and justify the reasons for action, the Monitoring Officer will also be involved.

5.70 Historically, there had been an over-reliance on the legal team to provide advice on
matters that should have been well within the capability and knowledge of the Planning
Enforcement Team to progress. Since the introduction of the Council’s new Enforcement
Team Leader, there had already been a notable reduction in the amount of queries going
to the legal team — indicating a much improved level of confidence and competence in
dealing with day to day enforcement matters.

5.71 It was explained that, in deciding whether or not to carry out a prosecution, Officers
needed to follow the Crown Prosecution Services’ (CPS) advice on justifying action —
including the need for there to be a realistic prospect of conviction; the need for sufficient
and robust evidence; and consideration of whether prosecution would be in the public
interest. It was made clear that determining the public interest in carrying out a prosecution
in line with CPS advice was an entirely separate exercise to determining the public interest
in investigating an enforcement complaint through the harm risk assessment.

5.72 It was explained that very few enforcement cases make it all the way to prosecution
and that there were other legal tools, including formal cautions and injunctions that can be
employed.

Page 121




Governance in planning enforcement matters

5.73 The Monitoring Officer was asked to confirm the governance arrangements and the
role of elected Members in enforcement matters. She explained that planning enforcement
was not an executive function for Cabinet decisions, but a function of Full Council which, in
line with the approach taken by most other Councils, is delegated to the Planning
Committee which, in turn, is delegated to Officers. It was emphasised that this is the
approach taken in most Councils and has been for many years.

5.74 There are however some cases of a complex or high profile nature where Officers
may feel it necessary to revert certain issues back up to the Planning Committee for
decisions. The example of enforcement action against the breach of occupancy conditions
on caravan and holiday parks is one fairly recent example where the Planning Committee
was invited to decide a course of action, with the details included in a confidential Part B
report. On other matters, the Director of Planning would sometimes consult the Chairman
of the Planning Committee before making a decision on how to proceed [see
recommendation 5].

Communication and Member expectations

5.75 In the discussion around communication and Member expectations, the Group
reflected on the amount of information that had been obtained through the inquiry to date
and that Member expectations of the planning enforcement process might be best
managed by re-instating regular, in-person, training for Members on an annual basis and
similar training for Town and Parish Councils [see recommendations 9, 10 and 11]. It
was suggested that this begin as soon as possible following local elections in May 2023.

5.76 Members of the Group went on to share concerns and experiences around
communication; with examples of cases where Councillors were not receiving any
response from Officers on the progress of cases despite there being chronic and blatant
breaches of planning control causing great distress to residents — who then chase their
Ward Councillors for information. It was suggested that the Council’s systems needed to
incorporate more reminders to Officers to update complainants on an ongoing basis on
any progress — over and above the single 21-day reminder following receipt of a complaint
[see recommendations 12 and 13].

5.77 It was suggested that the pre-application process could be used to set out some clear
ground rules to owners, developers and applicants that planning conditions must be
honoured or else face the consequences of enforcement action. The Director of Planning
explained that not all applicants for planning permission use the pre-application process.
The possibility of including some form of binding agreement or terms and conditions as a
validation requirement for planning applications to re-affirm the Council’s expectations
around compliance was another suggestion [see recommendation 17].

Pagezfzz




5.78 Members asked for the form on the Council’s website for reporting enforcement
complaints to be reviewed as it was considered not to be user-friendly and placed limits on
the amount of useful information that could be provided. Given the advice of the Planning
Enforcement Team Leader about the importance of obtaining as much up-front information
as possible, it was agreed that an update would be beneficial and this should form one of
the Working Group’s recommendations [see recommendation 18].

Meeting 5: Thursday 19t" January 2023

5.79 In the Working Group’s fifth meeting on Tuesday 19t January 2023, which was held
online, the Group reflected on discussions and suggestions to date and discussed the
approach to publicising successful enforcement outcomes to demonstrate to the public
that the Council takes enforcement seriously and that there are consequences of failing to
comply with the planning rules.

Giving reqular updates

5.80 The Members agreed that following the initial 21-day reminder for Officers to update
complainants following receipt of a complaint, the systems should build in further
reminders to provide updates on ongoing 21-day basis and that the complainant or
Councillor should be notified if Officers are minded to close a case [see
recommendations 12 and 13].

Publicising successful outcomes

5.81 On the subject of publicity, the Director of Planning explained that where there are
successful outcomes to formal enforcement action, careful thought would need to be given
to the nature of the case and public interest in the case before doing any publicity. For
example, it might not be appropriate to draw media attention to smaller enforcement cases
of a sensitive or personal nature with little wider public interest, but a successful action
against a developer or persons committing a criminal offence might be justified. Each case
would have to be considered carefully on its merits, and in consultation with the
Communication’s Manager and legal colleagues [see recommendation 19].

Pro-active enforcement/monitoring

5.82 There was a discussion on whether the Council should be pro-actively monitoring
developments and carrying out enforcement action against breaches as necessary, rather
than responding to complaints. The Director of Planning explained that Officers do monitor
the compliance of larger developments with conditions and legal agreements, but mainly to
ensure that certain requirements have been met at certain ‘trigger points’ e.g. the payment
of developer contributions before a set number of dwellings or occupied, delivery of
highways works, transfer of open space etc.

Page 123




5.83 Officers do not generally undertake unannounced spot inspections of developments
due to the sheer number of schemes under construction at any one time (particularly in
recent years when there have been many developments), however Officers are in regular
contact with site managers, particularly on larger schemes if or when issues arise or if
complaints are received and will inspect developments as necessary at key points.
Members asked that consideration be given to utilising resources within the team to be
more pro-active on such developments in light of previous concerns [see
recommendation 16].

Other discussions and updates

5.84 As well as discussion within the Task & Finish Group meetings, the Chairman of the
Working Group had discussed with the Council’s Planning Business and Support Manager
the possibility of using apprentices to support the work of the Planning Enforcement Team
as part of the Council’s approach to addressing recruitment problems by ‘growing our own’
staff. Whilst the opportunity was acknowledged, it was felt that the sometimes
confrontational aspect of the planning enforcement role required personnel with a base
level of planning knowledge as well as experience and confidence in dealing with the
public — and it would therefore not be appropriate to use young apprentices in this role until
they had either progressed to Officer level and gained suitable confidence in such matters,
or there was a permanent, well established and stable team around them for mentoring
and support.

5.85 The Chairman also asked for updated caseload figures for the final version of this
report. As of 17" January 2023, the figures updated figures were as follows:

e Total: 258 cases
o 80 Breach of Planning Consent
17 Change of use of Land
1 Failure to build in accordance with Approved Plans
144 Other types of Breaches and untidy sites
1 Unauthorised Advert
14 Unauthorised Building Works
1 Work to TPO Tree

O O O O O O

5.86 Finally, the Chairman asked for an update on recruiting new permanent staff to the
planning enforcement team, as correct week commencing 23 January 2023. A
recruitment campaign was initiated following the appointment of the Planning Enforcement
Team Leader in October 2022.

5.87 The campaign was targeted toward ex-Police and ex-military, officers, and alongside
this ran the advertisements on the TDC website and social media pages. The campaign
ran from November 2022 until early January 2023 with the aim of capturing as wide an
audience as possible. Ten applications and CVs were received from a range of candidates
including three as a result of advertising on the ex-police, and military, sites. Interviews
have been arranged for 31st January and 6™ February 2023 and all shortlisted applicants

Page 124




have accepted the invitation to interview. It is anticipated that any successful applicants
will be offered positions on 7" February with start dates dependent upon any required
notice periods or completion of contracts.

DETAILED FINDINGS OF THE INQUIRY

6.1 An overview of the findings of the inquiry in response to each of the objectives is set
out below.

Current Powers

6.2 Objective: To review the full set of powers available to the Council for the
carrying out of planning enforcement, having regard to the fact that any action is
discretionary on the Council and is always expected to be proportionate and
appropriate.

6.3 Outcome: The inquiry has resulted in a greater understanding between the Members
of the Working Group and Officers as to the powers available to the Council and the
approach taken to prioritising and handling enforcement complaints; and the pressures
faced by Councillors when approached, in their wards, about potential enforcement issues.
The recommendations set out in this report are to widen that understanding through
Member and Officer training sessions to be held following the 2023 local elections and
thereafter on an annual basis; and that similar training be made available to Town and
Parish Councils [see recommendations 9, 10 and 11].

6.4 Objective: To gain a better understanding of the range of tools available to the
Council’'s enforcement team to resolve complaints — ranging from no action,
negotiation or minor interventions, through to formal enforcement action and legal
prosecution.

6.5 Outcome: As above (see 6.3).

6.6 Objective: To explore how the powers and tool available to the Council can be
better communicated to those with an interest, including District Councillors, Town
and Parish Councils and members of the public.

6.7 Outcome: As above (see 6.3).
Policies

6.8 Objective: To review the Council’s Planning Enforcement Policy which sets out
the available powers and the approach that the Council will take when receiving,
investigating and, where appropriate, taking action against alleged breaches of
planning control.

6.9 Outcome: It is recommended that the Planning Enforcement Policy is kept under

Page 125




regular review — with an update date at least every four years to ensure it is updated in
respect of legislation, national policy, pertinent issues and trends. An immediate review is
also recommended to take on board the Group’s suggested improvements to the policy
and the harm risk assessment [see recommendations 3 and 4].

6.10 Objective: To review the associated ‘harm risk assessment’ which is used by
Officers to prioritise the investigation of cases and to inform decisions about
appropriate levels of action going forward.

6.11 Outcome: That the Enforcement Policy be reviewed immediately to incorporate
changes that embrace the Group’s recommendations. In addition, a number of specific
improvements to the harm risk assessment including the deletion of Criteria 6 (Timescale),
renaming Criteria 7 to ‘Contrary to Local Plan/Neighbourhood Plan?’, wording
improvements to Criteria 9 (Is harm reversible?) to make its purpose and meaning clearer
and a specific criteria in relation to listed buildings and protected trees [see
recommendation 3].

6.12 Objective: To recommend improvements to the Planning Enforcement Policy
and harm risk assessment as deemed necessary to improve the effectiveness of
approach.

6.13 Outcome: As above, with the revised versions being reported back to the Planning
Committee for its consideration and approval as soon as practicable [see
recommendation 3].

Procedures

6.14 Objective: To review the full process of dealing with enforcement complaints
including the initial receipt of a complaint, responding to the complainant, visiting
the premises, identifying and establishing any breaches, carrying out harm risk
assessment, choosing a course of action and formal processes thereafter.

6.15 Outcome: The inquiry has resulted in a greater understanding between the Members
of the Working Group and Officers as to the process of dealing with enforcement cases.
There are however a number of recommendations for improvement going forward.

6.16 Widening the understanding of the process through Member and Officer training
sessions to be held following the 2023 local elections and thereafter on an annual basis;
and that similar training be made available to Town and Parish Councils is one
recommendation [see recommendations 9, 10 and 11].

6.17 Another recommendation is to include a requirement that complainants receive an
update from Officers every 21 days on progress on their case [see recommendation 12]
and ensuring Officers use Council-issued equipment only and, where possible and
appropriate, wear marked high visibility clothing [see recommendation 15].

Page2f26




6.18 Objective: To review the approach to communication with complainants, those
the subject of action and other interested parties; and how this might vary
depending on the nature of the issue.

6.19 Outcome: The inquiry has revealed some serious concerns about the level and
quality of communication from Officers involved in planning enforcement matters in
responding to complaints and keeping complainants and other interested parties (included
Ward Councillors) updated on any progress. There were numerous examples given where
Councillors had needed to chase Officers for updates, cases where Officers had been
reluctant to meet or discuss matters with Councillors and other cases where issues had
been ongoing for months where there the case had either been closed or no further
progress had been made, but interested parties had not been updated to that effect.

6.20 Members of the Working Group and Officers were in agreement that significant
improvements needed to be made to improve this aspect of the service as poor
communication and engagement was undermining public confidence in the Council’s
ability to deal with planning enforcement matters in an effective manner. Ensuring the
planning enforcement team had the right level of resources, strong leadership and the right
balance of skills, experience and local knowledge were considered key to resolving the
concerns around communication as well as systems being put in place to remind Officers
to provide updates — even where it is to advise that there had been no progress [see
recommendations 12 and 13].

6.21 Objective: To explore how third parties, such as Town and Parish Councils,
might be able to assist the District Council by exchanging information at a local
level.

6.22 Outcome: The recommendation to widen annual training out to Town and Parish
Councils would improve their understanding of planning enforcement powers, policy and
procedures and give them more confidence in reporting and providing updates on issues
within their areas [see recommendation 11].

6.23 Objective: To recommend improvements to procedures with the aim of
improving the effectiveness of approach.

6.24 Outcome: As above.

Data

6.25 Objective: To gain an understanding, through the interrogation of data, of the
scale and nature of enforcement issues in Tendring, including number of
complaints/cases received, resolved or outstanding and how they are recorded and
monitored — both for internal purposes and for public reporting.

6.26 Outcome: The inquiry revealed that the Council’s database of enforcement cases
required a fundamental overhaul as it had been poorly managed over a number of years —

Page 127




resulting in hundreds of cases being recorded as ‘live’ despite having been resolved or
superseded by events; or otherwise recorded under a variety of categories which made
data very difficult to interpret and report in a helpful and consistent manner. It was also
determined that the software and systems available to Officers had not been used to their
full potential and that the new Enforcement Team Leader was already considering how to
better utilise them.

6.27 The Council’s Planning Manager and Planning Enforcement Team Leader have
already made significant progress in reviewing the cases on the database and removing
and closing those cases that had either been resolved, incorrectly recorded or superseded
by events with the aim of establishing an accurate baseline from which to work [see
recommendations 1 and 8].

6.28 Objective: To develop and recommend a framework for reporting enforcement
data and performance to the Planning Committee.

6.29 Outcome: It had already been agreed by the Planning Portfolio Holder that the
Planning Committee would receive quarterly reports on enforcement data and
performance [see recommendation 6]; but the inquiry has assisted in determining the
information and level of detail that can and should be contained in those reports going
forward — following on from the Officers’ work on tidying the database and establishing an
accurate baseline [see recommendations 1 and 8].

Effectiveness of Approach

6.30 Objective: To invite honest feedback from Councillors and other interested
parties on the effectiveness of the planning enforcement function based on
experiences and issues in their areas.

6.31 Outcome: As part of the inquiry, the Chairman of the Working Group invited all TDC
Councillors to put forward their comments for consideration. With the exception of the
Working Group Members themselves, direct responses were only received from three
Councillors. However, Members and Officers were able to recall and draw upon their
experiences of both historic and current cases where Councillors had raised concerns —
which were broadly reflective and consistent with the matters raised in the Working Group
discussions.

6.32 Objective: To review the resources available to the planning enforcement team
when set against the scale and nature of the task — particularly in relation to
management structure, number of Officers and skills, knowledge and experience.

6.33 Outcome: The inquiry revealed that there had been long-standing difficulties in
recruiting permanent staff into the planning enforcement team — issues common to many
local authorities. These issues are mainly attributed to the sometimes confrontational
nature of the work (which require certain skills and personal attributes) and a general
shortage, nationally, of people with relevant planning knowledge and experience. This had

Page o8




led to a strong reliance on agency staff to cover vacant positions which, whilst helpful as a
temporary arrangement in response to caseload pressures, could not be a sustainable
approach going forward.

6.34 Aside from the costs of employing staff through an agency, such staff are often
located away from the District and might be unable to respond to issues quickly when
working remotely and, by virtue of their temporary nature, will often lack a degree of local
knowledge and political awareness in dealing with certain matters. There will also be a
limited level of commitment to long-term service improvement when contracts are let on a
short-term basis. One clear recommendation from the Working Group is to therefore
prioritise the recruitment of permanent staff to the positions within the enforcement team
and reduce reliance on agency staff [see recommendation 2].

6.35 The Working Group acknowledged challenges faced by the Council in recruiting
permanent staff to enforcement and other planning roles, given the shortage of qualified
and experienced planners in the market. It was therefore considered that an alternative
strategy should be to target people with relevant or transferable skills from other career
paths and offer training and support on the job. People with a background in the Police or
the armed services, for example, are known to often make good planning enforcement
officers due to their good communication skills, record keeping and ability to handle or
diffuse confrontational situations.

6.36 Discussions with the Council’'s new Enforcement Team Leader suggest that the
number of posts within the enforcement team is likely to be the right level, but this would
need to be kept under review.

6.37 Objective: To explore and identify areas where improvements can be made to
the effectiveness of the approach and to consider alternative ways in which the
enforcement function could be undertaken.

6.38 Outcome: Agreement that the planning enforcement function be retained in house
[see recommendation 2] and that improvements in communication and other practices,
along with good leadership and permanent recruitment of staff would be key to addressing
concerns raised.

Prioritisation of Cases

6.39 Objective: To review the approach to prioritising the inspection of alleged
breaches of planning control and determining the level of action required thereafter
— having regard to the harm risk assessment.

6.40 Outcome: The Members were provided with a detailed run through of the
enforcement process from receipt of complaint, determining the right course of action and
also the legal aspects and considerations when looking at injunctions or prosecution.

Page 129




6.41 Objective: To recommend improvements to the harm risk assessment and the
approach the Council takes in determining priorities for action.

6.42 Outcome: As set out in report above.

6.43 Objective: Reviewing the decision-making process and the level within the
Council that key decisions are taken.

Outcome: The Working Group were appraised of the decision making process and the
governance in place around delegation of powers to officers for enforcement purposes.
Some concern was raised about Officers’ ability to determine when action was or was not
in the public interest, based on the findings of the harm risk assessment. It was however
explained that, where necessary, the Council could expedite action where, despite the
findings of the harm risk assessment, action was still judged to be in the public interest. It
was also explained that the Director of Planning, in liaison with the Chairman of Planning
Committee and the Monitoring Officer could escalate action if necessary, or in exceptional
cases, reports could be taken to Planning Committee [see recommendation 5].

IMPLICATIONS OF RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 Recommendation 2: Retaining in-house planning enforcement, reducing reliance
on agency staff and targeting ex Police and armed forces personnel for permanent
recruitment.

e Financial: Cost involved in targeting publications for ex-Police and armed forces for
recruitment, but significant potential savings in reducing reliance on agency staff, if
recruitment is successful. Cost involved in providing on the job training and
mentoring both through formal training courses and internal training from
Enforcement Team Leader — however, providing such training often helps to build
commitment to the Council from the Officers.

e Legal: Avoids need to develop, manage or enforce any outsourced contract.

e Future Service Delivery: Seeks to recruit people with transferable skills relevant to
the running of an effective planning enforcement service who can develop local
knowledge and good political and community awareness. Retains the ability for
close liaison between Enforcement Officers, Planning officers and other Officers
within the authority to achieve best outcomes.

e Impact on the public: Improved service achieved by recruiting people with relevant
skills who can develop local knowledge and political/community awareness.

7.2 Recommendations 3 and 4: Immediate and ongoing updates and amendments to
the Planning Enforcement Policy and harm risk assessment.
e Financial: Covered within existing resources.
e Legal: Ensures the policy and the Council’'s approach is kept up to date with the
relevant legislative frameworks.
e Future Service Delivery: Updates seek to ensure a more effective approach to
planning enforcement and a more useable, unambiguous and understandable harm

Page 130




risk assessment.
e Impact on the public: Ensures a more effective service to the benefit of the public.

7.3 Recommendation 5: Empowering the Director of Planning to expedite
enforcement action on cases of public interest and reputational risk to the Council.

¢ Financial: Costs involved in Officer time and external support to pursue formal
enforcement action in cases that might otherwise not be judged to be expedient
following the standard harm risk assessment approach — with the risk of
unsuccessful outcomes and associated costs.

e Legal: Potential for unsuccessful outcomes and associated costs in pursuing formal
enforcement action in cases that might otherwise not be judged to be expedient
following the standard harm risk assessment approach.

e Future Service Delivery: Need to ensure that departures from the harm risk
assessment to expedite action are exceptional, justified, genuinely in the public
interest and not politically biased.

e Impact on the public: Risk of raised expectations around the likelihood of the
Council expediting enforcement action where certain case are singled out.

7.4 Recommendation 6: Quarterly reports to the Planning Committee on
enforcement caseload and performance.

e Financial: Covered within existing resources.

e Legal: Some sensitive information will not be able to be reported as part of the
Committee report for public inspection — requiring much of the data to be
anonymised and high-level.

e Future Service Delivery: Provides for a better level of accountability and
transparency on performance which is key to future improvement.

e |Impact on the public: Better transparency around the scale and nature of
enforcement work the Council is in involved in.

7.5 Recommendation 7: Continued engagement of planning enforcement in
corporate and operational enforcement groups.
e Financial: As current.

Legal: As current.
Future Service Delivery: As current.
Impact on the public: As current.

7.6 Recommendation 8: Continued review and tidying of the database of live
enforcement cases.
e Financial: Cost of Officer time and possible temporary dedicated resource required
to complete the exercise whilst allowing day-to-day enforcement work to continue.
e Legal: Need to ensure the legal status of any live enforcement cases are properly
recorded and retained within the records.
e Future Service Delivery: More accurate and up to date data will enable the more
effective deployment of resources to deal with new and backlog caseload.
e Impact on the public: Enables more useful and accurate data to be reported to the
Planning Committee and for resources to be deployed in the most effective way to

Page 131




serve the public.

7.7 Recommendations 9 and 10: Annual training on planning enforcement for
Councillors and for it to be mandatory requirement for Members to sit and vote on
Planning Committee.

e Financial: Cost of Officer time and possible external support to carry out the
training.

e Legal: Requirement to record and ensure Councillors have received the mandatory
training when sitting and voting on Planning Committee. Need to ensure training is
legally up to date and correct.

e Future Service Delivery: Improved knowledge of planning enforcement amongst
Councillors and Officers will enable a more effective service delivery — both in
considering enforcement action and making planning decisions.

e Impact on the public: Enables Councillors and Officers to provide more informed
guidance and advice to members of the public when asked about potential planning
enforcement matters.

7.8 Recommendation 11: Annual training on planning enforcement for Town and
Parish Councils.

e Financial: Cost of Officer time in preparing, facilitating and running the training.

e Legal: Need to ensure training is legally up to date and correct.

e Future Service Delivery: Improved knowledge of planning enforcement amongst
Town and Parish Councils will enable them to assist the District Council in
identifying and monitoring potential planning breaches.

e Impact on the public: Enables Town and Parish Councils to provide more helpful
guidance and advice to their residents when they raise issues relating to planning
enforcement.

7.9 Recommendation 12: Automatic updates for complainants, interested Ward
Councillors and other relevant parties on progress with enforcement cases every 21
days.

e Financial: Cost of Officer time to give regular updates — albeit set against the cost,
and reputational issue, of dealing with aggrieved complainants who have to chase
for updates. Some Officers will be spending considerable time phoning or emailing
customers in and around dealing with cases. With good management and
processes in place, this cost could be covered within existing resources but will
need to be kept under review.

e Legal: It may not always be possible to share information of a sensitive nature or
report positive progress which could bring about some frustration for Councillors or
members of the public.

e Future Service Delivery: Better level of service to complainants who will feel that the
Council is taking their case seriously and that progress is being made.

e |Impact on the public: As above.

Page 132




7.10 Recommendation 13: Responses within 48 working hours to Councillor emails.

e Financial: Covered within existing resources and saves Councillors having to chase
Officers for information.

e Legal: It may not always be possible to share information of a sensitive nature or
report positive progress which could bring about some frustration for Councillors.

e Future Service Delivery: The better and more quickly informed Councillors are
about issues in their ward, they better placed they will be to assist and advise
members of the public.

e |Impact on the public: As above.

7.11 Recommendation 14: Strategy/policy for coordinated and long-term approach
to caravan and holiday park occupancy conditions.

e Financial: Significant additional temporary resource to update the Council’s records
on occupancy at caravan and holiday parks and compile a robust report. This is set
against the potential to reduce the number of enforcement cases (and associated
costs) relating to caravan and holiday parks if the Council comes to a view on
whether to regularise some breaches.

e Legal: There will be a variety of factors including planning law, national and local
planning policy and human rights to take into consideration when devising an
appropriate strategy. External legal advice might also be required. A significant
change in policy would likely need to be incorporated into a future review of the
Local Plan.

e Future Service Delivery: Would potentially enable resources to be more focussed
on addressing breaches of occupancy condition on a selected number of sites,
retaining capacity to deal with a wider range of enforcement matters.

e Impact on the public: Mixed views amongst the public as to whether caravan and
holiday parks should be allowed permanent year round occupation with particular
concerns around flood safety in some locations, impact on tourism industry, crime
and disorder, deprivation and living standards. Any strategy would need to carefully
weight up various factors in the public interest.

7.12 Recommendation 15: Use of Council equipment for site inspections and
provision of high visibility clothing.
e Financial: Cost of additional equipment and related insurance.
e Legal: Issues around the security and confidentiality/privacy of captured data. Also
consideration of staff safety and the implications of high levels of visibility.
e Future Service Delivery: Further processes would need to be put in place to ensure
the appropriate use of equipment and ongoing maintenance.
e Impact on the public: Need to consider carefully the use of high visibility clothing
depending on the nature and sensitivity of cases.

7.13 Recommendation 16: Pro-active monitoring of compliance.
e Financial: Depending on the extent of pro-active monitoring and the number of
developments being monitored at any one time, the cost of Officer time alongside
the need to respond to complaint-related cases. The resource requirement might

Page 133




extend significantly beyond existing staff numbers in the structure depending on
how pro-active the team is expected to be.

Legal: Pro-active monitoring is already carried out to a degree under the powers
available to the Council, but this recommendation may require additional resource.
Future Service Delivery: Either additional staff resources would be required to take
on addition pro-active monitoring, or otherwise existing resources diverted away
from reactive enforcement — depending on the level of pro-active monitoring
expected.

Impact on the public: Reduced likelihood of public complaints about non-compliance
in cases where the Council has identified breaches through its own investigations.

7.14 Recommendation 17: Standard advice on Council’s expectations around
compliance to be incorporated into pre-application advice and validation process.

Financial: Covered within existing resources.

Legal: No additional weight can be given to the case for enforcement action if an
applicant chooses not to follow the advice given. All alleged breaches of planning
control will be dealt with in line with the Enforcement Policy and the wider legislative
framework. Some applicants might object to an additional validation requirement,
when the imposition of conditions themselves imply the Council's expectations
around compliance.

Future Service Delivery: Unlikely to have a significant impact.

Impact on the public: Unlikely to have a significant impact.

7.15 Recommendation 18: Update of online complaint form.

Financial: Achievable within existing resources — could reduce the amount of
desktop and on-site research needed if complainants are given the opportunity to
provide a greater level of detailed information.

Legal: None — so long as personal and sensitive details remain confidential.

Future Service Delivery: The more information can be provided by the complainant,
the more effective the initial investigation can be.

Impact on the public: Officers might be able to investigate more cases in a shorter
period of time if complainants are given the opportunity to provide more detailed
information to assist initial investigations.

7.16 Recommendation 19: Publicity of successful enforcement outcomes.

Financial: Cost of Officer time in preparing press releases and dealing with
subsequent press/other enquiries.

Legal: It may not always be possible nor prudent to share information of a sensitive
nature. Possible libel action if the subject of enforcement action takes exception to
what the Council says in the media.

Future Service Delivery: None.

Impact on the public: Could potentially send a message that the Council is serious
about planning enforcement and deter people from trying to circumvent the planning
rules.

Page 134




BACKGROUND PAPERS AND PUBLISHED REFERENCE MATERIAL

Current Planning Enforcement Policy
https://www.tendringdc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/planning/planning policy/Enforcement Policy acc.pdf

Current Harm Risk Assessment Prioritisation Scheme Planning Enforcement Harm Assessment
Prioritisation scheme (tendringdc.gov.uk)

APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Recommended changes to the Planning Enforcement Policy and Harm Risk
Assessment Prioritisation Scheme

Appendix 2: Slides from the presentation given by the Development Technician —
Enforcement at meeting 2.

Appendix 3: Slides from the All Member Briefing presentation given by the Planning Manager,
(as referred to by the Director of Planning in meeting 2).

REPORT CONTACT OFFICER(S)

Name Gary Guiver

Job Title Director of Planning

Email/Telephone gguiver@tendringdc.gov.uk
01255 686173

Page 135



https://www.tendringdc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/planning/planning%20policy/Enforcement%20Policy%20acc.pdf
https://www.tendringdc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/planning/planning%20policy/Harm%20Assessment%20acc.pdf
https://www.tendringdc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/planning/planning%20policy/Harm%20Assessment%20acc.pdf
mailto:gguiver@tendringdc.gov.uk

APPENDIX 1: Recommended changes to the Planning Enforcement Policy and Harm Risk
Assessment Prioritisation Scheme

Planning Enforcement Policy

The first paragraph on Page 19, to be updated with the addition of the following underlined
wording:

The result of the harm assessment by the twentieth day will allow the decision on “harm’

z

to be incorporated in the 21 day update letter sent to complainants to inform them of the
investigation findings and proposed action. Where the Council decides that action is
required, it will thereafter aim to update the complainants at least once every 21 days on

any progress, or as otherwise necessary.

Harm Risk Assessment Prioritisation Scheme

Under section 3 ‘Operational Aspects’, to include the following additional wording to the second
paragraph:

The result of the harm assessment by the twentieth day will allow the decision on “harm”
to be incorporated in the Service’s normal 21 day update letter to complainants informing
them of the Service’s findings and intended action or, where applicable, that no additional
is to be taken. Where the Council determines that action is required, it will thereafter aim

to update the complainants at least once every 21 days on any progress, or as otherwise

necessary.

In the harm assessment form, to make the following changes (deletions shown as struck

through and additions shown as underlined):

Points Allocation Score
1 Urgency: Is the breach enforcement | Ongoing (1)
matter: Getting worse (2)
Stable/Paused (0)
2 Highway safety issues: Yes (2)
No (0)
3 Danger to public or animal safety: Yes (2)
No (0)
4 Does the alleged breach cause a Causes Flood Risk (2)
statutory or serious environmental Noise/disturbance concerns (2)
issue such as noise pollution, odour, | Pollution/odour (2)
flood risk? Light pollution (2)
Other (1)
Yes (2)
No (0)
5 Complainant: TDCMember(2)
Named-member-of-pubhic-(2)
(Note that all complainant details will be | Statutory-agency{2)
kept confidential, however providing a Member-of staff(2)
named contact will enable the Council | pParish-Council{2)
to upd_ate the complai_n_ant a_nd seek_ Named (2)
potentially useful additional information Anonymous / malicious (0)
from them)

Page 136




6 T oot o bof I - hs (1
enforcement-actien-can-no-longer Mere-than-3-months-(2)
period)

Yes (2)
Affects listed buildings, protected No (0)
trees, Conservation Areas or other
protected assets:
7 Contrary to Lecal the Development | Yes (2)
Plan er including Neighbourhood No (0)
Plan policy?

8 Extent of harm Widespread (2)

Local (e.g. within the street area) (1)
None (0)

9 Is harm irreversible (e.g. has it, or Yes (2)
could it, result in the loss of No (0)
irreplaceable assets?

10 | Intensity of activity High (2)

Low (1)
Negligible (0)

11 Breach of planning condition Yes (1)
(including divergence from approved | No (0)
plans)?

12 | Impact on residential amenity Long term (2)

Short term (1)
N/a (0)

13 | Previous enforcement action/ Yes (1)
relevant planning history at the No (0)
site/premises

14 | Safety-hazards{specify) Yes{1H

No-(0)

15 Undesirable-precedent? Yes-(H

No-(0)

Page 137




This page is intentionally left blank



25/01/2023

Planning Enforcement

How Receive an Enforcement Enquiry

There are several ways for the Enforcement Team to receive an enquiry

* TDC Website (most ideal as it captures all the relevant information)
* Direct phone call 01255 686120

* Planning support (reception)

* Members / PC emails

* Emails direct to Planning Enforcement

* Employees

Page 139



25/01/2023

Enquiry's Received

Once the enquiry is received a Development Technician is to assessed if
the subject raised falls within the remit of Planning Enforcement.

If this is determined not to, an initial responses are sent within 15
working days.

All other cases are raised onto Uniform and allocated to officers

Acknowledgement

Once a case is raised a unique case reference number is raised, all
details of contact and a general description of the alleged breach are
inputted

An acknowledgement letter is sent out via email or post
A 21 day update letter reminder is set

All documents uploaded onto IDOX

Page 140



25/01/2023

DAY 1

* Enforcement Officer receives enquiry details and conducts a desktop
study

* Triage Harm assessment form completed and IDOX

* Based on Triage assessment a traffic light system indicates possible
harm being coursed

* Based on triage assessment a score indication on priority of when a
site visit should be conducted

TRIAGE ASSESSMENT
<6

GREEN

|

TRIAGE ASSESSMENT:
PRIORITY 3

First investigation within 10 working
days of receipt of a completed
complaint form. Minor breaches
which do not result in significant
immediate or irreversible harm or
public concern.

TRIAGE ASSESSMENT
>6-15<

AMBER

< | >

TRIAGE ASSESSMENT :
PRIORITY 2

First investigation within 5 working days of
receipt of a completed complaint form.
This category includes likely significant
public concern or where there is significant
immediate harm to the amenity of the
area.

TRIAGE ASSESSMENT
>15

RED

TRIAGE ASSESSMENT
PRIORITY 1

First investigation within 2 working days of
receipt of a completed complaint form.
This category includes development which
could cause irreversible or serious harm if
the Council does not act immediately.

Page 141



25/01/2023

Day 2 Onward

* Based on Harm assessment triage an initial site visit is conducted
* Uniform is updated, photos and evidence uploaded to IDOX

* Harm assessment completed and IDOXED, traffic light and priority
updated on uniform

Page 142



AMB October 2022

Planning
Enforcement

Presentation by John Pateman-Gee &
Sharon Harwood-Bee

October 2022
Position

Page 143

25/01/2023




25/01/2023

" Enforcement Policy & Harm Assessment

Following the feedback from Planning Committee, the
Enforcement Policy has been adopted. A new traffic
light system Harm Assessment document has been
created to

a ) triage the complaint, then
b ) assess complaint for priority and finally

¢ ) form part of the final harm assessment to determine
next action.

| 4 . .
Recruitment & Vacancies

Page 144



25/01/2023

Case Numbers

It was found that historic cases were still open on the Uniform
system and were distorting the number of ‘live’ cases on hand.

A significant number of cases have now been closed alongside a
review of historic cases, providing the Planning Management team
with a more accurate reflection of case numbers and priorities.

No of Enforcement Cases

Current
Enforcement
Cases at 269
(18th Oct 22)

0
15/06/2022  15/07/2022  15/08/2022  15/09/2022  15/10/2022

Page 145



25/01/2023

Total

Of the 269, this
is a rough
breakdown of

type.

140
120

100

However, a =
data cleanse is
needed.

60
40

20

Breach of  Change of use Failure to build Other types of Unauthorised Unauthorised Work to TPO
Plannin g of Land in accordance Breach Advert Building Works Tree
Consen t with Approved

Plans

Example of

need for data Breach of Condition 49

cleanse Breach of Condition - Dust Clouds 1
Breach of Conditions 3
Breach of Conditions 1
Breach of Discharge Condition 1
Breach of Occupancy Condition 50

8
Page 146



25/01/2023

Number of Enforcement Cases by
Parish

Total
90
80
70
60
50
40
30

20

Total

The same by
percentage

3% BEALIMO
3 " (BRIGHT = ALRES

4% = ARDLEI

= BEAUMO

= BRIGHT

= CLACTO

= ELMSTE
FRATIN

= FRIWAL

= GTBENT
GTBROM

= GTOAKL

S HARWIC
\ ELMSTE" LAWFOR

19%.

FRATIN | = LTCLAC

2% | = LTOAKL

MANNIN

MISTLE
RAMPAR FRIWAL RAMPAR
1% 1% STOSYT
wiroTLE e —

CLACTO
STOSYT 17%
32%

NS
0% [Phg GTBENT THORPE
B ~TBROM b
<7 HARWIC GTOAKL 9, THORRI
2%

9%

Page 147



25/01/2023

Further
Breakdown

Processes & Procedures

The new Enforcement Team Leader will be tasked with reviewing
processes and procedures to ensure a robust recording, monitoring
and reporting process is in place at each point of the enforcement
process.

Regular reporting of case numbers, priority cases and success
stories will be taken to Planning Committee.

This will include showing the traffic light scheme now implemented
that is being applied to new cases and will need to be applied to
existing cases as we process.

Page 148



25/01/2023

Summary

Work to decrease cases continues.
We have achieved a new electronic register of notices
Implementation of winter occupation review of sites, starting with Bel Air

Implementation of Enforcement Policy and Harm Assessment along with priority
system for site visits and traffic light scheme.

Data cleanse to commence soon.
New enforcement leader to start next week. Adverts for further recruitment out now.

Task and finish group for enforcement open for member comments on enforcement
for us to review and continue improvements to service

Page 149



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Last Meeting
	January minutes  RSOSC
	Minutes of Previous Meeting
	“The Council is proposing to issue commercial agreements for those wishing to rent out Beach Huts for more than 10 days per year, which will regulate the market for rentals. It is proposed that commercial agreements are issued to those requesting them, but based on a criteria.  This will cover key points such as accessibility and safety of huts, to ensure those with commercial agreements are able to provide a high quality service and support the appropriate points set out in the Council’s Tourism Strategy.  New agreements would be through a lease and not a licence and as such, the cost would be identified by establishing a market value, which would increase the amount paid.  A specific clause will be included on all other agreements to prohibit renting for more than 10 days per year.  The annual charge for the lease will vary from location to location and will be based on an independent valuation”.


	5 A.1 Review of the Work Programme
	A.1 Appendix A Work Programmes for 2022-23
	A.1 Appendix B  Recommendations Monitoring
	A.1 Appendix C Scrutiny of Proposed Decisions

	6 A.2 Council Procurement and Contract Management
	A.2 Appendix A - Partnership Agreement for the provision of procurement services for Tendring District 2021-23

	7 A.3 Task and Finish Group - Planning Enforcement
	Appendix 2 presentation slides
	Appendix 3 presentation slides


